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€6 We have confinued to invest through the
cycle to build a business that is well posifioned
to benefit from market recovery and deliver
long-term earnings growth @ @

Adrian Aver
Group Chairmen

CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT

Our core waste-to-product business model
is increasingly well supported by long-term
legislative and environmental drivers.

hanks is a leading international

waste-to-product business.

During the course of the year

the Group has continued to invest

for sustainable growth from its
core divisions and, despite the continuing
difficutt market conditions, to protect margins
and reduce cost in its Sclid Waste Division.
The core waste-to-product business model
is increasingly well supported by long-term
legisiative and environmental drivers, and
we are uniquely positioned to deliver cost-
effective alternatives to ervironmentally
harmiul landfill sites or capital-intensive
incineration ptants.

Review of the year

The waste industry, in particutar the solid
waste market segment, has continued
to experience very challenging market

conditions, especially in the first half of the
year. Volumes and prices remained under
pressure and there has been further decline
in the value of recyclate products. These
factors led to a difficult first half, but slight
improvement in the markets combined with
further benefits from our cost and investment
programmes delivered a stronger undertying
second hatf.

Investment plans underpin our
growth sirategy

As a Board, we continue to balance the
short-term demands of cost reduction and
tight cash management, with a relentless
focus on our strategy to deliver longer term
sustainable growth gpportunities. We have
significantly increased our investment in
our Hazardous Waste Division, where we
are increasing capacity in both soit and




water treatrment. We have also made good
progress with our UK Municipal portfolio,
with major construction programmes
nearing completion at Barnsley, Doncaster
and Rotherham (BOR) and Wakefield and
construction now underway following
financial close at Derby. We were also
delighted to win an impertant long-term
contract to process organic waste in the
City of Surrey, Canada. At the year end

we reorganised our divisional structure to
exploit maore effectively market opportunities,
particularly in Canada.

Moarket conditions looking more
promising for consolidation

In response to the structural overcapacity
in certain waste markets, notably

in Benelux Solid Waste, there are
encouraging signs of increased M&A
activity which may lead to a beneficial
reduction in market capacity. We remain
alert to opportunities which will strengthen
our market positions, but in current
markets we will continue to exercise
appropriate caution, consistent with

our determination to improve our return
on capital.

Financial position

We have worked hard to build a reputation
for capital discipline and for good
management of our cash and we have
delivered ancther year of well controlled
undertying free cash flow {UFCF). UFCF
was £23.4m (2014: £56.5m} and the
UFCF% was 69% (2014: 137%). Core net
debt at the year end was £155m, better
than expectations. Net debt to EBITDA
increased to 2.3 times, reflecting our
reduced EBITDA in the first half.

Earnings per share and dividend
Underlying basic earings per share for
the year reduced to 5.0 pence (2014:
5.7 pence). Based on the Board's
confidence in the Group’s future earnings
potential, | am pleased i confirm that
we wilt be recommending an unchanged
final dividend of 2.35 pence per share,
payable on 31 July 2015 to sharehotders
on the register on 3 July 2015. The Board
is committed to maintaining this level of
dividend until earnings recover, such that
the dividend is back within the range of
2.0 1o 2.5 times cover, and a progressive
dividend policy can then be resumed.

Corporate governance

The Board is committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance. Details
of our processes and approach, including
those relating to the rele and effectiveness
of the Board, and compliance with the
Governance Code, are set out in the
Governance section on pages 71 to 76.

At last year's AGM shareholders
overwhelmingly approved our Directors’
Remuneration policy. Our policy continues
to be to recruit, retain and motivate high
calibre senior management, and to provide
a competitive remuneration package
linked to performance and the interests
of shareholders,

Corporate responsibility

| am pleased to report that we have
achieved the ambitious five year targets

we set ourselves in 2010 for carbon
avoidance, heatth and safety, and recycling
and recaovery rates. We have therefore

set ourselves a new series of equally
challenging and breader targets for the next
five years, designad to support our vision
of becoming the most respected waste-to-
product company. Further details are given
on pages 32 and 33 of this report, and in
our Corporate Responsibility Report which
is available on our website. Cur angoing
focus in these areas has once again been
recognised by Shanks’ inclusion in the
independently assessed FTSE4Good Index.

Shanks continues to have one of the
fowest reported accident figures in the waste
industry. However, we will not be satisfied
until we have zero accidents, and this
remaing our goal. Qur Group-wide initiative
over the past year has concerned the
reduction of injuries on our sites arising from
traffic incidents. After ten such accidents in
the previous two years, we were delighted
to record none in the last year,

Following the serious fire at the ELWA
facility, we have undertaken programmes
to further enhance our systems for the
prevention, detection and fighting of fires,
in order to mitigate what is a critical risk
factor in the waste industry.

Summary and outlook

Although we remain cautious in predicting
favourable movements in volumes, gate
fees and recyclate prices, some of our end
markets have stabilised and are showing
signs of improvement, consistent with a
slow recovery in the Eurozone economies
in which we operate. The fundamentals

of our industry remain attractive,
and we are well positicned to benefit
from a cyclical recovery.

We will nevertheless continue to improve
the underlying qualty of our business
through the commercial effectiveness
and cost reduction programmes, and
through selective investments in growth
opportunities in our Commercial, Hazardous
and Municipal Divisions, which are expected
to deliver benefits ahead of any enduring
market recovery.

On behalf of the Board, | would like
once again to thank all the employees of
Shanks for their continuing passicn and
commitment for what is & unique company.

Finalty, to our shareholders, | would like to
thank you for your continuing suppert.

Adrian Auer
Group Chairman

We have
achieved the
ambitious five
year targets we
set ourselves in
2010 for carbon
avoidance, health
and safety, and
recycling and
recovery rates.
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AT A
GLANCE

OUR
VISION

© & Our new vision reflects
our unique competitive position
and future direction %0

Peter Dilnot Group Chief Executive

@ ® To be the most
respected waste-to-product

company @

Most respected

We seek to be the most respected
waste-to-product company by all

our key stakeholders: customers,
employees, communities and,

of course, our shareholders.

OUR
VISION

Waste-to-product

We focus on making valuable products
from waste, rather than on its disposal
through mass burn incineration or
landfill. We believe our business meets
the growing need to deal with waste
sustainably and cost effectively.

[ Go te pages 13 and 16 for further information




Our business creates valuable
products from material that
is otherwise thrown away.

There is a growing need for cost-effective and
sustainable waste-to-product technologies, which
Shanks is uniquely placed to meset.

OVERVIEW

We have leading positions in our target markets
and a unique portfolio of businesses, capabilities
and technologies.
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e HOW OUR DIVISIONS
HAVE CHANGED

THE PAST

HAZARDOUS
WASTE

SOLID WASTE

ORGANICS

UK MUNICIPAL




We have implemented a new divisional structure to align our businesses
more closely with our customers, deliver synergies and accelerate growth.
The Group will now be reorganised into the following three divisions:
Hazardous, Commercial and Municipal.
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THE FUTURE

Defensible scale and technology 99%
HAZARDOUS leadership in attractive symbiotic

niche markets.

GOVERNANCE

PERCENTAGE OF S

[ Go to page 18 for further information GROUP REVENUE
Market |eoderitriE and 52% =
COMMERCIAL integrated growth platform

in recovering markets.

PERCENTAGE OF

[ Go to page 20 for further information GROUP REVENUE

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

NETHERLANDS

The Group’s new divisional
structure will align our
businesses more closely with
our customers, deliver synergies
and accelerate growth.

CANADA Gron Ol b ive

Clear UK and Canadian market 26"
MUNICIPAL leadership in sustainable municipal

waste treatment.

PERCENTAGE OF

]l Go to page 22 for further information GROUP REVENUE

Revanue percantage based on 2015 Revanue belare inlra-sagment alimination
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@© Our business improvement
programmes have resulted in a
stronger underlying second half
and have given us momentum

going into 2015/16 99

Peter Dilnot
Group Chief Executive

GROUP CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

Our vision, strategy and divisional structure has been refined
to accelerate growth, align more closely with our customers
and harness our unique competitive position.

fter a successful 2013/14,

the 2014/15 financial year

proved mere chalenging.

A further downturn in our core

Berelux Solid Waste markets,
coupled with one-off operational issues in
Hazardous Waste resulted in a disappointing
first half performance. However, cur business
improverment programmes have resulted
in a stronger underying second half in line
with our expectations as at September 2014,
and have given us momentum going into
2015/186.

During the year we continued to execute
our key strategic and operational plans.
These included delivering targeted structural
cost reductions, investing for growth
where we are advantaged, building new
infrastructure underpinned by long-term
contracts, and maintaining capital discipline.

With the backdrop of solid waste markets that
are beginning {o improwve, | am confident we
are well positioned to deltver profitable growth
and improving returns in the years ahead.

Review of the Year

Group Performance

Despite challenging market conditions,

our revenues from continuing businesses
grew by 19% at constant currency to £601m,
although they fell by 5% in reported cumency
(2014: £633m). Trading profit before
non-trading and exceptional items fell by
19% (25% at actual rates) to £34.3m and
underlying earnings per share reduced

by 7% at constant currency to 5.0p

{2014: 5.7p). Exceptional items in this year
of transformation amounted to £42.2m of
which £7.8m was cash.




GROUP STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

REFINED
STRATEGY

The core pillars of our strategy
reflect our new organisation
and incorporate our three
cross-divisional strategies.

DRIVING MARGIN EXPANSION

Using advantaged capabilities
and productivity to drive
operational performance.

INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE
Expanding the footprint with

investment in new infrastructure
where advantaged.

MANAGING THE PORTFOLIO

Confinuing to actively
manage the business portfolio
to improve returns.

OUR DIVISIONS

HAZARDOUS COMMERCIAL MUNICIPAL
Industrial Collection Operaling
cleaning and and treatment long-term
treatment of of commercial municipal
hozardous waste. contracts.
waste.

PROFITABLE  INCREASED
GROWTH RETURNS

OVERVIEW
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

CONTINUED

Our Commercial
Waste operations in

At a divisional level, our Solid Waste
Benelux Division experienced a particularty
chaflenging year as a result of a further
deterioration in its end markets during the
first half. Revenues fell by 1% at constant
currency o €379m, with trading profit
declining by 35% at constant curency to
€15.2m. Hazardous Waste trading profit fell
by 11% at constant currency on broadly flat
revenue, due 1o a weaker mix and operational
issues in the first half. The Organics Division
performed in line with our expectations, with
revenue falling by 5% to €38.6m and trading
profit by 8% to €4.4m due to the anticipated
lower pricing from long-term contracts
renewals and by increased North American
bidding costs. The UK Municipal Division
again performed well, with a 5% increase
in revenues to £145m and a 9% increase in
trading prefit to £10.0m.

Strong cash management and capital
discipline continued in 2014/15. Our net
debt at 31 March 2015 was lower than
expected at £155m, representing a multiple
of 2.3 times EBITDA, comfortably within our
covenant level, This strong cash position
reflects a strict control of capital expenditure
as well as a positive currency effect.

Core Solid Waste Markets
Challenging but Recently Stabilised
Underlying market conditions continued to
worsen in the first half of the financial year
before stabilising towards the end of the
second half. During 2014, the Nethertands
GDP grew by just 0.8%, while Belgium GDP
increased by 1.0%.

Dutch censtruction, our largest single
end market, remained broadly flat in 2014,
following a 12% fall in the previous two years.
However, a particularly weak summer period
impacted our first half performance. Many of
the leading Dutch construction cormpanies
have also continued to report weaker
financial results despite a small recovery in
residential housing activity. In Belgium, we
saw a contraction in the market for our Solid
Recovered Fuel (SRF), which is mainly sold to
local cement manufacturers. This was driven
in part by the subdued economy, but also by
the impact of strikes, extended maintenance
shutdowns and a fire at one major customer.

Against this backdrop, many of our
competitors continued to struggle to maintain
profitatdity, which resuited in further price
pressure on our incoming gate fees as waste
operators competed aggressively to fill their
processing capacity. Recyclate prices have
also continued to fall, directly impacting our
revenues by £2m year on year.

Notwithstanding this, certain key
underlying market drivers began to improve
in the second half. These indicators include
better prospects for the Dutch construction
market and increasing capacity utilisation
at the Dutch incinerators. Increasing spot
prices, and in some cases the incinerators
being unable to take in additional waste,
are expected to increase the demand and
gate fees for recycling services such as
those offered by Shanks. This trend has
been reinforced by the introduction in the
Netherdands of a new €13 per tonne tax on
domestic waste taken to incineration effective
from 1 January 2015,

Business Improvement Programmes
Contributed to Stronger Second Half
Our response to the prevailing market
conditions has been decisive, allowing us to
deliver a stronger undertying second half.

We have focused on improving core business
performance and on the rapid progression of
our investment plans to pesition ourselves for
sustained future growth.

In our Solid Waste Benelux Division, we
have been able to stabilise and then slightly
increase profits in the second half as a
result of defivery of a wide range of cost and
margin improvement programmes.




These have included:

@ Further structural cost reduction of
around €1.6m per annum to reflect
market conditions, including reductions
of over 40 heads at Icova, Viiko, Gent
and Kortemark;

® Use of lean manufacturing projects to
improve performance by over €1m per
annum at Icova and Van Viiet Groep;

@& Progress towards completion of the
three year structural cost programme
with implementation of the two new
Shared Service Centres and over €1m
of annual procurement savings;

@ Roll out across the Netherlands of a
commercial effectiveness project to
increase margins and to assist in the
pass-through of the new incinerator
tax; and

@ Installation of a state-of-the-art high
volume waste sorting line at Wateringen
in the Nethertands to replace two
decommissioned old sorting lines and

one that was destroyed in a fire in 2013,

In our Hazardous Waste Division, we
commissioned important new equipment

to improve operational performance and
capacity in the second half, and made good
progress with our longer term investment
activities. Highlights included:

® New state-of-the-art emissions
equipment for the ATM thermal sail
treatment process, which was fully
commissioned in late 2014, following
which we have processed record
tonnages of contaminated soll
as anticipated;

® Water storage tanks for the ATM water
treatment process, which are due for
completion during May 2015, doubling
our storage capacity for contaminated
water; and

@ Shanks Total Care treatment centre and
depot at Theemsweg, Rotterdam; with
the building entering operation in March
2015 and the treatment facility will be
operational by the end of the first half
of 2015/16.

The Organics Division delivered a blend of
performance improvement projects and
investment for long-term growth, primarily
through the winning of long-term municipal
contracts in North America. In February
2015 we announced that we had been
awarded a 25 year contract to design, build,
own and operate a dry anaerobic digestion
{AD} and composting site for the City of
Surrey in British Columbia, This advanced
facility, the first of its kind in Canaca, wil
produce bio-fuels to operate the Gity's flest
of waste colection vehicles. Cther important
progress in the year included the renewal of
key leng-term contracts in the Netherlands,
albeit at the lower prices expected, and
cost reduction programmes amounting to
annualised savings of over €1m.

Our UK Municipal Division performed
well through the year by exceeding our
customers’ diversion targets, despite
an increasingly challenging operating
environment as a result of government
austerity programmes. The Division was
able to overcome the impact of a major
fire in August 2014 at the Frog Istand
facility {part of ELWA) and is on track
for full reinstatement of the damage
caused. We have also made significant
progress with our funnel of major PFI/

PPP investments to support long-term
contracts for UK Municipal customers.

Our Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham
(BDR) faciity completed its construction
phase on schedule in February 2015

and is now in commissioning. We have
also started supplying the first fuel into

the new Ferrybridge incinerator that will
take all of the fuels that our BDR facility
produces. Our Wakefield facility has largely
completed construction and will enter into
commissioning shartly. Both plants will
enter full service over the next financial year.
Finally in August 2014, we were delighted
to secure financial close on the Derby

PPP contract, with construction of the
gasification plant now underway.

As aresult of these actions, we have
delivered an underlying second half
performance in line with that of the first half,
in a business that is seasonally first haif
weighted. This has given us encouraging
momentum as we enter 2015/16.

In February
2015 we
announced that
we had been
awarded a 25
year contract
to design, build
and operate a
dry anaerobic
digestion and
composting site
for the City of
Surrey in British
Columbia.

We have continued te manage our
portfolio of businesses. The last year has
seen further minor portfolio management
action, including the:

& Acquisition of the order book and
certain assets of Marcelis, a small
recycling company based in The Hague;

® €3.8m acquisition of a fully permitted
and operational site at Farmsum in the
northern Netherlands to be used as a
Shanks Total Care treatment site for
the Hazardous Waste Division;

& Sale of Enviro+, 2 non-core provider
of environmentat advisory services in
Belgium; and

@ Closure of soil washing operations at
our Jaartsveld facility in the Netherlands.

OVERVIEW
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

Ship degassing
avoids potentially
harmful emissions

and is a growth
market ot our
ATM focility in
the Netherlands

Positioning the Group for Long-Term
Sustainable Growth

Long-Term Market Growth Drivers
Remain Attraclive

Despite the market challenges, important
legislative developments have continued in
the last 12 months that support our long-
term growth prospects. Governments have
continued to promete and stimulate efficient
resource and energy management, including
increased recycling and power generation
from renewable sources such as waste.

The most important of these was the
introduction in January 2015 of a €13 per
tonne tax on incineration in the Netherlands.
This tax on domestic incineration is expected
to be extended to apply to exported waste
from July 2015. This is intended to increase
recycling rates by halving the amount of
municipal waste going to lanafil and mass
burn incineration. It is too early to observe
a material change in recycling volumes as a
resuft of the new tax, but we believe that it wil
enhance recycling volumes and the demand
for our services over the longer term.

In the UK, the Zero Waste Scottand
initiative has also demonstrated the impact

of government action in promoting waste
diversion, with an increase in organic waste
tonnages delivered to our joint venture
Cumbernauld AD facilty. In Canada, we are
alse now seeing an increase in municipal
procurement activity as a result of national
and regional policies to divert organic waste
frorn landfill.

Shanks is uniquely placed to meet the
increasing need for sustainable waste
management solutions, so will benefit
from legislative and other long-term drivers
that will phase out landfill and reduce
incineration in the Benefux over time.

Our sustainable solutions reduce greenhouse
gas emissions, recycle natural resources

and limit fossil fuel dependence. Critically
they do this in a cost-effective and capital
efficient way in comparison to olher wasts
management alternatives.

Sustainability is at our core which is
reflected by our inclusion in the FTSE4Good
Index. Our business enables customers
to meet their sustainabifity objectives in
a way that makes good financial sense.
We do this by using our recycling and
product technology to deliver value for
customers and attractive returns to our

shareholders. We were pleased to achieve
a recycling rate of 82% during the year.

We are increasingly focusing our efforis on
target markets that have strong sustainable
growth drivers and characteristics that enable
Shanks to gain competitive advantage. This
aspiration reflects opportunities in our growth
markets, such as European industrial waste
water treaiment and long-term UK and North
American municipal contracts. This focus
is also consistert with our commitment 1o
be highly selective about where we deploy
further capital in the future.

New Vision, Updated Strategy

and New Divisional Structure

for Accelerated Growth

Shanks' over-arching purpose remains to
‘make more from waste’. This social and
emnvironmental goal engages and resonates
with our people throughout the business.

It is also clear that this goal cannot succeed
unless it defivers sustainable financial value
to aff our stakeholders. Over ihe last year,
we have refreshed our vision, strategy ang
organisational structure in order to ensure
that they remain sharp, focused and relevant
to our evolving markets.




Qur vision is to be the most respected
waste-to-product company

In September 2014 we announced our
vision to be the most respected waste-
to-product company. This emphasis on
the term ‘waste-to-product’ highlights

our unique business modet and what
differentiates us. We exclusively focus on
extracting value frorm waste, rather than on
its disposal through mass burn incineration
or landfill. We believe that our unique focus
not only addresses social and regulatory
rends, but also offers the most capital-
efficient solution to the effective recycling
and management of waste.

We seek {0 be the most respected
waste-to-product company by all our key
stakeholders: custormers, employees,
communities and, of course, our
shareholders. This broad based approach
is reflected in our wide ranging and ambitious
new five year corporate responsibility targets.

New Divisional structure to
accelerate growth
As announced on 31 March 2015,
the Group has implemented a new
divisicnal structure to align our businesses
more closely with our customers,
deliver synergies and accelerate growth.
The Group has now been recrganised
into the following three divisions:
Commercial, Municipal and Hazardous.
The Organics Division will no longer
be a standalone business and will be
incorporated within the Cormmercial and
Municipal divisions:

@ Our Canadian Organics business and the
Orgaworld technical team will combine
with the UK Municipal Division to create
a new Municipal Davision. In Canada,
our business is cenired on winning
long-term contracts with municipalities
in North America. This model is similar
to the focus of our UK division, and there
are synergies which will both accelerate
growth and improve returns; and

#® QOur Benelux Solid Waste Division wall
combine with the Netherands and
Belgium Organics business units ta
create a new Commercial Division,
renamed to reflect its broader offering.
The Commercial Division will be managed
by two operational teams, one for the
Netherlands and one for Belgium.

Our Hazardous Waste Division is unaffected
by the new structure.

The new organisation will have a number
of strategic and operational bensfits:

® Combining our technical expertise in
organics with our expertise in bidding
for and managing complex municipat
contracts within one Municipal Division
to better support our North American
growth plans;

# Combining our organics assets in the
Netherands with our existing industrial
and cormmercial business to create a
Commercial Division which can provide
a broader offering to Dutch A-brand
customers at a lower cost; and

® Creating separate operational teams
for Commercial Netherlands and
Belgium to meet the different strategic
and operational needs of the two
countries with a more focused span
of control, while retaining many of the
synergies in terms of shared platforms
and procurement.

The Group Executive Committee {Excom)
has been amended to reflect the new
divisional structure. Michael van Hulst

is Managing Director, Commercial
Netherlands, and Patrick Laevers joins the
Excorn as Managing Director, Commercial
Belgium. Peter Eglinton is Managing
Director of Municipal Division, while Jonny
Kappen remains Managing Director of
Mazardous Waste. George Slade has

also been appeinted to the Excom as
Group Information Director to drive the
ongoing programmes to modernise the
Group's processes and systems, while
Toby Woolrych and Michelle Cummins
have unchanged roles in finance and HR
respectively. Henk Kaskens has stepped
down from his executive role as Managing
Director of Organics Division after eight
years with Shanks. We thank hirn for his
dedicated service to the business and are
delighted that he will continue to work with
us In an advisory role going forward.

We are reporting the results for the year
ended 31 March 2015 under the previous
organisational structure and will then report
under the new structure going forward.
The necessary historic financial information
will be made available in both formats to
ensure both transparency and clarity.

Updated Group strategy

The core pillars of our strategy have evolved
in the light of the new organisation to
incorporate three core divisional strategies

and three cross-divisional strategies.
Qur core divisional strategies are:

1. improve the profitability of
Commercial Waste. Our Commercial
Waste business is focused on the
Benelux region where it is a clear market
leader with the scale and position to
win. Qur strategy is focused on driving
this business {o attractive profitability
and asset return levels. We continue
to improve efficiency through the
structural cost programme, increasing
route density and plant productivity,
and delivering new procurement and
continuous improvement initiatives, We
are investing in optimising our commercial
effectiveness to take advantage of market
opportunities and have also streamiined
the portfolia to increase returns.

2 Broaden the scope of Hazardous
Waste. Our Hazardous Waste business
delivers superior returns through its
symbictic range of treatments and
operational excellence. We are building
on this profitable base by investing in
more treatrment capacity and further
environmental protection capability.
in parailed, we will expand the range of
waste inputs that we treat with our existing
assets and will broaden our commercial
coverage in intermational markets.

3. Grow the Municipal long-term
contract business in the UK and
North America. We have strong
expertise in long-term project-
financed municipal contracts. This
inciudes successfully bidding for such
opportunities, designing and building the
associated plants, and then operating
them in partnership with local authorities.
This is supported by market leadership
in organic waste treatment and residual
waste treatment by Mechanical Biological
Treatment (MBT). We will deliver growth
initially from building and commissioning
new assets from long-term contracts
already won in the UK and Canada.
Given the increasing need for diversion
from landfill in North America, we also
plan to win more new contracts by
sefective and disciplined contract bidding.

While we are clear about the actions
needed to defiver growth in each division,

we will continue to deliver value by leveraging
our Group capabilities and scale.
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MEASURING FUTURE
PERFORMANCE

OUR NEW
DIVISIONAL STRUCTURE

HAZARDOUS

Hazardous Waste will grow
profits while mdintaining
attractive returns, primarily
through investment in expanded
capacity and capabilities in its
core markets.

GOALS 2015/16

¢ Complete investment in new waterside capacity

* Complete commissioning of new Theemsweg facility

* Integrate new acquisition in Farmsum, the Netherlands
® ATM Io achieve Sevesoill

* Conlinye to deliver environmental excellence

COMMERCIAL

Commercial Waste will deliver
improved profitability and
retumms through implementation
of commercial effectiveness and
continuous improvement
programmes.

GOALS 2015/16

* Optimise performance of the shared service centres and
complele structurcl cost programme

* Ensure margin expansion through commercial effectiveness

* Deliver growth through new sorting line at Van Vliet Contrans
and Vlike relocation

* Implement lean conversion al targe! sites

MUNICIPAL

Municipal will focus on
growth from new assets
and further contract wins.

GOALS 2015/16

* Deliver performance improvement projects in core
operating contracts

* Achieve successful romp-up at BDR and Wakefield

® Successful build programme at Surrey Organics facility

THE FUTURE

GROUP

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

DRIVING MARGIN EXPANSION

GOALS 2015/16

» Complete lean pilot project in two
Commercical sites and commence roll-out
* Complete lean pilot project in UK MBT
* Deliver commercial effectiveness
programme in Belgium Commercial
and embed programme in
Netherlands Commercial

INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE

GOALS 2015/16

* Commission BDR and Wakefield
on time and progress Surrey on
schedule in Municipal

¢ Commission water storage tanks,
new Theemsweg facility
and jefty extension in Hozardous

* Commission new depot for Vliko
business and commission sortfing line
at Van Vliet Contrans in Commercial

MANAGING THE PORTFOLIO

GOALS 2015/16

¢ Complete disposal of non-core assets
with low returns

* Actively explore optians for accrelive
market consolidation

* Aclively explore options to expand in
adjacent geographies or technologies
for Hazardous Waste




GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

Our three divisional strategies therefore
remain undeminned by three key Group
strategies that span all cur businesses.

4. Increase operating margins. We are
focusing on improving profitability through
market-leading productivity and by more
insightful customer segmentation.

To do this we are introducing enhanced
capabilities (often brought from outside
the waste management industry} such
as commercial effectiveness and
continuous improverment. In paraliel,
we are leveraging our established skills
and knowledge both within and between
the divisions. Overall, we aim to create
defensible competitive advantage
through the combination of our strong
market positions and a highly capable
organisation. Qur proactive actions will
also lead to strong operational gearing
gains from any market recovery.

5. Invest in infrastructure to deliver
high quality earnings growth. We
have centinued 10 invest through this
challenged eccnomic cycle in order to
deliver attractive returns and high quality
earnings growth. Our focus on capital
discipline means that we deploy capital
where we are strategically advantaged or
where we can secure long-term contracts.
We are well placed to grow in the UK PFI/
PPP market with established contracts,
together with over £300m of capital
committed to projects in construction for
completion in the coming two years.

6. Actively manage the Group’s
portfelio. We are actively managing
our porttolio to improve the quality of
our earnings and to increase the return
on capital employed. We have sold
underperforming assets that we do not
believe will be able to generate attractive
returns. In parallel, we seek to deploy
our capital to deliver growth in areas
where we are confident of sustainable
advantage, atiractive returns and higher
growth. We are increasingly active in
reviewing the market for appropriate
acquisition opportunities, particularty
given potential market consolidation
in the Benelux market.

Sustainability at our Core with Delivery
of Corporate Responsibility Objectives
In 2010 the Board set an ambitious range of
Corporate Responsibility objectives which,
once achieved, would position Sharks
as a leader in the indusiry in terms of
sustainability and safaty. We have achieved
all three of the main goals in this financial
year, with a recycling rate of 82%, carbon
avoidance of 1.41 millicn tonnes and a
reduction in serious accidents over the
period of 39% against a target of 25%.

The Board has now approved a new
and stretching five year programme which
is fully aligned with our visicn of being
the most respected waste-to-product
company. The programme will comprise
a range of targeted programmes to further
improve safety performance and to increase
recycling rates, community engagement and
employee satisfaction. Cur new goals are
explained in this Annual Report and in our
oniine Corporate Responsibility Report.

Investment plans in 2015/16

to drive growth

During 2015/16 the Group will be
entering a period of increased investment
in a number of value-enhancing
infrastructure projects that are already
well advanced and will generate future
growth. The projects include:

#® €7min Hazardous Waste Division
including to complete the Theemsweg
depot and treatment site and to extend
the jetty at ATM;

@ CAD$30m in Municipal Divisicn as
construction starts on the CAD$50mM
Surrey bio-fuels fadility;

@& £3m in Municipal Division for the
completion and commissioning of the
BDR and Wakefield facilities in excess
of sums funded through non-recourse
bank loans;

@ £35m in Municipal Division in
subordinated debt earning around
13% coupon in the BDR and Wakefield
special purpose vehicles on full service
commencement; and

@ €6m net funding for the construction
of a new solid waste depot in the
Netherlands 1o relocate away from a site
badly damaged by fire in 2013,

This investment will result in a short-term
increase in our net debt: EBITDA ratio which
will be managed through continuing tight
capital discipline, efficient working capital
and, where appropriate, the disposal of non-
core assets in line with the Group’s strategy.
Our lending banks are fully supportive of our
strategy and have amended our key financial
covenants to provide the Group with the
appropriate headroom during this period.,

Outlock

The Board's expectations for 2015/16
remain unchanged excluding the impact of
a fluctuating Euro/Sterling exchange rate
on our reported results. We expect our
Hazardous Waste and Commercial Divisions
to make progress in the coming year in
constant currency. In our Municipal Division
the early benefits of newly commissioned
assets will be offset by contract changes
with regard to diversion targets and the
residual operational impact of the fire

at ELWA. We will also see a period of
increased investment in our Municipal and
Hazardous Waste divisions as we progress
value-creating cpportunities.

Longer term, the growth dnivers in our
business remain attractive. Our vision,
strategy and organisation have been refined
to accelerate growth, increase customer
focus and improve cperational performance.
Market conditions for the Commercial
Division have started to show signs of
improvement and new infrastructure will
come online in our Hazardous and Municipal
Divisions. In addition, we will continue to
actively manage our business portfolio,
to take advantage of potential opportunities.

57

Peter Dilnot

Group Chief Executive
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WHAT IS
"WASTE-TO-PRODUCT'?

Why it is different to ‘waste management’

WASTE-T0-
PRODUCT

INPUT




n September 2014 we announced our
vision to be the most respected waste-
to-product company. This emphasis on
the term 'waste-to-product’ highlights
our unique business model and what
differentiates us. We exclusively focus on
extracting value from waste, rather than on

OUTPUT

AGGREGATES

PLASTIC RECYCLATE

its disposal through mass burn incineration
or landfill. We believe that our unigue focus
not only addresses social and regulatory
trends, but also offers the most capital-
efficient solution to the effective recycling
and management of waste.

PRODUCT BENEFITS

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY %
§T(U2NG AND
RECOVERY RATE

ENERGY PRODUCTION

18

(OMPOST SOIL CONDITIONER, ANIMAL BEDDING HILLION TONNES

MIXED RECYCLATES

WOO0D PRODUCTS

FUEL

WASTE HANDLED

GLASS, PAPER & CARDBOARD
6.
WILLION TORNES
MATERIALS
RECOVERED
CHIPBOARD & MDF

]

ENERGY PRODUCTION OPERATING CENTRES

OR RECOVERY
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HAZARDOUS

FUTURE
1 S
BRIGHT




FROM THE
GROUND UP

We are making contaminated
soil fit for construction and

habitation again

tifising brownfield sites for

construction and housebuilding

has become a popular planning

palicy, but it comes with

complications. Brownfield sites
are often contaminated by their industrial
past, and cleaning up contaminated soit has
proved a challenge.

At our flagship ATM facility in the
Nethenands, Shanks has Europe’s largest
thermal seil cleaner, which provides an
advanced cleaning solution for even the
most contaminated soil.

ATM's giant rotary kiln treats
approximately one million tornes of soil
a year. Around 99% of that soil emerges
from ihe kiln clean and ready to be reused
in the construction industry. This contrasts
with the alternative scil-washing process,
which is unsuitable for very contaminated
sites and even in less severe cases results
in more than a quarter of the soil still being
sent to landfill,

The business
opportunity for
soil treatment over
the coming years
is significant.

Qur soil customers are from across
Europe, ranging from construction
contractors to municipal projects. Old
asphalt from road surfacing is ancther
important material which the Dutch
government requires to be treated onceitis
dug up, as it contains the carcinogen, tar.

“The business opportunity for the soil
treatment facility over the coming years is
significant,” says Fred Muller, Sales Director
at ATM. “As construction activity in Europe
recovers, many more contaminated sites
will need clearing. There are thousands of
brownfield sites around Europe still awaiting
clean-up and we are well placed to serve
this growing market.”

HAZARDOUS
BUSINESS MODEL

Industrial c|euning and treatment
of hazardous waste.

REYM

CLEANING GENERATES
CONTAMINATED WATER

ATM

BIO WATER AND SOIL TREATMENT

CLEANED
WATER

CLEAN
SOIL

INERT ASH
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COMMERCIAL

BETTER

W A Y




RISING

FROM THE

FLAMES

How a fire at our

COMMERCIAL
BUSINESS MODEL

Collection and treatment of
commercial woste,

Vliko site presented an

exciting opportunity

aking waste and tuming it into
valuable products is at the heart
of our vision. Qur new advanced
sorting line in the Netherands
is an excellent example of how
we can use technology to efficientty and
economically produce high quality product
and benefit the envircnment.
After a fire damaged a sorting facility
at our Viiko site in 2013, we decided to
build a new, state of the art sorting line
at our Van Viiet Contrans (VVC) facility
in Wateringen. The new €4.5m line will
process approximatety 135,000 tonnes
of construction and demolition (C&D)
wasie each year and replaces three old
and inefficient sorting lines, including the
destroyed line at Viiko. it began operations
in March 2015.
The VVC sorting line is one of the most
advanced CAD waste sorting lines in
Europe. it is faster and more efficient than

We can now SORT

extract far more
value from the
waste which we
put in, while doing
so more quickly
and efficiently than
in the past.

PRODUCE

its predecessors, enabling more matenal
to be sorted at a lower cost. It is also able
to achieve a far higher grade of separation,
resutting in more valuable recycled materal.
For example, brick and stone is separated
aven more effectively, making each
component more valuable for re-sale. Paper,
instead of all being recycled and made into
low value products, can be separated into
different grades, enabling white paper to be
recycled as more valuable office stationery.
“In the Netherands, where government
standards on recycling are wertd-leading,
the VVC sorting line gives us a real
competitive advantage,” says Marc van
Buijtene, Region Director Shanks South-
West, “We can now exiract far more value
from the waste which we put in, while elgc':‘rgw
doing so more quickly and efficiently than
in the past.”

Solid Campaost
recoverad fugl

Wood Aggregata  lcopower
chips peliais
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MUNICIPAL

R O C K

OLID

BUSINESS




BUILDING
A BRIGHTER

FUTURE

Household waste used to
make construction materials,

ready to build more houses

ousehold waste is now

being used in the making

of construction materials

for large scale infrastructure

projects such as the new
Cross-rail railway for London and the
South East of England.

Solid Recovered Fuel (SRF) is supplied
as a fuel which can be used in energy-
hungry processes such as making cement.
By using SAF, the cement manufacturers
can reduce their use of fossil fuels and
replace them with this more cost effective
and greener alternative.

Cur Mechanical Biolegical Treatment
{MBT) facilities firstly extract the recyclable
materials from the househotd waste.

The residual mix of non-recyclable materials
are then dnied and shredded to produce a
carben-neutral fuel called SRF.

For local authorities and other refuse
generators, the production of SRF provides
another way to reduce the amount of
waste that goes to landfill, helping to
meet environmental targets. For our
shareholders, SRF is ancther example of

how we create a valuable product from
waste that would otherwise only constitute
a cost to the business.

"SRF embodies our waste-to-product
goal,” says Peter Eglinton, Managing
Director of Shanks' Municipat Division.

“It brings economic benefits to our
customers and our shareholders,
and environmental benefits to the
whole cormnmunity.”

For local authorities
and other refuse
generators, the
production of SRF
provides another
way to reduce the
amount of waste that
goes into landfill.

MUNICIPAL
BUSINESS MODEL

Operating long-term municipal
contracts.

LOCAL AUTHORITY

SORT

SOLID RECOVERED RECYCLATES
FUEL

GREEN
ELECTRICITY

COMPOST
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POWER TO
THE PEOPLE

The City of Surrey in Canada
will soon be using waste to make
biofuel for its transport systems

hanks has a clear and stated
strategy 1o expand our footprint
with investment in new
infrastructure, where advantaged.
in February 2015, we expanded
this footprint by secunng a 25 year contract
to build an Qrganics Biofuel Processing
Facility for the City of Surrey in Canada.
The new infrastructure consists of a
facility which will process 115,000 tonnes
of kitchen and garden waste from the City
each year, creating a renewable natural gas
which can then be used to power the City's
waste collection trucks. The facility will also
produce a compeost product that can be
used for gardening and agricultural use. Once
operational, it will be the first closed-loop
fully-integrated organics waste management
systern in North America. It will have the
capacity to process all of the City’s organic
waste along with cormmercial organic waste
and will enable Metro Vancouver, the regional
district of which the City of Surrey is a part, to

achieve a regional 70% waste diversion target.

The contract fits well with our strategy of
expanding our business in North America
through long-termn municipal contracts.

Mare than that, though, it demonstrates our
selective investments in new infrastructure.

Overseeing the Surrey bid was Lindert
Verhagen, Finance Director for Shanks’
Organics Division who explains: “We were
delighted to win this high profile contract with
the City of Surrey: an example of investing

in large-scale infrastructure, underpinned by
long-term contracts. We now lock forward
to continuing to work with the City of Surrey
to begin construction of the first closed-loop
integrated organics waste management
system in North Amernica.”

We were
delighted to win
this high profile

contract with
the City of Surrey:
investing in large-
scale infrastructure,
underpinned
by long-term
contracts.
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An grfists impression of the Organics Biofuel
Processing Facility for the City of Surrey in Canada

the City of Surrey

An oerial view of
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DRIVING
MARGIN
EXPANSION

ICONIC ICOVA

lcova, part of our Solid Waste Division,
has been making great gains

t leova, driving margin
expansion was a key lever
to improving performance.
“We locked at both sides of
the equation in seeking margin
expansion,” says Dieter Avonds, Directar
Shanks Region North. “How to increase our
top line sales and how to reduce our costs.”
lcova built a culture of continuous
improvermnent by empowering the team,
building capabilities and managing the key
drivers that impact margin. The change
was successfulty embedded by using
continuous improvement tools such as
visual management.

Toimprove the efficiency of lcova’s sales
force, a commercial effectiveness programme
was implernented which enabled the sales
force to segment its client base more
accurately and focus on where we can deliver
mest value to customers and win with better
margins. Improved iraining, assessment and
the introduction of dashboards all contributed
to enhanced performance.

At lcova’s Icopower plant, which produces
fuet pellets from commercial waste, the
focus was on driving operational efficiency.
After an analysis of the production process,
three main improvement projects were
implemented. The first reduced the cost of
disposing of waste, the second reduced
logistics costs and the third involved
improving production efficiency by eliminating
process bottlenecks.

These measures increased the plant’s
run rate and reduced the cost of production
per tonne. Cost savings will amount to
approximatety €300,000 a year on an

Our kavo operations
in the Netherlands

We increased the

annualised basis. P

The programme also focused on lcova’s Pla nt’s run rﬂte and
transport activities to strengthen the reduced '.he cost
team's ability to run the business more -
cost efficiently. A fuel efficiency programme of producflon.

gives drivers a tool that enables them to
measure the fuel efficiency of their driving,
while a route optimisation programme
enables those drivers and their trucks to be
deployed in the most efficient way possible.
“Driving margin expansion must be part of
the operating model and at the core of the
organisation in order to create competitive
advantages,” says Dieter Avonds.




WELCOMING
OUR NEWEST
ACQUISITION

A new facility in
Farmsum creates a
platform for growth

Acquisition that
will deliver both
short-term and
long-term value.

fter previously focusing our
porifolio by disposing of
businesses that did not fit cur
investment criteria, in early
2015 Shanks took advantage
of an acquisition opportunity that will deliver
both short-term and long-term value in the
Hazardous Waste Division.
The facility in Farmsum, in the north
of the Netherlands was a perfect fit, It
is close to the regional headquarters of
our Reym industrial cleaning business
in Veendamn and to its satellite locations
that serve the onshore industrial cleaning
market. The plant occupies a six hectare
site and has high quality operational assets,
including water and waste storage tanks,
a production hall and a distillation tower as
well as all necessary permits for handling
hazardous waste. It also has laboratories,
offices, warshousing and railway access
with indoor loading for trucks and trains
along with a further three undeveloped
hectares of land.

MANAGING
THE
PORTFOLIO

The desirable purchase price of €3.8m
and the location of the plant means there
are immediate opportunities for savings
through cost reductions across the Group.
Acquiring the Farmsum facility alsc gives
us the opportunity to grow our business
further as it mirrors the strategy for the new
Shanks Total Care facility under construction
at Theemsweg, Rotterdam, and will also
be branded as a Shanks Total Care facility.
Shanks Total Care is a senice providing
a complete range of industrial cleaning,
transport and waste management expertise
through a single contact.

“We already have a strong position in
the north of the Netherlands,” says Jonny
Kappen, Managing Director of Shanks’
Hazardous Division. “But the acquisition
of this new Total Care facility will increase
volumes, leverage our infrastructure and
expand our market offering.”
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CORPORATE
SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

DELIVERING
SUSTAINABILITY

We make more from waste by creating
valuable products from what is thrown away

hanks’ over-arching purpose

remains to ‘make more

from waste'. This social and

environmental necessity is a goal

which engages and resonates
with our people throughout the business.
In Septermber 2014 we announced our new
vision to be the most respected waste-to-
product company. This emphasis on the
term waste-to-product highlights the key
differentiating feature of Shanks, particularly
among its larger peers, in that our focus
is on extracting value from the waste we
receive, rather than on disposal through
mass burn incineration or landfill. We believe
that this unique positioning in the market
not only fits with both social and regulatory
trends, but also offers the most capital-
efficient solution to the effective recycling
and management of waste.

We seek to be the most respected
waste-to-product company by all our

key stakeholders: customers, employees,
communities and of course our
shareholders. This broad based approach
is reflected in our wide ranging and
ambitious new five year corporate
responsibility agenda, the highlights of
which are on page 33.

82%

RECYCUNG AND
RECOVERY RATE
UP FROM 74%
FIVE YEARS AGO

Recydling and recovery of waste reduces
the use of non-renewable resources and
provides more sustainable alternatives to
waste disposal. It aso avoids greenhouse
gas emissions associated with landfill

sites, reduces virgin raw material use and
displaces non-renewable energy production.
By achieving aur vision, we not only improve
our own environmental footprint, we allow
our customers and society to improve theirs.

To achieve our sustainability strategy, we
take waste that would have gone to landfil
or mass burn incineration and convert it into
usable praducts, using the latest technology
across our facilities:

@ Sorting centres and recycling
facilities take mixed or partialty
separated waste and sort it into
individual components such as paper,
card, plastics and metals for use in
product manufaciure.

® Mechanical biological treatment
{MBT) facilities remove recyclable
matenial and process the remaining
residual material to produce a waste-
derived fuel, such as solid recovered
fuel {(SRF) which can be used in power
production and industrial processes.

39%

REDUCTION IN
SERIQUS ACCIDENT
RATE OVER THE
PAST FIVE YEARS

& Anaerohic digestion (AD) and
in-vessel composting (IVC) facilities
take organic waste, such as food waste,
and turn it into fertilisers. AD plants
also generate green electricity from the
resulting gases.

#® Our main hazardous waste treatment
facility, located in the Netherands, uses
thermal and other treatments to destroy
the hazardous components of wasie
such as paints and contaminated soil
and water.

Our delivery of waste-to-product strategy
and sustainability is demonstrated by our
recycling and recovery rate. In 2014/15
82% of the waste received by our sites
was recycled or recovered.

Our new Wakefield and BDR {Barnsley,
Doncaster and Rotherham) faciiities will
come on line during 2015/16 and will
boost our recycling and recovery rates.
Our planned Surrey project in Canada will
provide bio-gas from AD, which will be
used directly as a fuel in waste collection
vehicles. These are examples of our waste-
fo-product strategy in action.

1.41

MILLION TONNES OF
CARBON AYQIDED: 1%
UP FROM 0.74 MILLON
FIVE YEARS AGO
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CONTINUED

EMISSIONS FROM OUR ACTIVITIES

€O EQUIVALENT  COg EQUIVALENT
SOURCE {'000 TONNES)' ("000 TONNESY
1015 04
PROCESS BASED EMISSIONS
Emissiors from anaerobic digestion and compasting 79 44
Emissions from hozordous waste reatment 125 55
Emissians from londfill 73 115
Exmissions from mechanicod biotogical wegtment (MET) 17 2
TRANSPCRT BASED EMISSIONS
Fuel used by waste ranspart vehides and business trovel &5 85
ENERGY USE EMISSIONS
Elecnicity used an sites and in offices 61 64
Gos and ather fuels used 7 29
Total emissions from significant sources 546 614
CARBON AVOIDED AS A RESULT OF OUR ACTIVITIES
Renewable energy generoted 38 36
Waste desived fuels produced and sold* N 750
Materials sepocated for reuse /recyding (some re-used ditectly, 482 74
afhess undergo re-processing by 3ed parfies)
Tatal potentiol evoided emissins 1411 1,260
| Figutes rounded 1o nearest 1,000 tonnes. Figures may not lotal as @ result of reunding.
2 Reduction in langfill emissions lorgely the result of sole of Pecdielc .andiill in the UK cnd
enginearing works,
3 Increcse lorgely the resul of improved sales of wosie derived fuels
CARBON EMISSION AND AVOIDANCE IRTENSITY RATIOS
GHG emissions /revenue GHG owidunce/revenve
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1 Data is eatbon emissions of avoidonce fexpressed os CO?2 equivalent)
000 tonnes / revenue expressed in § miflions
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RECYCLING AND RECOVERY RATE
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More than
260 safety
leadership
visits were
carried out by
Shanks’ senior
leaders and
executives in

2014/15.

DOWNLOAD OUR
FULL CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILTY
REPORT AT
SHANKSPLC.COM/
CR_REPORT

Qur commitment to sustainability is also
confirmed by external and independent
measures. We are listed in the FTSE4Good
Index and take part in high-profile
sustainability assessments such as the
Carbon Disclosure Project.

Woaste-to-product and delivering
carbon savings

By making more from waste we
provide carbon savings for society
By being a waste-to-product company
we deliver sustainability for our customers,
partners and for the wider community.

Our unigue range of technologies and
high recycling and recavery rates allow
our customers to achieve their
sustainability goals. Through a combination
of sustainable waste management and
green electricity preduction, Shanks is
committed to helping reduce society's
carbon emissions.

Our recycling facilities produce recyclate
products, lifting the carben burden
associated with virgin raw materials.

The waste-derived fuels we produce and
the green electricity we generate displace
fossil fuels, providing a carbon benefit.
We measure how much carbon is avoided
as a result of the recyclate materials we
produce, the green electricity we generate
and the waste-derived tuels we supply.

In addition, we are also finding ways to
become more energy efficient. Our Group
carbon footprint and carbon intensity
ratios clearty show the positive impact cur
activities have had.

Corporate responsibility objectives

Qur first five-year targets

and achievements

We have been reporting publicly on our
environmental and health and safety
performance for more than 25 years.

In 2010 the Board adepted an ambitious
range of corporate responsibility objectives
which, once achieved, would position

us as a leader in the industry in terms of
sustainability and safety. We are delighted to
report that we have achieved all three of the
main goals.

Health and safety is at the top of our
agenda. We work in a high risk industry,
but we are minimising the risk of accidents
by giving our people the support, training
and equipment they need to work salely.
In 2010 we set ourselves the target of
reducing our employee more serious
accident rate oy 25% over a five-year
period. We have more than achieved this
cbjective, and between 2010 and 2015, our
accident rate reduced by 39%.

Cur recycling and recovery rate is &

critical measure of how successful we

are as a waste-to-product company. We
have consistently invested in sustainable
waste management technologies, while
reducing our reliance on landfill and other
less sustainable methods. In 2010 we

set aurselves the target of increasing our
recycling and recovery rate over a five-year
period to at least 80%. We have mare than
achieved this objective, and in 2014/15
82% of the waste accepted by our sites
was recycled or recovered.

The carbon benefit of our waste-to-
product activities is demonstrated by

our carbon footprint and the amount of
carbon avoidance we achieve through our
operations. In 2010 we set ourselves the
target of increasing our carbon avoidance
benefit over a five-year period to at least
1.3 million tonnes a year. We have more
than achieved our target. In 2014/15 our
activities provided more than 1.4 million
tonnes of carbon aveidance.

We will continue to report an our
sustainability and corporate responsibility
performance. We will also continue to set
ourselves challenging targets in key areas
o ensure we deliver on our vision angd our
corporate responsibility ambitions.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CONTINUED

WASTE-TO-PRODUCT AT WAKEFIELD

Our new Wakefield facility in the UK will use five distinct
waste-to-product technologies to provide sustainability
benefits to the area’s local residents. This makes
Wakefield one of our most advanced projects to date,
both in terms of its build and operation.

Waste from local domestic recycling collections will
be sorted in a high-technology recyeling plant, green
waste from gardens will go to an in-vessel composting
facility, and residual domestic waste will be treated
through an automated recycling system, then passed via
an autoclave pre-treatment process to a wet anaercbic
digestion plant. All of these variocus systems will be on
one single site, saving waste collection lorries the need
to travel to multiple facilities.

When the plant is fully operational it is estimated that
our new Wakefield facility will produce nearty 60,000
tonnes of recycled materials, 14,0600 tonnes of compost
and 47,000 tonnes of waste-derived fuels a year. Plus, it
will generate nearty three million kilo-watt hours of
green electricity annually. In total it is predicted that our
Wakefield venture will provide an annual carbon
avoidance benefit to society of more than 100,000
tonnes carbon equivalent.

Local communities and authorities are an important
client stakeholder group for us. The long-term contracts
we share with our local authority clients provide the
capital and stability to maximise the sustainability
benefits of complex operations such as Wakefield.

Qur new
mylti-technology
waite treatmeant
Focility in Wakefickd

Corporate responsibility objectives

Future five-year targets to 2020

QOur achievements gver the past five years
do not mean an end to our corporate
responsibility ambitions. The Board has
now approved a new and stretching

five year programme which is intended

to support our vision of being the most
respected waste-to-product company
through targeted programmes to further
improve safety performance and to increase
recycling rates, community engagement and
employee satisfaction.

Qur new five-year objectives are wider in
scope and more sophisticated than our

older targets. Their development has involved
our Corporate Responsibility and Health

and Safety Committees, our Group Executive
Committee and the Board. An extensive
assessment of what issues are important

to our stakehclders helped to create

these objectives.

We have chosen four overarching
areas for our key corporate responsibility
business objectives:

® Health and safety is a key issue for our
employees and we must continue to drive
improvement in this area.

® Sustainability is core to our vision to be
the most respected waste-to-product
company.

& Community relations are critical to
us as good neighbours, and for the
rmaintenance of our environmental
permits.

® Our people are cur most valued resource
and their continued enthusiasm and
commitment are key to our success.

For each of these four key areas we have
also developed a series of supporting
corporate responsibility measures. These
underpin our objectives. We will measure
ourselves against both our key objectives
and supporting measures, and will report
publicty each year on our progress,




OUR FIVE YEAR
CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
OBJECTIVES

SAFETY SUSTAINABILITY ENVIRONMENT EMPLOYEES
M A a A
>3 DAY RECYCLING AND IMPROVE EMPLOYEE
ACCIDENT RATE RECOVERY RATE COMMUNITY FEEDBACK ENGAGEMENT SCORE
-25% 85% +25% +10%
MAJOR,/FATAL A CARBON AVOIDANCE A ENVIXONAENT AND A EMPLOYEE TRAINING
ACCIDENTS B AND DEVELOPMENT
ZERO +10% ZERO NEW*
COMMUNITY
LOST TIME GREEN ENERGY SHORT-TERM
A ENGAGEMENT SCHEMES M
ACCIDENT RATE A propucTion ENGAGEMENT 5¢ SICKNESS RATE
25% +60% NEW" NEW*
% OPERATING EMPLOYEE
NEAR-MISSES &
RATE CLOSED-OUT A CENTRES WITH A COMBUNICATION
75% 100% +20%

CLOSE-OUT

SENIOR LEADERSHIP
HEALTH & SAFETY
VISITS CONDUCTED

2 PER QUARTER

" New - measurgs anc objeclives 10 be developed and set during 2015
Key: In the graphic above 1he capitals in smaller hexagons indicate internal reporting cycles:
A Annua @ Quarterly M Monthly

O Further detuils of our corporate responsibility [CR) perfermance and our objectives can be found in cur
annual CR Reports available ot wwwi.shanksplc.com/our-responsibilities
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@@ In o chdllenging year, we have
delivered well on confrollable factors,
including our cash performance 99

Toby Woolrych
Group Finance Director

GROUP FINANCE
DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

Our programmes to drive long-term margin expansion have
made good progress, and our strong cash management has
supported our ongoing investment programme for future growth.

Revenue and trading profit

Constant currency revenue in 2014/15 from
continuing activities increased by 1% to
£601.4m (5% reduction at actual rates),
with growth primarity from UK Municipal.
Trading profit on continuing businesses,
before non-trading and exceptional items,
decreased by 19% at constant currency
to £34.3m {25% decrease at actual
rates). The biggest reduction was in Solid
Waste Benelux, with & smaller reduction
in Hazardous Waste and Organics, offset
by growth in UK Municipal. Group central
senvices, which comprise the Group's head
aoffice functions, remained broadly flat on
prior year.

TRADING PROFIT MARGIN

%
2015 5.7
2014 7.2
2013 6.2
2012 YAl
20m 5.9

RETURN ON OPERATING ASSETS'

%
2015 12.2
2014 15.1
2013 14
2012 15.2
201 14.3

) Early yeor numbers are as previously taperied
and inchde discontinued operanons.




Other profit and loss items P

Non-trading and exceptional

items excluded from pre-tax
underlying profits

To enable a better understanding of
undertying performance, certain items are
excluded from trading profit and undertying

profit due to their size, nature or incidence. L

The challenging macroeconomic and
industry conditions continued to result in
significant non-trading and exceptional
iterns. The specific market challenges in
Benelux solid waste markets and the UK
merchant anaerobi¢ digestion market have
resutted in non-cash impairments to historic
gocdwilt balances and to some operating
assets. Likewise, the sharp fall in European
bond yields has resutted in fower discount
rates for certain long-term provisions and

hence an increase in the book values of ®

these provisions as at 31 March 2015 this

has no impact on short to medium termn

cash flows. Finally, our own restructuring

actions have resulted in associated costs.
Total non-trading and exceptional items

from centinuing operations amounted

1o £42.2m, as previously disclosed in

our pre-close trading update in March

(2014: £22.5m). Cash costs are £7.8m [

{2014 £4.5m). These items are further
explained in note 4 to the financial
statements and include:

Impairment of assets of £12.4m (2014:
£3.1m) principally plant and equipment
at the Gent site in Belgium and the
Westcott Park organics facility in the UK;

Goodwill impairment charge of £11.1m
{(2014: £15.3m} relating to Solid Waste
Netherlands;

Increased charge of £7.1m (2014: Enil)
relating to long-term provisions as a
result of the decrease in the discount
rate due t¢ decline in long-term
government bond yields;

Restructuring charges and associated
costs of £6.5m (2014: £8.7m) relating
to the structural cost reduction
programme including the introduction
of shared service centres in the
Netherlands and Belgium;

Contractual issues in Organics

Canada, including the write off of trade
receivables and associated operating
and legal costs relating to the arbitration
ruling in Ottawa of £3.0m (2014: Enil);

A total charge of £2.3m (2014: Enil) for
a one-off adjustment relating 1o Hecycle
expenditure in UK Municipat contracts;

Onerous contract provisions charge of
£2.1m {(2014: credit of £5.5m) following
the reassessment of our best estimate of
the required provisions;

GROUP SUMMARY

® Amortisation of intangible assets
acquired in business combinaticns of
£1.9m (2014: £2.3m);

& £1.0m (2014: £nil) refating to the costs
asscciated with fires principally at the
Gent site in Belgium;

® Costs of £1.0m (2014 £nil} as a result
of various portfolic activities including
the exit from loss-making Jaartsveld soil
washing activities in the Netherands and
the disposal of environmental services
consultancy in Belgium;

® Acquisition costs of £0.6m (2014: £nil);

& A release of £0.1m following the
completion of the disposal of excess
unprocessed waste at the Gent site in
Belgium {2014: charge of £1.7m);

& Arelease of £0.8m (2014 £1.0m)
following the final reassessment of the
contingent consideration payable on
a previous acquisition in Netherands
Solid Waste;

@ £1.4m benefit following the final
negotiated exit from the loss-making
Hygea contract (2014: credit of £2.2m);

& A cone-off profit of £4.4m for UK
associates o recognise profits that
ought to have been recognised in the
past (2014: £nil}; and

@ Financing fair valug measurements credit
of £0.1m (2014: £0.3m}.

REVENUE TRADING PROFIT
CONTINUING YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
OPERATIONS
MaRcHIS  archne | CAANSE CMSE  marci s warcn e e CHANGE
Em tm y y Em tm ¥ %
Solid Waste Benelux 29712 3232 % 1% 1.9 19.7 -40% -35%
Huzordous Waste 1380 148.2 % 0% 164 199 18% 1%
Orgenics 0.0 342 12% 5% 34 41 17% 8%
UK Manicipol 1446 1375 5% 5% 100 9.2 9% 9%
Group central services - - (7.4) {7.3) 1% -1%
Intersegment revenue 8.4 9.0 - -
Totaf 5014 6334 5% 1% kL K] 456 25% -19%

CER = o constanl exchange rate. Comparatives for 2014 hove been restated following the adopnon of IFRS 11 and the associated requirement fo equity cccount for joint vennures
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e GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

The operating loss on a statutory basis,
after taking account of all non-trading
and exceptional items, was £12.4m
(2014: profit of £23.1m).

tecking forward, the structural cost
programme will complete in the first
six months of 2015/16 and no further
restructuring costs will be taken to non-
trading itemms thereafter unless announced
as part of a new and material change
programme. We further anticipate a
significant reduction in other non-trading and
exceptional items assuming that the economy
and our core markets are now stabilised.

Net finance costs

Net finance costs, excluding the change

in the fair value of derivatives, decreased
by £2.4m in the year. On core bormowings
there were decreases in interest rates with
the fut impact of the second Belgian retail
bond, lower loan amortisation costs and
lower discount unwing charges. The higher
level of finance income is due to an increase
in interest receivable on financial assets
relating to PF/PPP contracts as the build
programme for the BDR and Wakefield

contracts progresses and this is mirrored
by an increase in interest payable on
non-recourse PFI/PPP debt.

Profit betore tax from continuing
operations on a statutory basis including the
impact of non-trading and exceptional items
was a loss of £20.5m compared to a profit
of £7.6m last year.

Taxation
The taxation charge for the year on
continuing operations was a credit of £2.3m
(2014: charge of £5.8m). The underlying tax
charge of £1.7m includes a £3.0m credit
from additional recognition of tax losses
in the UK business as a result of greater
vigibility of future profits under the long-term
UK Municipal contracts. Excluding this
additional deferred tax credit, the underlying
effective rate was 21.7%, down from 24.2%
last year, There is a tax credit of £4.0m on
the non-trading and exceptional items of
£42.2m as a significant proportion of these
are non-taxable.

The Group statutory loss after tax and
including all discontinued and excepticnal
items was therefore £16.9m {2014: £28.2m),

Our Klok Commercial
Waste operation in
the Netherlands

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Underlying EPS from continuing operations,
which excludes the effect of non-trading

and exceptional iterms, decreased by 7% at
constant currency (12% at actual rates) o
5.0p per share (2014: 5.7p}. Basic EPS from
continuing operations decreased from a profit
of 0.4p per share to a loss of 4.6p per share.

Dividend

The Board is recommending an unchanged
final dividend per share of 2.35p. The final
dividend will be paid on 31 July 2015 to
shareholders on the register on 3 July 2015.
Total dividend cover, based on earnings
before non-trading and exceptional itemns
from continuing operations, is 1.4 times
(2014 1.7 times).




Cash flow performance

A summary of the total cash flows in
relation to core funding is shown in the
table below.

The free cash flow conversion has
reduced year on year, principally as a
result of the higher level of replacement
capital spend. The ratic of replacement
capital spend to depreciation increased
from 48% last year to 75% this year in
line with previous guidance. There have
been a number of invesiments across the
Divisions including a truck replacement
programme in Benelux Solid Waste and
operational improvements at ATM, including
the replacement of the ESP flue gas cleaner.
The working capital movernent in the prior
year was boosted by a favourable unwind
following the exit from UK Sclid Waste. The
increase in cash interest and tax spend in
the year was due to higher tax payments as
a result of timing in the Netherlands. Interest
payments are slightty lower this year as the
first annwal payment for the 2013 retail bond
is compensated by non-repeat of £2.4m of
arrangement and adviser fees as a result of

Growth capital spend of £12.8m was
principally in Hazardous Waste Division
and included a progortion of the ESP
flue gas cleaner and the initial spend on
the Theemsweg Total Care centre and
additional storage tanks at ATM. In the
current year the acquisitions and disposal
spend included the Hazardous Waste
purchase in Farmsum in the north of the
Netherands and a small tuck-in acquisition
in Solid Waste Netherlands net of proceeds
from other portfolio activities. The value in
the prior year included the proceeds net
of costs from the sale and closure of UK
Solid Waste activities and other disposals
in Solid Waste Benelux. in the prior year
PFl funding included the subordinated debt
investment made in April 2013 in relation
to the Cumbria PPP contract following full
service delivery. Similar injections into the
BOR and Wakefield contracts are due to
be paid by Septernber 2015. The other
category includes the deficit funding on
the closed UK defined benefit pension
scheme along with other non-trading
cash flows.

the 2014 refinancing activity.
CASH FLOW WARCHIS  WARCH 14
EBITDA 728 82.9
Warking copital movement and other n.n . 93
Ner replacement capital expenditure [29.3) (20.9)
Inferest and tax (18.4} {14.8)
Underlying free cosh flow 134 56.5
Growth capital expenditure 28 (18.6)
Acquisitions and disposats (1.5 iz
Restucturing spend (7.6 .3
Dividend paid {13.7) (i3.n
PEl funding 73 9.3
Oeher (52 25
NET CORE CASH FLOW (24.7) 10.2
Fre cosh flow comversion 69% 137%

Investment achivities
and performance
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Investment programme

The Group has had a stated strategy of
investing in sustainable waste management
infrastructure, with a target pre-tax return of
15-20% on fully operational assets (post-tax
return of 12-15%). As at 31 March 2015,
£182m has been invested and allocated.
The divisiona! split of the investment and
allocated to date has been: Organics £112m
{61%), Hazardous Waste £36m (20%]) and
Solid Waste Benelux £34m (199%).

At 31 March 2015, £93m (2014: £90m)
of the investment portfolio was considered
fully operational and it delivered a
pre-tax return of 18.1% (2014: 18.6%).
The portfolio as a whole delivered a
pre-tax return of 14,9% (2014 15.2%).

As previously identified, the pre-tax return
has varied according to division, with
strong returns from the Hazardous Waste
investments and lower retums from the
QOrganics portfolio as assets ramp up and
are affected by market volatility.
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GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REVIEW

CONTINUED

UK Municipal programme

To support growth of the UK Municipal
division's PFl and PPP contracts, the Group
is currently undertaking a large investrment
programme. In the year ended 31 March
2015 our PFl financial assets increased

by £82.6m to £278.2m as a result of
construction at BDR and Wakefield. The
asset increases are broadly matched by
increases in non-recourse debt that is lent
direcity to the PFI funding entities with no
recourse to the Group as a whole. We expect
our PFl financial assets to increase by a
further £15m and peak as the construction
on these projects is finalised ready to enter
full service delivery. The asset value will then
start to fall as principle is repaid in full service.
The build on the Derby contract wil not be
reflected in financial assets as we hold our
interest in this contract in a joint venture.

Group retum on assets

The Group return on operating assets
{excluding debt, tax and goodwill} from
continuing operations has decreased from
15.1% at 31 March 2014 10 12.2% at

31 March 2015 in line with the downtum

ir Benelux Solid Waste and the lower
performance in Hazardous Waste in the first
half. The total Group post-tax retum on capital
employed remained unchanged at 6.0%.

Treasury and cash management

Core net debt and gearing ratios
The ret core cash outflow of £24.7m has
been reduced by a positive exchange effect
of £23.5m on the translation into Sterling
of the Group's Euro and Canadian Dollar
denominated debt which resulted in core
debt at £155.0m compared with £152.9m
at 31 March 2014. This represents a
covenant ratio of 2.3 times EBITDA which
is well within the amended banking limits of
3.5 times. The value of non-recourse debt
lent directly to the PFI funding entities was
£222.6m (2014: £151.2m).

Debt structure and strategy
Core borrowings, excluding PFI/PPP non-
recourse borrowings, are almost all long
term with the exception of the 2010 Retail
Bond which is due for repayment in Octcber
2015. At 31 March 2015, the Group's bank
financing comprised a €180m multicurrency
revolving credit facility with seven major
banks entered into on 31 January 2014
and expiring in January 2019. At 31 March
2015, €51m equivalent of the facility
was drawn. The margin varies on a ratchet
fixed by the Net Debt:EBITDA ratio.
The financial covenants of this facility were
amended in March 2015 to de-risk the
impact on leverage and total net worth of
rapidly moving exchange rates in a period of
higher than usual investment. The principal
covenants are the ratio of Net Debt:EBITDA
of less than 3.5:1, interest cover of not less
than 3.0:1 and a minimum net worth of
£200m. The five year retail bonds of €100m,
issued in October 2010 to investors in
Belgium and Luxembourg have an annual
coupan of 5.0%, are quoted on the London
Stock Exchange and are due for repayment
in October. The further €100m six year retail
bonds issued in July 2013 have an annual
coupon of 4.23%. The senior notes issued
under the Group’s Pricoa private placement
were €40m of seven year senior notes
issued in April 2011 at a fixed interest rate
of 5.025%.

The Group also has accass to £26.8m
of undrawn uncommitted working capital
facilities with various banks. Cash flows are
pooled at a country level and each operation
is tasked with operating within the limits of
the locally available working capital facilities.

Each of the Group's PFVPPP projects
has separate senior debt facilities which
contribute approximately B5% of the capital
funding required. These facilities are secured
on the future cash flows of the PFI/PPP
companies with no recourse to the Group
as a whole. Repayment of these facifities,
and any equity bridge facility in respect of the

remaining capital funding, commences when
construction is complete and concludes one
to two years prior to the expiry of the PFI/PPP
contract period. The maximum which could
be drawn down under these facilities at 31
March 2015 was £30.4m. Interest rates are
fixed by means of interest rate swaps at the
time of contract inception. While PFl assets
are under construction, there are periods
when the timing of draw downs from the
non-recourse debt differs from the outflows
required and the Group may temporarily fund
any difference.

Directors’ valuation of PFl portfolio
The Directors' valuation of the PFI porticiio is
based on the net present value of the future
cash flows of the PFI contracts and has
remained constant at £110m. The Directors’
valuation is not recorded in the Group’s
balance sheet.

Retirement benefits

The Group operaies a defined benefit
pension scheme for certain UK employees
which is closed to new entrants. At 31
March 2015, the net retirement benefit
deficit relating to the UK scheme was
£13.1m compared with £10.5m at 31 March
2014. The increase in the deficit was due
primarily {0 & decrease in the discount rate
being used to value the liabilities. The last
actuarial vajuation of the scheme was at

5 April 2012 and a funding plan of £3.1m
PEr annum Over seven years was agreed
with the trustees. This payment profile will
be reconsidered following the next actuarial
valuation that will be assessed on the
position as at 5 April 2015.

Toby Woolrych
Group Finance Director




MEASURING OUR

PERFORMANCE
TOTAL COST REDUCTION
Em
SOLID WASTE 2015
| " 2014
mprove the
profitability of our 2013
Solid Waoste business
2012
201

HAZARDOUS WASTE

Broaden the
scope of
Hazardous Waste

ORGANICS
Expond the

Organics footprint

UK MUNICIPAL

Grow UK Municipal
long-term contracts

Operoionol cost sovings
Sinycivral cost sovings

PROJECT HOURS AT REYM
HOURS M

2015
2014
2013
2012
20m

ENERGY PRODUCED"
Mwh

2015
2014
2013
2012
20m

* Including energy fram our joint venture in Cumbernauld,

REVENUE
Em

2015
2014
2013
2012
201

2014/15
SOLID WASTE TRADING MARGIN
%
1513 2005 4.0
3728 2014 6.1
3259 2013 49
44 2012 6.8
e 201 78
ATM SOIL VOLUMES
TONNES M
16 2015 1.8
16 2014 1.7
15 2013 1.5
14 2012 1.7
13 200 1.7
TRADING PROFIT FROM ORGANI(S*
£m
729 2015
699 2014
667 2013
594 2012
341 201 3.2

* Ineluding resubs Fram our jaint venture in Cumbamauld.

MARGIN
%
144.6 2015 8.9
137.5 2014 8.7
5.3 2013 8.3
no.z7 2012 5.1
90.6 201 -0.7
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SOLID WASTE BENELUX

OPERATING
REVIEW

RESTORING THE
PROFITABILITY OF THE

DIVISION IN THE FACE

OF INCREASINGLY

CHALLENGING MARKETS

Solid Waoste Benelux is a market leader in the collection and
treatment of solid waste across Belgium and the Netherlands.
We have particular strength in the Randstad in the Netherlands,
and in the Construction and Demolition waste sectors.

Business model

The solid waste market covers the collection,
sorting, treatment and uftimate disposal

of solid waste materials from a range of
sources. The market can be divided into
three main sources of waste: Construction
and Demolition (C&D), Industrial and
Commercial (1&C), and Municipal (where

the latter has not been tied up in a long-
term PFI-type contract).

Shanks’ unique business model in this
market is to focus primarily on the sorting
and treatment phases of the cycle.

We generally collect where necessary to
secure waste volumes, and we dispose
only of the residues that we are unable to
convert into a reusable product or recyclate.
In this way, we ‘make more from waste’
both environmentally and economically. Our
general business model is set out in the
graphic opposite.

We operate Solid Waste businesses
in the Netheriands and Belgium. Each has
a different profile in terms of the source
of waste, which affects its current financial
performance and competitive strategy as
outlined in the following sections.

Market overview

After a successful 2013/14, the 2014/15
financial year proved more challenging with
a further downturn in our core Benelux Solid
Waste markets, as covered in our Chief
Executive's review. The tong-term market
drivers for companies like Shanks that

can deliver market leading recycling rates
remain good. Legislation and regulation
continue to promote increased recycling
rates and to support our ‘waste-to-product’
model. In particular, a new €13 per tonne
incineration tax in the Netherlands was
introduced on 1 January 2015. Itis too
early to observe a material change in
recycling volumes as a result of the new
tax, but we believe that it will enhance
recycling volumes and the demand for

our services over the longer term. The
short-term market conditions remain
affected by continuing overcapacity, low
recyclate prices and competition from both
public and private waste management
operations. The stabilisation of the Benelux
economies and the return of some activity to
the Dutch housing market are encouraging
indicators of a future improvement in the
market, but we do not expect a surge in
waste volurnes arising.

Products and technologies

The Benelux Solid Waste Division operates
a number of technologies in order to recycle
the waste it sources into usable products.
Waste may be delivered to a transfer
station, where it is collected and subjected
to a rough sort before being sent on for
further treatment. The core technology is
the material recycling facility (MRF} which
combines automated sorting technologies
(such as magnets, eddy current separators
and optical sorters to remove recyclates)

Michael van Hulse,
Managing Director, Solid Waste Benelux

STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS

& Commercial Effectiveness

@ Continuous Improvement at
Icova and Van Tuijl

® Netherlands incinerator tax

® Good progress with refining
portfelio in Belgium




along with manual sorting fines. In Gent,
solid recovered fuel (SRF} is being produced
to create a clean fuel for incinerators or
cement kilns. CAD waste passes through
heavier duty processes, including stone
crushers to produce rubble. Our lcova site
further processes specifically collected

(dry) commercial waste into high calorific
lcopower pellets which can be used in
power stations or cement plants. Shanks
also operates businesses that focus on
mono-strearns, such as glass (Van Tuif),
wood (Shanks Wood Products) and paper,
or cardboard (Kluivers). The Hook of Holtand
facility serves the local horticultural market
with composting of green waste and the
treatment of rockwodi, in which flowers and
vegetables are grown. The division also
operates a small Hazardous Waste business
in Belgium, one landfill in each country and
a sand quarry in Belgium. The key products
are as follows:

@ Recyclates (commodities): fermous and
non-ferrous metals, glass, plastics,
cardboard, paper, wood chips.

® Industrial products: rubble, aggregate,
compost, building materials,

@ Power: gas from the landfills, lcopower
pellets, SRF for cement Kilns or high
energy generating incineration.

Recycling rates for the division are over
75% and over 85% for the C&D businesses.
The Benelux Division also has a minority
share, along with other leading waste
companies, in an incinerator in Wallonia.

Strategy
Tha core strategy of the Benelux Solid
Waste Division was to:

@ Return the division to attractive
profitability levels;

SOLID WASTE BUSINESS MODEL

@& Drive cost efficiency through the
completion of the structural cost
programme together with procurement
and continuous improvement initiatives;

& Invest in optimising our commercial
effectiveness 1o take advantage of
market opportunities; and

& Streamline the portfolio to
increase returns.

These aims will continue under the

new organisation structure and will be
enhanced by the addition of our organics
assets in the Nethertands to create the new
Commercial Divisian.

Qur businesses will be managed
separately in Belgium and the Nethertands,
but will work together closely to preserve
synergies. The new organisation will also
provide a fuller range of products to its
customers at lower cost.

COLLECT OR RECEIVE SORT PRODUCE DISPOSE
Sorting ines  Trommels Shredders  Crushers  Balers Incineration
Industriat & Commercial
Caonstruction 8 Demalition
Municipal Magnets  Optical sorters Pelstisers  Compasters Landfil
RECYCLATES PRODUCTS
Solid Compost Wood
Paper Glass recovered fual chips
Plastic Metal Aggregate  |copower
pellats
CUSTOMERS PAY US TO CUSTOMERS PURCHASE WE MINIMISE QUR
TAKE WASTE THAT THEY QUR PRODUCTS RESIDUAL SPEND

CANNOT PROCESS
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OPERATING REVIEW

SOLID WASTE BENELUX

The new
incinerator
tax reinforces
the need for

Financial performance

Following the successful return to growth in
trading profit in 2013/14 due to our structural
cost programme, a further deterioration in
trading conditions in the first half of 2014/15
impacted profitability. Revenues were broadly
flat at constant curency at €379m (down by
8% at actual rates), driven by a competitive
retention of volumes where possible and

the impact in the last quarter of the passing

where they reduced due to lack of SRF
outlets artd weak soil markets. Pricing on
commercial waste streams was impacted by
ongoing price erosion due to the competitive
environment and the renewal of contracts at
lower prevailing market prices. Profitability

of the Cetemn landfill in Belgium declined as
expected, as intake of certain waste streams
ceased in anticipation of closure in 2016.
Costs of central services increased as costs

l"ecydlng- through of the new Dutch incinerator were transferred from the operating units to
tax. Trading profit fell by 35% at constant the new Shared Service Cenires and as a
curmency to €15.2m, with margins falling resutt of lower inter-comparty recharges.
across the Division to 4.0%.
Total Dutch Solid Waste volumes were Operational review
flat on prior year, but there was an adverse The focus of the Solid Waste Benelux
mix of products processed. Undertying Division in 2014/15 continued to be
pricing fell across most segments in the to restore profitability in the face of
first half, but stabilised in the second hatf an increasingly challenging market,
partly as a result of the incinerator tax-related  especially in tha first half of the year.
increases. Recyclate revenues fell Our focus on margins involved both
by €2.5m, with reduced volumes and prices,  commercial effectiveness programmes
particularty in glass. Solid waste volumes and an intensification of our cost
in Belgium were stable except at Gent reduction activities.
FINANCIAL REVENUE TRADING PROFIT
PERFORMANCE
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE (HANGE  MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE CHANGE
€m Em £m X £m Em 11} %
Netherlands Safig Waste 48 2233 1.5 1% 10 1.7 22 -15%
Belgium Solid Waste 105.6 108.7 (3.1 3% 50 &7 (.n -25%
Belgium Others 649 697 (4.8) 7% 99 s {i.6) -14%
Divisionol central servicas - - - 1.7 LA} {28)
Inhirsegment revenue {16.0} (18.3) 23 - - -
Tote] €m 93 3634 0 1% 152 33 (8.1 -35%
Total £m (a1 qverage rute) 2971 32312 (26.0) 1% e 19.7 7.8 A%
TRADING MARGIN RETURN ON OPERATING ASSETS
Nesherands Salid Wasta 5.3% 6.4% 5.0% 6.5%
Belgium Sebd Woste 7% 2%
30.3% LYk ]
Belgiurn Other 15.3% 16.5%
Total 405 41% 03% 11.3%

Comparatives for 2014 have bean restated tollowing the adoption of IFRS 11 and the associated reguirement to equily account for joint ventures.




The goal of the commercial effectiveness
programme is to focus on the most
profitable market segments where we
have a sustainable and strong competitive
positicn. The programme additionally used
in depth data analysis 1005 to identity
pricing anomalies and to refine our product
costing and pricing methodolegies. The
benefits of the programme were particularly
felt as we managed the pass through of
the new incinerator tax in the Netherlands
from 1 January 2015, ensuring that the
full additional costs were passed on to
waste producers without a material loss
of business to date. In the Netherlands we
renewed our aational contract with Unilever,
won a three year contract with ZorgService
X and were selected as the preferred
supplier by Koninklike Horeca Nederland
(KHN), the largest hospitality industry
organisaticn in the Netherlands.

On the offtake side, we were pleased
in January 2015 to sign a new five year
contract with Heidelberg Cement Group
in Sweden for our Icopellet fuel. In Belgium,
we renewed our strategic long-term

municipal collection contract with the
City of Liege, albeit on materially lower
terms. We also won sorting and waste
treatment contracts with the municipalities
of Anderlecht and Molenbeek, and renewed
total waste management contracts with
Caterpillar and Exxon.

Owerall, our structural cost programme
approached its final phases on track.
The two new shared senvice centres are
performing well and are both reducing
cost and improving financial controls.
We delivered procurement savings totaliing
around €1m and reduced headcount in
leova, Viiko, Kortemark and Gent with an
annual benefit of €1.8m. As previously
announced, we have also begun to
introduce continuous improvement as
a core tool to the business. In 2014/15
we completed specific projects at the
sorting line in Van Viet Groep and also
in logistics and lcopellst manufacture at
lcova. Going into the new financtal year we
are initiating our first complete conversion
to lean manufacturing processes of two
sites: Van Viiet Groep and Gent.

The focus of the Division remains primarily
on improving profitability and returns and
we have deployed capital where it will
drive improved margins or lower costs,

In February 2015 we commissioned a new
high volume sorting line for construction and
demolition (C&D) waste at our Wateringen
piant in the Netherlands. This €5m facility
can process 135,000 tonnes of waste per
annum, replacing three smaller and older
lines {one of which was destroyed by fire

in 2013 at Viiko). The new line will improve
the quality of the products we sort and will
reduce costs significantty.

In Belgium, we have also made good
progress in refining the porticlio. We
successiully exited our municipal contract
with Hygea in December 2014, releasing
the related onerous contract provision.

We sold a non-care environmental advisory
services business, Enviro+. We were also
abie to deliver increased green bio-gas
production at cur Cetemn landfill as a result
of a technology coltaboration with local
Universities, called Project Minerve.

Qur Commercial
Waste operafions
in Rotterdam,
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HAZARDOUS WASTE

orcaic  |INVESTING FOR
GROWTH WITH
ATTRACTIVE RETURNS

We are a European leader in the treatment
of contaminated soil and water and a leader
in industrial cleaning in the Netherlands.

Business model

The Hazardous Waste Division is made

up of two businesses: Reym and AT,
Reym is a leading industrial cleaning
company in the Netherlands, also taking
the leading role in promoting the Shanks
Total Care solution (cleaning, transport and
waste management} tor heavy industry,
petrochemical sites, oil and gas production
{both on and offshore) and the food industry.
ATM is one of Europe's largest sites for the
treatment of contaminated soil and water,
as well as for the disposat of a broad range
of hazardous waste such as waste paints
and solvents. The business model is shown
in the graphic opposite.

Reym's highly experienced and trained
cleaning teams use specialist equipment to
deliver a refiable and safe cleaning process
in a market where the cost of safety and
quality is of paramount importance. ATM is
a leader in water and soll treatment because
of: the cost advantages provided by its fully
integrated plant processes; its waterside
focation for the cleaning of ships; and its
excellent record of compliance with the many
environmental controls and permits required
in the hazardous waste market.

Market overview

The core market drivers for the Hazardous
Waste Division are industrial activity in

the Benelux, particularly in the Rotterdam
region, coupled with construction and site
remediation activity across Europe.

Industrial activity in the Benelux has
stabilised in the last year, and we have seen
continuing robust activity in Rotterdam, which
we beliave is set for steady growth in the
future. This has resulted in good demand
for industrial cleaning services and growth in
waterside waste volumes arising. However,
this is somewhat offset by margin pressure
as the falling oil price has put pressure on
our customers in the oil and petrochemical
sectors. A sustained slump in oil price is
likely to impact volumes and prices geing
forward. New legislation coming into force in
2015 to forbid the degassing of fumes from
ships' tanks to air has driven volume growth
through our newly commissioned degassing
unit at ATM.

The votume of contaminated soil available
for treatment in Europe has been affected by
the budgetary constraints of govemments,
This resufts in a continued downward
pressure on pricing. However, the long-term STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS
pipeline remains sound, with many sites
earmarked for brownfigld redevelopment.

Jonny Kappen, Managing Director,
!-ruzcrdous Woste

Short-term decreases in the volume of soil ® Commissioning of hew flue gas
available are ofiset by increased volumes cleaning equipment

of tar containing asphalt grit as a resutt of #® Construction of three new

a successful industry lobbying campaign 10,000m? water tanks

to have this material, produced during road @ Development of new

surface replacerment, reated within the Theemsweg Total

Netherlands, albeit at lower pricing. We have Care facility

also opened up new market opportunities ® Acquisition of operational site
and technologies, such as the use of in northern Netherlands
ultrascnic cleaning.




Products and technologies
The Reym business operates bespoke and
specidised cleaning equipment in order to
serve its clients. These include trucks for
onshore work and specialist transportable
units for offshore work. Our solutions use
ultrasonic clearing, high pressure cleaning,
vacuum cleaning, chemical cleaning and
decontamination. Liquid waste streams
{including those created by the cleaning
process) can be collected and transported
to one of our waste treatment facilities.
Reym operates a fleet of around 250
vehicles and units from sites across
the Netherlands. Most of these sites are
also equipped and ficensed for treating
hazardous waste.

Contaminated soif can be cleaned by
washing or treated thermaly (depending

CUSTOMER

CLEAN

REYM

on contamination levels). We operate a
principal thermal treatment facility with one
rnilion tonnes of capacity. The ATM unit
passes contaminated soil through a kiln
in order to produce clean and reusable
soil, with the effluent gases being carefully
scrubbed of al contaminants.
Contaminated water is removed from
ships at our jetty at ATM or received from
trucks, which can themsehves then be
cleaned on site. The water is put through
a decanter to remove solids and oils; it
is then treated in five biological treatment
tanks in which bacteria cleans the
contaminants and produces clean water,
Paint and solvent waste, along with
sludges remaved from the contaminated
water, is treated in a gasification process
to produce largely inert ash.

HAZARDOUS WASTE BUSINESS MODEL

TRANSPORT

Contaminated Paint 8
waler soheni wasie

Clganing generates

Heavy industry (Patrochemical)
Industry & Shipping
Industry & Government
Construction & Government

contaminated water

Contaminatea
30il

GROWING REGULATION

We have

opened up
new market
opportunities
such as ship
degassing.
PRODUCE DISPOSE
Claanad water
Bio water
traatment
tnert ash
Gastication Thermal
treatment
Clean soil
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OPERATING REVIEW

HAZARDOUS WASTE

Strategy currency at €176m. Growth in volumes
The strategy of the Hazardous Waste at Reym and in scil processing at ATM
Division is to continue to grow in target was oftset by lower pricing across the o
markets through capacity expansion, Division and increased costs in the first Record SOII
particularty in water treatment. Specificalty, half due to the operational challenges
the strategy is to: associated with the commissioning of volumes were
& Invest in environmental excellence ::ugzﬁqgﬁmem. Trading profi fell by 11% Processed ﬂlOﬂg

and increasing treatment capacity; Ag forecast, ATM recovered strongly in WIfh broadlY
® Expand the range of inputs requiring the second half of the year following its similar levels of

thermal treatment, operational challenges. Record soit volumes

were processed along with broadly similar waste water.

® Broaden commercial coverage and

levels of wast ter, al b | i
geographic footprint; and evels of waste water, although lower prices

wera experienced across all product lines

@ Drive further synergies and in competitive market conditions.
productivity gains. Reym delivered a competitive response
to challenging markets where our customers
Financial performance in the oil and petrochemical markets are
Mazardous Waste experienced a mere reducing activity or seeking to lower the
challenging year in 2014/15 after several cost of their cleaning and waste
years of undenying growth. This was caused  management as a result of the collapse
by operational challenges at ATM in the in oil price. Despite ongoing and intense
first half, and market pressures at Reym in price pressure, Reym increased revenues
the second half due 1o the lower oil price. and in 2014/15 revenues exceeded
Revenues were broadly flat at constant €100m for the first time.
FINANCIAL REVENUE TRADING PROFIT
PERFORMANCE
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE CHANGE MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE CHANGE
€m £m tm X €m fm €m %
Hozardous Waoste 176.2 175.8 04 % 6 KB a0 1%
Divisional tentral services - - - (1.6) @2 0.6
Total €m 176.2 1758 04 0% 1o 15 (2.5 1%
Totel Sm (ot avemge rate) 1380 148.2 (1.0 % 164 19.9 (3.5 -18%
TRADING MARGIN RETURN ON OPERATING ASSETS
Tota! 11.9% 13.4% 5.7% 7%

N




Operational review

ATM, our hazardous waste treatment
site, has an advantaged location and cost
positicn with regard to its soil and water
treatment processes, which are therefore
the focus of investment to increase
capacity and capability. End markets were
competitive throughout the year, with
ongoing price pressure in both soil and
water treatment segments. However, our
advaniaged position allowed us 1o continue
1o secure good quantities of contaminated
sail for treatment.

During the year we commissioned
new equipment on the soil line to reduce
ernigsions significantly and thereby increase

potential capacity. As a result, we processed
record quantities of contaminated soil in

the final quarter of the year, after reduced
throughput in the first half due to operational
issues. We will also complete, in May 2015,
the construction of three 10,000m? water
storage tanks, which will doute storage
capacity and thereby increase potential
autput and operational efficiency. In

March, we reduced processing of packed
chemical waste through our pyrolysis line

in order to mitigate potential uncontrolied
contamination from the waste, at a cost of
around €0.4m; we will reintroduce packed
chemical waste processing in a planned
way through the first half of 2015/18.

Other investments have included installing
a new boiler for ship cleaning and a first
ship degassing line in anticipation of new
regulations to limit ship degassing to air
that will come into effect in January 20186.
We are also investing in our people and
organisation to meet Seveso Il criteria.
Reym, our high end industrial cleaning
business, continued to focus on expanding
its range of services in order to offset price
and volume declines in industrial cleaning
activities. This has included further roll-out
of the Shanks Total Care solution in which
industrial cleaning and the transport and
treatment of both hazardous and non-
hazardous waste can be managed under
a single contract. We are investing €10m
to support this initiative in Rotterdam, with
the development of our new Theemsweg
site on time and on budget. At year-end,
the new depot was complete and being
occupied, with the waste reception and
storage facility on track for commissioning
in the first half of 2015/16. We additionally
purchased an operational site in Farmsum,
in the northern Netherlands, for €3.8m
in January 2015. This site already has
permits to allow a number of storage
and treatment processes to take place.
Our Reym technology centre, located
nearby at Veendam, has developed and
launched a new ultrasonic cleaning unit
which will be initially installed at Farmsum.

ty instulled oquip on the
thermal soil treatment lina ot ATM,
which operates with reduced

issions and d copacity
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ORGANICS

EXPANDING OUR
FOOTPRINT OF

OPERATING
REVIEW

ADVANCED ORGANIC
TREATMENT ASSETS

The Organics Division renewed key contacts in
the Netherlands, won a major 25-year contract
in Canada and sow significant performance
improvements in Belgium and Scotland.

Business model

Organic waste is the most environmentally
damaging form of waste to be sent to landfill,
because it decomposes to create methane
which is a harmiful greenhouse gas (21 times
worse than carbon dioxide). The Organics
Division offers a sustainable alternative by
treating organic waste, turning it into green
energy, compost and fertiliser.

The division receives green waste (for
example, garden waste) and food waste
from both municipalities and commercial
businesses. [t receives a gate lee for treating
the waste, and income from the electricity
and heat produced and associated subsidies
in some territories. The remaining output is
used as fertiliser and generates a nominal
income or cost on disposal, depending upon
quality and territory. The business model is
shown in the graphic opposite.

Qur principal organic technologies
and assets were purchased in 2007 with
the acquisition of Orgaworld, a leading
Dutch organic waste treatment company.
Orgaworld employs a design, build, own and
operate model, unusual in the sector, which
we believe offers a significant competitive
advantage. This business model enables
us to design facilites based on our deep
operational experience and this tight linkage

leads to continuous improverment in faclity
productivity and gas vields. Each project

is different, depending upon its feedstock.
Orgaworld’s technology is secondary to its
adaptability: it provides bespoke customer
solutions based on accurmulated operational
expertise and design capability.

Market overview

The increased diversion of organic waste
from landfill is a key reguiatory target for
governments across the world, with volume
increases forecast over the medium to
long-term in order to meet these goals.

The response of providers o these needs
can create overcapacity in certain regions,
leading to local challenges with securing
of volumes or appropriate pricing. This is
the primary reason we increasingly seek
long-term municipal contracts to support
the decision to build any new facilities and
why part of our Organics Division has been
incorporated within our new Municipat
Division going forward.

In the Netherands, we expect steady
growth in composting volumes available.
However, some overcapacity means that
contract renewals are generally at lower
prices than previously, especially when the
expiring contract was entered into a long

Henk Kaskens,
Managing Director, Organics

STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS

@ Reaching financial close on a
25 year PPP contract with the
City of Surrey in Canada

@ Strong performance
improvement from Beigian
AD facility

& Construction underway to
double capacity at Scottish
joint venture AD facility

& Renewal of key Flevoland
contract in the Netherlands




We are supporting

the successful

implementation
of the Zero Waste
Scotland initiative.

CUSTOMER

Commercial
Municipal

time ago. The wet AD market is more
challenged, with strong competition for
those waste streams that create the largest
quantities of gas resuiting in negative gate
fees for the waste. Growth opportunities
remain for innovative partnerships with
major A-brand custcmers such as those
that we have entered into with Albert Heijn
and Frigsland Campina.

In Canada, we are seeing accelerated
progress in a number of municipal
opportunities across all majer provinces.
With relatively iow current diversion rates,
there is a good prospect of strong growth
in this markat segment in the coming
decade. In the UK, the Zero Waste Scotland
initiative has demonstrated the impact of
government action in promoting waste
diversion, with an increase in organic waste
tonnages delivered to our joint venture
Cumbernauld AD facility.

Products and technologies

We operate two main technologies for
the treatment of organic waste: AD and
tunnel composting.

AD can be performed in a wet or dry
process. In the wet AD process, AD
operates in a similar process to a digestive
tract. Depackaged food slurry is fed into
large steel digester tanks full of bacteria,
which break down the organic waste 1o
produce methane and digestate. The
methane is used as fuel in engines that
produce electricity (and heat, where the
latter has an economic use). The digestate
is dewatered where possible and treated
to become a fertiliser, while the water is
cleaned and discharged. Dry AD likewise
produces green efectricity from the same
biological process but in a dry state and
without the subsequent need to dewater.

Tunnel composting is an accelerated
compasting technology which uses forced
aeration to process food, garden waste and
other types of waste into compost.

ORGANICS BUSINESS MODEL
INPUT SORT PRODUCE DISPOSE
Composting
Food and Studges
supermarksi
Shred and
depackage Digestate
Green waste Indtustisial Anaerabic
tals digastion
PRODUCTS
Green Compost

elactncity
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OPERATING REVIEW

ORGANICS

Strategy
The core strategy of the Organics Division

was to:

@& Maximise returns from existing assets by
delivering excellent operating performance
and securing long-term contracts;

& Develop the North American apportunity;

Financial performance

Revenues fell by 5% to €38.6m and

trading profit by 8% to €4.4m in line with
expectations. The Netheriands delivered
broadly flat revenues with increased waste
water treatment and record performance from
the CHP engines at Amsterdam offsetting the
impact of material price reductions with the
renewal of the Flevoland contract in June.

The long-term

extension to
the Flevoland
contract has

@ Maintain a feading position with . )
; : However, the price impact with the latter, enabled a
gngollng org?n.lc ! " tment technology combined with technical support for the bids .
evelopments; an in Canada, resulted in a €1.3m fali in profit. project to

@ Develop co-processing with key
A-brand customers.

These aims will continue under the new
organisation structure, with enhanced North
American bidding capabilities from the new
Municipal Division and better customer
support from the integrated Commercial
Division in the Netherlands.

FINANCIAL

In Canada, volumes were broadly flat, with
some weakness in municipal intake, but
strong cost action drove a 12% increase in
trading profit. Other Organics showed strong
proiit growth of €0.9m primarily as a result of
improved performance in Belgium. We also
saw good revenue and profit growth from our
joint venture Cumbernautd plant in Scotland,
which is now equity reported following the
adoption of IFRS11.

upgrade the
Biocel facility.

PERFORMANCE REVENUE TRADING PROFIT
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE CHANGE MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE CHANGE
€m £m €m |2 £m £m X
Netherlonds 187 18.9 0.0 1% 1.6 9 (1.3 A5%
Canada 154 16.0 0.4 % 37 33 04 12%
Other Organics 43 57 (1.4) -25% 0.8 0.1 09 n/o
Divisional central services - - - nn (.2 (0.5
Total €m 386 404 (2.0 5% 44 43 (0.5) 8%
Totel €m (a1 avernge rute) 300 32 40 1% 34 41 on 7%
UK Joint Yenpure (Sm) 246 20 06 30% 07 03 04 124%
TRADING MARGIN RETURN ON QPERATING ASSETS
Netherlands 86% 15.3% 2% 5.1%
Conada nrx 0.86% 10.1% 8.3%
{rther Organics 18.6% -1.8% .2% .3%
Tosal 1.4% 12.1% 4.2% 5.0%

Results for Canada shown at constant currency. Comparatives for 2014 have been restated (ollowing tha adoption of IFRS 11 and! 1he agsociated requirement to equily account for
joint venlures.




Operational review

The Organics Division delivered a robust
performance with key contracts being
renewed, albeit at lower pricing, and the
securing of a 25 year PPP contract with
the City of Surrey in Canada,

In the Netherlands, the business
performed well aperationally, but profits
were adversely affected as expected by
the renewal of two long-term contracts
at materially lower prices. The successiul
long-term exiension to the 25,000
tonne per annum Flevoland contract has
underpinned a project to refurbish and
upgrade the associated Biocel facility in
Lelystad, with a new depackaging line
and new CHP engines being ordered for
commissioning over the summer of 2015.
We were also pleased to win contracts
during the year with the municipality of
Neordenveld and Beneluxve!.

In Canada, the two current municipal
sites detivered an ongoing solid
performance. In Ottawa, we were very
disappointed in July when a long-running

arbitration with the client was awarded
against us and also failed to give clarity
on key contractual issues under debate.
We have appealed the arbitration but have
meanwhile initiated constructive discussions
with the client in order to continue to deliver
a high quality of service going forward.
Our London plant performed well, although
volumes from the City of Toronto were weak
in the second half, impacting profitability.
The losses in revenues arising from our
market challenges were more than offset
by a successful serigs of continucus
improvement and cost reduction initiatives.
The highlight of the year was in
February 2015 when we secured a 25
year PPP contract to design, build, own
and operate a 115,000 tonne composting
and dry AD facility for the City of Surrey
in British Columbia. This facility, the first
of its kind in Canada, will use the City's
organic waste tc generate green bio-
gas to fuel its waste collection fleet as
well as producing high grade compost.
Construction of the CAD$ 50m tacility

will start this summer for commissioning
at the end of 2016. We continue to work
actively to identify other appropriate
expansion opportunities on which to
bid in North America that will leverage
our unigue capabilities both in organic
waste treatment technologies and in the
management and delivery of long-term
municipal contracts.

Our other Organics assets performed
very well during the year. Our Belgian
AD facility delivered a strongly improved
performance in the year, increasing trading
profit by €1m, as a result of an operational
and commercial improvement plan.
Qur Scottish AD Joint Venture, Energen
BioGas, is now equity reported following
our adoption of IFRS11 this year. Improving
local market conditions have caused
a strong increase in both demand and
pricing, with a corresponding improvement
in profitability. We therefore announced in
February that we were investing a further
£5m to double capacity, which will be on
stream in late summer 2015.

Qur Groenmills
AD Facility in the
Netherlands
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UK MUNICIPAL

OPERATING
REVIEW

DELIVERING
OPERATIONAL TARGETS

AND PROGRESSING

INFRASTRUCTURE

PROJECTS

UK Municipal takes municipal waste and diverts as much as
possible from landfill, extracting recyclates, making products
and creating clean fuel and electricity from bio-gas.

Business model
The UK Municipal Division operates waste
treatment fagilities for UK city and county
councils under long-term contracts, typically
25 years. Such contracts are established
primarily to divert waste from landfill in a cost
effective and sustainable way. The capital
cost of the associated infrastructure is
financed with non-recourse bank debt
and in the case of PF, is supported by
central government funding. Both PH and
PPP contracts benefit from guaranteed
revenues and tonnages from the associated
council. The business model is shown in the
graphic opposite.

in a typical PFl or PPP solution, a special
purpose vehicle (SPV) is created to finance
the construction of the treatment assets
and Shanks arranges for a club of banks
to provide funding. Securing this funding is
called ‘Financial Close', at which point 2l
the long-term contracts are signed between
Shanks, the councils, the suppliers and the
banks. This signals the start of the build
phase, in which Shanks may or may not
be the main contractor. Cn compietion and
commissioning of the assets, Shanks will
generally inject up to 20% of the invested
capital of the SPV in the form of subordinated
debt, which should earn a return of around
12% pre-tax,

Once operational, there are two
potential income streams from the PFl or
PPP cantract. Tha first is the incame for
treatment of the waste under the operating
contract, which is signed with Shanks
Waste Management Limited as the supplier.
Success relies not only on excellent
management of the contract and the
meeting of strict diversion targets, but also
on working closely with the customer to
identify improved ways of managing the
waste, to a shared benefit. It is this latter
focus on continuously improving how we
do things that has driven a sustained
increase in the Group margin and,
importanily, a significant saving for the
councils. The operating contract offers the
Group protection from waste volumes and
similar items that have caused challenges
within our Solid Waste Division.

The second cash stream is the interest
from the subordinated debt and uftimately
a dividend stream from the SPV. Shanks
has historically scld the majority of its interest
in its SPVs, following commissicning, to a
third party; so this is cumently a minor part
of our income. However, we maintain an
apen stance on our ownership of current
and future SPV stakes.

Peter Eglinton,
Monaging Director, UK Municipal

STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS

® Cumbria facilities divert nearly
all outputs from landfill

@ Barnsley, Doncaster
and Rotherham (BDR)
commissioning on scheduie
and first fuel to Ferrybridge

® Wakefield facility
progressing well

#® Financial close on
Derby PPP contract

@ Maijor fire at ELWA;
reinstatement well underway




Market overview

The bidding process for major PFI/PPP
opportunities in the UK is largely complete.
Shanks has projects at Barnsley, Doncaster
and Rotherham (BDR) and Wakefield which
are nearing completion of the build ghase.
Additionally, our Derby project began
construction in the period.

Some councils are still seeking a
solution to thelr waste diversion needs,
quite possibly through contracting
spare capacity in existing assets. Our
UK Municipal Division, having therefore
secured ils input waste, then competes
in @ number of downstream markets,
in particular with regard to the provision
of salid recovered fuels to cement
manutacturers and refuse derived fuels
to energy from waste comgpanies.

A propaortion of these disposal routes
are secured under long-term agreements.

COLLECT OR RECEIVE

UK City & County Councils

Green Black bag Dry Anagerobic  Mechanical
waste waste recyclate Magnets  Optical sorters digestion bialogical
RECYCLATES PRODUCTS
Paper Glass Solid Graen

Plastic

Products and technologies

The overall goal of all PFl or PPP contracts
is to maximise recycling and diversion
from landfil. Each contract will involve a
bespoke solution to meet the needs and
preferences of the customer, This will

generally include the operation of household

waste recycling centres (HWRCs) and
MRFs to sort incoming waste streams

into recyclates. Shanks has an exclusive
contract with A2A (formenty Ecodeco),

a leading European waste engineering
company, to operate mechanical biological
treatment (MBT} facilities in the UK. These
treat the residual waste, shredding and
drying it to produce a high calorific fuel
called solid recovered fuel (SBF), which
can be burned as a fossil fuel substitute in
cement kilns, or refuse derived fuel {(RDF}
which can be incinerated to produce
electricity. Rermaining organic elerments can
be composted to secure further diversion
from land!fill or processed by anaerobic
digestion {AD} to produce electricity.

UK MUNICIPAL BUSINESS MODEL

SORT PRODUCE

Shredding

Sorting lines Trommels

recovered fuel  electricily

Mazal

The overall
goal of PFl or
PPP contracts
is to maximise
recycling and
diversion from

landfill.

DISPOSE

Incineration

Landtill Digestale/
compost
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OPERATING REVIEW

UK MUNICIPAL

Strategy
The core strategy of the UK Municipal

Division was to:

Qur £200m build

® Deliver sustained operationat excellence

programmes under our current contracts;
at BDR and ® Successfully commission the two major
. contracts which are currently ending
Wakefield their build phase and build and
are close to commission our Derby facility which
. is at an earlier stage;
completion.

® Remain alert to opportunities to assist
other potential customers without a
current solution to their waste diversion
requirements; and

& Continue to bid for outstanding contracts
where we feel we have an advantage.

These aims will continue with the

formation of the new Municipal Division
which brings together the UK and Canadian
businesses. The combination of these
businesses has enhanced capabiliies

and better growth prospects.

Financial performance

UK Municipal revenues grew strongly during
the year, increasing by 5% to £145m,
primarily from Derby and Cumbria. Trading
profit increased by 9% in the year to £10m,
with growth primarily as a result of increased
diversion rates.

Operational review
UK Municipal had a good year, achieving its
operational targets while making excellent
progress on its construction programme.
There was a good underlying performance
in core operating contracts. The Division
delivered record diversion during the
year and in Cumbria the two Mechanical
Biological Treatment (MBT) facilities were
ahle to divert nearly all outputs from landfill.
Losses continued to reduce in the Dumfries
and Galloway contract. Off-take markets
tor our residual fuels remain dynamic and
at times challenging: increases in Dutch
incinerator prices being somewhat offset by
the weakening Euro. Central costs increased
over prior year as a result of the increased
cost of insurance, growth in maintenance
capability and restoration of incentives.

FINANCIAL REVENUE TRADING PROFIT
PERFORMANCE
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
MARCH 15 MARCH 14 CHANGE CHAWGE  MARCH 15 WARCH 14 CHANGE CHANGE
£m tm tm 4 £ tm fm %
UK Manicipal 1446 137.5 Al 5% 150 13.1 19 15%
Divisiana| cenwel services - - - {5.0) (39 (R}
Total 1446 137.5 11 5% 10.0 92 0.8 %

TRADING MARGIN

Total 6.9% 67%




Our new BDR facility in Rotherham, UK

In August 2014 a major fire tock place
at the Frog Island facility, part of our ELWA
contract. The fire badly damaged one of
the three drying halls and the refinement
section which serves all three halls. The
site was partially back in action within
three months and will be fully reinstated by
January 2016. The financial impact was to
a large extent mitigated by insurance cover.

Qur customers in UK Municipal are local
councils, who are increasingty impacted
by government austerity programmes.

As a result, they are under increasing
pressure to maximise the value of their
PF| contracts. We are working hard with
them on identifying where costs can

be reduced and extra diversion can be
achieved. We have therefore initiated
programmes in continuous improvement
and procurernent that are expected to
protect against customer pressures and
are implernenting systems and processes
to ensure that we continue o be compliant
with our customers' requirements.

The £200m build programmes at
Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham
{BDR) and Wakefield have made very
good progress and are close to completion.
At BOR the bio-drying hall has started
the commissioning process on schedule,
taking in its first waste in February 2015
and the following month providing the
first RDF fuel to the new multi-fuel energy
plant at Ferrybridge for its commissioning
programme. Full service commencement
is expected on schedule in July 2015.
The construction of the new waste facilties
at Wakefield is also progressing well.

We also secured financial close on the
£145m Derby PPP contract. As disclosed
last year, we have extended our interim
contract to provide senvices to Derby City
and Derbyshire County Gouncils until
31 March 2017. The income for the next
two years will be at a lower rate, to reflect
changing circumstances, and this will
reduce the annual profit on the interim
contract from April 2015,

The Division
delivered record
diversion during

the year.
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SHANKS GROUP pl

PEOPLE

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015

©© We are committed to building our
highly-skilled people capability across
the Group to enhance our operations

and accelerate our path to growth L)

Michelle Cummins
Group HR Director

DEVELOPING
OUR PEOPLE TO
ACCELERATE GROWTH

The restructuring of our organisation has created exciting
opportunities for our people to grow in their roles.

ur people are right at the
heart of our business.
Through their unique
skill-sets, knowledge
and commitment to our
business, they form the foundation for what
we do and the way that we do it. Having
the right people in place and ensuring
that they are supported, developed and
motivated is cructal to our success. We
aim for our team to accelerate growth by
delivering value to our customers, engaging
with our local communities and generating
returns for our shareholders.
In our new structure, we have
approximately 3,500 employees working
in three divisions across the Group. Our
teams work together at a local, divisional
and Group level to ensure that we share our
knowledge, skill and technical know-how to
benefit us all. We provide our people with
a safe and inspiring workplace, along with

the tools and training required to support
them in achieving their maximum potential.
We are constantly monitoring and acting on
feedback to improve our communication
channels and working to engage with our
pecple through a variety of means. We
have also recently dedicated significant
effort towards supporting cur people
through the divisional restructuring
changes, as the shape of our business
has evolved to align with our customers
and markets.

Qur team at Sharks is a unigue mix of
industry experts and fresh talent from
other sectors. This combination makes
us stronger as a team, where new startars
share fresh perspectives and bring best
practice from other sectors to supplement
the knowledge of our existing long-
serving and dedicated teams. As we have
restructured our organisation to be more
focused on our customers and markets,




Our people have
unigua skillsers,

and tommitment
to our business

this has brought exciting new opportunities
for our people to grow in their roles.

Qur recent divisional restructure invotved
seven internal promgetions and 24 rcle
changes, demonstrating our commitment
towards developing our people.

We believe key differentiators in today's
highly competitive market are our people's
passion, their unique skills, their teamwork
and their resilience. Qur pecple take real
personal acceountakility for their work and
are driven by our vision to be 'the most
respected waste-to-product company'. It is
therefore vital that we continue to invest in,
suppeort, develop and engage our people
now and in the years ahead.

The Board and Group Executive
Committee are determined to achieve
Shanks' goals at pace and to outperform
in our markets. To do this, we have
identified four levers whare we will focus
organisational and leadership effort:

® Creating 'The Shanks Journey' which
defines our shared vision and approach
underpinned by living our values;

@ Evolving our organisation to meet changing
markets and customer demands;

@ Engaging and supporting our people
to grow through change; and

® Improving the development and
recruitment of talent.

The Shanks Jourmey

We want to grow our businesses and
work successfully together atong the way.
To do this it is important for us to have a
shared view of where Shanks is going and
on how we will get there. We therefore
launched a new purpose, vision, approach
and new values under the banner of the
‘Shanks Journey’.

Over the last year, we have been working
with the Group Executive Committee and
Senior Leadership Team to shape the
Shanks Journey and to launch it within
the business. The Shanks Joumey was
launched alongside our *Pulse’ employee
engagement survey which gave our teams
tangibte results to help them create practical
action plans for improvemerit. The survey
results showed that Shanks as a whole
outperformed the peer group benchmark
in terms of employee engagement. The
three main themes for improvermnent
were communication, development
and recognition. The Group Executive
Committee gave a personal undertaking to
focus on improving communication within
the business and have taken a range of
steps to do this. This has included initiating
breakfast meetings, increasing the use of
video, launching listening forums and blogs.
These improvements have allowed us to
get closer to achieving our vision to be 'the
most respected waste-to-product company’
by ensuring our people are fully engaged
with our purpose, vision and approach.

Weo do all we can o
ensure our poople work
in a safe environment
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PEOPLE

CONTINUED

GENDER DIVERSITY

The foundation
for everything we
do is our common

values.

12% 1 14%

OF OUR WORKFORCE
ARE FEMALE

OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT  OF THE BOARD MEMBERS
ARE FEMALE ARE FEMALE

QOur values

The foundation for everything we do is cur
common values. They are the basis for the

Our evolving business

At the beginning of the new 2015/16
financial year we implemented a new

@ Accelerating cross-divisional teamwork
to improve mutual growth and increase
knowledge-shaning (on issues such as fire

way that we behave and the way that we
make decisions. Our values outline what is
important to us, how we operate and what
differentiates us from our competition.

They demonstrate that ‘how' we do
things is just as important as ‘what' we
do. Embedding these values into our daily
working lives allows us to create a unique
identity which meets the expectations of
our people and our stakeholders.

We have six cere values, and to ensure
that they are easily remembered we created
the mnemonic, IMPACT, This mnemonic
also reflects the fact that our values have an
impact on all aspects of our business.

OUR VALUES

integrity Making more
from waste

We commil to We believe that

Shanks divisional structure to align with our

customers, share capabilities and accelerate

growth, In addition to the new structure, we
have taken a number of decisive actions to

realign our business with the opportunities for

growth. These changes have included:

® Restructuring Shanks Group inio
three core divisions, including the
appointment to the Group Executive
Committee of Patrick Laevers as
Managing Director of the Commercial
Belgium business and George Slade
as Group Information Birector;

P A

expertise, off-take working committees
and transport efficiency projects);

® Improving reporting and measurement on

absence and headcount to allow us to
manage the business moere effectively with

being open, honest
ond doing the
right thing, We
have strong ethical
principles which
guide the way that
we make decisions.

waste is & resource.
We use sustoinable
technology to make
valuable products
from what is
otherwise thrown
away,

Passion Accountability
We are excited by We toke Rull
what we do, how we responsibility for
do itand where we what we say ond

ore going. We are
committed ko making
o difference and
pulfing in exira etfort
Io get the job done.

do. We deliver on
our commilments.

accurate information;

@ Introducing both inter-divisional and cross-
divisional mentoring to share knowledge
and accelerate growth; and

@ Fostering cross-divisional excellence
in finance, IT, health and safety,
environmental, communications, finance,
IT, HR and other support functions.

C

Customer focus

We are dedicated
to exceeding our
customers’ needs.
We seek to build
lasting relationships
by delivering

real volue lo our
customers,

T

Teamwork

We believe in
working together

lo achieve shared
goals, This makes
the most of our skills
and maximises the
value we can deliver
lo our customers.

The way that our people live these values is measured through our performance and development
review (PDR) system. This ensures that we give direct and regular feedback on how individuals perform

relative to our values and shared vision.

© more information at www.shanksplc.com/people




Engaging and supporting
our people

Qur business is constantly evolving as
we adapt to market conditions and our
customers' needs. In response to these
developments we continue to implement
appropriate organisational changes across
the Group. During such periods of change
we have strengthened our ability to engage
with our people. To facilitate this we
launched our annual Group-wide employee
engagement survey entitled ‘Pulse’. This
survey allows us o gain an accurate picture
of our employees' perspectives on many
aspects of our business. It also identifies
specific areas where we can work together
to improve performance and engagement
at all levels of the organisation. The first
survey was well received with a higher
than anticipated response rate and has
culminated in over 300 team actions being
created across the Group.

Qur PDR system continues to
engage and support individual and team
development. We have introduced improved
communication channels to ensure that
our people are knowtedgeable about
our business and industry, and also feel
informed and supported in what they do.
These channels include:

® Our Group-wide internal magazine,
Shanks Matters, which is published
five times per year and includes news,
features and interviews on everything
related to our business;

icipal team take o break during voluntary work ot one of Shanks’ Argyll and Bute sites

OUR
EMPLOYEES

APPROXIMATELY

3,500

EMPLOYEES ACROSS
THREE DIVISIONS

@ Divisional newspapers and magazines o
inform cur emplayees about aperations
at a more local level;

@ The SpeakUp whistle-blowing service
which allows our employees to report any
suspected wrong-doing in the workplace
in a completely confidential manner;

@ The implementation of a 360 degree
feedback process which has been
piloted in the UK business with scope
to roll-out to the wider Group;

® The annual Shanks Leadership
Contference which enables managers
from across the Group to come
together to align on priorities and
share best practices;

@ Informal, as well as formal,
communication channels for our
employees through local toolbox talks
and various works councils; and

& Our Group-wide collaboration tool,
Connectls, which has significantly
improved communication, skills and
knowledge sharing, and more generally
with overall productivity.

In addition, we continue to do all we canto
ensure that our pecple are able to work in a
safe environment by dedicating significant
effort to even further reducing our low
accident rate. This includes continually
investing in training and safety summits

to ensure compliance with both regulatory
and internal standards, whie reinforcing
the importance of safety awareness.
Shanks leaders, at all levels and across

all functions, conduct site safety visits

- both to drive concrete safety
improvemenis and to engage our

people on the importance of maintaining

a safe working environment.

The Group Health & Safety Committee
was set up in 2012 to further improve our
safety performance and spread our safety
culture. The Commitiee meets six times
each year to discuss health and safety
best practice and to put procedures in
place to ensure that all of our pecple are
correctly trained and able to work in a
safe environment. The launch of our
Group Health & Safety Award in February
2013 continued its success in 2014.
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PEOPLE

CONTINUED

The focus on health and safety across

the Group has highlighted many useful
cross-divisional initiatives which have been
implemented; such as the use of automated
external defibrillators.

Afttracting, retaining and

developing our talent

We are cormmitted to attracting, growing and
retaining people who have excellent skills and
live our values.

Every employee, new or experienced,
has the chance to progress their career and
to develop new skills at Shanks. Over the
year we have hired a range of high-quality
tatent and have also developed high-potential
managers into broader new roles, This has
resulted in tangible progress at all levels of
the Group. For example, we have invested
in apprenticeships, graduate trainee
and mentoring programmes across the
business. \We have also demonstrated
our commitrment to diversity and the
development of emerging talent.

Ouwr Group-wide PDR system empowers
our peaple to manage their own performance
and development. The system supports
our people with coaching from their
line managers to set objectives, create
development opportunities and review
performance through on-the-fob coaching
and formal training plans.

The Group is an equal opportunities
employer and full and fair consideration is
given to applications from, the contiruing
employment of, and career development
and training of disabled people. Two-way
communication is actively promoted and
trade unions, works councils and other
employee groups are involved wherever
appropriate. This report does not contain
information about any policies of the business
in relation to human rights, since it is not
considered necessary for an understanding
of the development, performance or position
of the Group's business activities.

We bengfit encrmously from our diverse
workforce. Our pecple come with different
backgrounds and from a wide range of
cultures, creating a vibrant workforce where
wae can all learn from one anocther. The
importance of diversity, equality and non-
discrimination is highlighted in our Code of
Conduct and is underpinned by our values,
guiding the respectiul way we behave
towards one another. Around 12% of our
wortdorce is female, with approximately
435 women employed, At a senior
teadership level, seven managers and
one Board member are female.

We are committed to atiracting, growing and retaining

PULSE - THE EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

Given tha market headwinds we

have faced it has been a key
imperative to ensure that we motivate
and engage with our peopfe through
these challenging times and grow our
business for the future. To support
this we carried out our first ever
Group-wide employee engagement
survey called ‘Pulse’.

This initiative aimed to test
the Pulse of the organisation by
gaining anonymous feedback in
a number of key areas including
how our people feel about their
work, their manager and how we
communicate effectively throughout
the organisation. The survey aimed
to discover what we are doing
well and to identify the areas for
improvement.

We achieved a 65% response
rate and generated 254 team reports
from the survey. The rich data and
verbatim received helped to shape
team-managed action plans for
future improvement. We ensured
our managers were well equipped
to execute the action planning

le who have thent skills and live our values

P

P

precess by providing training on
how to create meaningful action
plans. By encouraging our teams
to own and manage these plans
gives a sense of empowerment to
our people across the Group.

The survey showed that overall
in general, employees are proud
of their work and the organisation;
they like being challenged and having
a variety of work and they value
the flexibility and freedom that
Shanks provides.

In addition to the positive
feedback, a number of areas
for improvement were identified.
Employees expressed a need
for more communication and
a greater opportunity to share
thoughts and ideas.

In addition to the team-managed
action plans, the Group Executive
Committee has implemented a
number of improvement measures
to address this feedback and they
lock forward to seeing the positive
differences the action plans bring in
the results of the next Pulse survey.




RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

FRAMEWORK

Overview and evolving

risk management

Shanks has well developed and
established frameworks for risk
management in place. However, risk
management must evolve if it is to remain
effective and relevant. The effective
management of risk is a core function

of the Board and executive management,
and we regularty review and enhance this
maragement to ensure the adequate
control of risks.

Buring 2014/15 we conducted, with
advisers, a thorough revision of our
divisional risk management and risk
register processes. Key aspects included
an assessment of the maturity of our risk
management approaches in critical areas
and a redevelopment of our divisional risk
registers and processes.

FIVE OBJECTIVES OF
MANAGEMENT FRA

KNOW WHAT KNOW WHAT

RISKS WE RISK WE

FACE: WANT TO
ACCEPT:

Vdentify and evahiate our
univarse of potential risks
1o allow the creation ond
management of registers of

risks faced by the Group.

which the tolerance and
appetite of the Group for
differing levels and types

Manage a risk strategy in

This project was coordinated by our Group
Risk Committee. The tools used included
online surveys, training and discussion
seminars for our divisional management
teams and direct engagement across our
waorkforce on risk management issues.

In total more than 150 employees from
senior management and executives to
operational stafi were involved, nearly 5%
of our total workforce.

Some of the outputs are inctuded in

the key risks table overieaf. Others

have become projects and actions in
their own right, such as project risk
management knowledge sharing through
our Risk Committee. One key output was
the importance of continued invalvernent
and engagement of a wide audience in
our risk management processes, to
embed risk management through all levels
of our business.

OUR RISK
MEWORK

A LONG ESTABLISHED
AND EFFECTIVE

Challenges to our risk management
We continue to operate in challenging
markets. How we manage the risks
associated with these challenges is
important to our success. Cur ongoing
portfolio management is an example of
how we assess and predict risk and then
take decisive action where reguired to
mitigate impacts on our business.

One of our key risks is that the volume

of waste received by our operations falls. As
a waste-to-product company the waste we
receive is our raw material, from which we
provide recycled and recovered products
for the market place. Over the past five
years our undertying waste volumes have
either remained steady or have increased in
a shrinking market. This is a demonstration
of how we have identified risk, ranked its
importance and taken effective mitigating
action.

MANAGE TRAIN OUR CONTROL
OR MITIGATE PEOPLE IN RISK SYSTEMIC
QUR RISKS: MANAGEMENT: RISK:

Ensure that oll identified key

risks are effectively mitigated

or where appropricte transfer
of risks through insurance.

risk is clearly understood.

Ensure thot management
is trained in the effective
identification, assessment
and management risk,

Maintain and improve a
system of infernal controls

to manage risks in decision
moking, controct manogement
and financial transactions.

© more information at www.shanksplec.com/risksanduncertainties
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

CONTINUED

Insurance is a key risk transfer mechanism.
Over the past five years we have reduced
our premium spend by more than £0.5m,
while maintaining cover levels. Mowever,
for the waste sector the insurance market
for property and busingss interruption
cover has become increasingly challenging,
in particular relating to fire nsks. We have
identified this risk and mitigated its effects
by improving our site fire management
systems and by restructuring our property
insurance programme to spread our risk
whrile maintaining common and high value
policy conditions.

We will continue to identify our key risks,
assess their importance to us and put in
ptace mitigations to reduce our exposures.
We will also continue to review and revise our
risk management systems and processes so
that they remain effective and fit for purpose
against the challenges we face.

PROGRESS MADE DURING 2014/15

Our current risk framework
Tha core elements of gur risk management
process include:

@ Qur schedule of matters reserved for
the Board and our adherence to it. This
ensures that all significant issues affecting
Group strategy, structure and financing
are properly managed by the directors.

& Our Group risk management framework.
This ensures that each of our businesses
identifies the risks it faces and their
importance, designs and implements
effective mitigations to control key
risks and that risks and mitigations
are monitored and remain eftective.

The output of this process is a summary
of all our significant strategic, operational,
financial and compliance risks, our
mitigating controls and the action

plans necessary to reduce risks to

a level aligned with qur risk appetite.
These are reviewed by both divisional

management and the Board to ensure the
appropriateness of the risks identified and
the controls and action plans reported.

Embedded risk management systems
that are part of the day-to-day running

of the Group. These underpin the
effectiveress of our risk management
processes by involving a wide audience
in risk systems such as divisionai registers
to ensure all risks are considered and
ranked appropriately and that mitigations
are informed and practical.

Enhanced risk assessment for all major
capital requests, This ensures we
allocate funds in a risk aware manner to
maximise the value of our investrments.

Review of key risks at each divisional
review meeting. This ensures that we
monitor our key risks and mitigations at
an appropriate level and supports risk
managernent as an embedded feature
of our decision-making process.

IMPROVEMENTS FOR 2015/16

We have made good progress in further development of

our risk management systems. We have:

@ Conducted a thorpugh revision of our divisional key
risk registers

@ Enhanced how well our risk management is embedded
in our operations by involving more than 150 employees
in the review of our key risks and mitigations

® Conducted an assessment of the maturity of our risk
management processes in key areas

@ Carried out dedicated risk management training and
seminar sessions for our divisional management
teams, involving more than 60 senior employees

® Commenced migration of our risk registers into a
web-based system with greater ability to track risks,
their direction and implementation of mitigations

® Developed the role and actions of our Group
Risk Committee

@ Employed a new dedicated internal audit resource
to enhance and supplement our established peer
review process

® Enhanced our resilience to ICT and fire business
interruptions risks by improved standards and processes
and a wider-spread of risk transfer through insurance

® Produced a common framewark for operational
business continuity planning in co-operation with
our major insurers

Over the next 12 months, we will continue to improve our
risk management systems. This will include:

#® Produce and progress enhanced mitigations identified
through our thorough review and revision of divisional
risk registers conducted during 2014/15

@ Formalise the discussion of key risks at divisional
reviews by creating and anacting a common process
embedded in our business review rhythm

® Roll-out our enhanced business continuity framework
to all of our operations

& Enact the actions and improvements identified by our
recent dedicated fire management systems audits to
reduce husiness continuity risk

® Conduct further risk management training seminars for
our divisional teams

@ Investigate and develop a strategy for funding potential
costs associated with retained risks from our property
and business interruption insurance

® Develop and enact a strategy to ensure our new
internal audit resource has the maximum effect and
targets our key financial risk areas

® Implement fully our new web-based risk register and
managemeant system across the Group

#® Create a dedicated community on our Connectls
Group collaboration tool to provide easy employee
access to key risk management documents and policies




Key risks, risk direction
and mitigations

Our key risks, mitigation process
and risk direction are outlined in the
heat diagram below and on the
following pages.

As a result of our extensive review of
divisional risk registers two new key risks
have been added, one existing risk has
been split into two and a further two
previous risks have been combined.
These changes are reflected in both the
heat diagram below and risk tables on
the following pages.

OVERARCHING GROUP RISKS

All risk ratings shown in the heat diagram
are with the current level of mitigation.
Direction of risk is shown by arrows.
Where ne arrow is displayed risk rating
has remained static.

Key:

Risk pasition 2013

Risk pasition 2014

Risk position 2015

Dinection of 1isk

Waste velumes

Invesiment ond giowth — cash risk
Pricing competifion

Tofent develapment,lecdership
Long-ferm conftacts

Investment ond growth = financing risk
Health end safety risk

Retydate pricing

Fire and business continuity plonning

O @ N W R WN -

Project execution

107 foilure

Operational failure

13 Ouiput recyclte/recavered product volumes

- -
N = O

14 Envionmental pesmit risk

RISK MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

SHANKS GROUP PLC BOARD
Independent review
GROUP EXECUTIVE
AUDIT COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
Risk reparting
OPERATING DIVISIONS
RISK COMMITTEE
BUSINESS UNIT
Risk: MANAGEMENT
@ Information
& Audit Risk:
& Architecture @ Assessment
@& Management
@ Responsibility

Note: Where na directicn arrow is shown risk rating remains static. Risks 13 and 14 ase aew o1 split fram older risks,
50 0 prior yeo: direction is shown.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

CONTINUED

KEY RISK

jnumber allocated relotes to heat diagram)

WASTE VOLUMES:
that incoming waste valumes
in the market may fall

2

INVESTMENT AND GROWTH.
CASH RISK: that funding
sources are avaitzhle, but that
tash generation i insufficient
to allow aceess o funding

3

PRICING COMPETITION:
that marke) pricing may pus
pressure on our margins

4

TALENT DEVELOPMENT/
LEADERSHIP:
that we lock the required
management capabilifies

5

LONG-TERM CONTRACTS:
that we enter into long-term
contracts ot disadvontogeous lerms
or we rely on o small number of
large contracts

MITIGATIONS

® Market facing organisation to compete

most effectively

Reporting of incoming woste volumes around
the Group

Investiment to secure naw waste streams
and volumes

Securing of long-term contracts to underpin
major deployment of capital

Portfolio manogement

Continuous improvement of cash control
Reinvest only where profitable

Good budget control on capital projecis
Good balance leased and owned assets

Cost management, both structural and
operational, to deliver cost leadership in
cora markets

Constant reporting and monitoring of price
via operational systems

Use of long-ferm coniracts, where appropriate

Effective commercial orgenisations to
maximise morgins

Group HR Director to ensure good HR
leadership

Performance approisal process across Group

First-class talent mapping and development
process

Leadership programmes in place

Group-wide engagement survey and process
in place

Selective bidding on contracts

Detailed risk assessment and due diligence
on contracts

Sirict Board controls on entering into
major contracts

Good operating margins on existing

PFl contracts

Strict controls and reviews an build
programmes o ensure on track

PROGRESS & RISK DIRECTION

® New municipal contracts in the UK and
Canado secure significont volumes
® Investment in facilities in Hazardous Waste,
Benelux and Qrganics 1o secure valumes
® Commercial effectiveness project in
Benelux operations
Risk direction: underlying waste volumes have
been maintained or increased over the past five
yeuars. However, macro-economic condifions
persist and risk level remains static

@ Continuing portfolio management
® Continved control of invesiment
@ Strong cash performance

Risk direction: weaker trading offset by strong
cash performance

@ Commercial effectiveness project in
Benelux operations

® Maximise benefits of investment in new
storoge facilifies in Hazardous and Focilities in
Commercial Divisions

@ Price increases in fargeted areas

Risk direction: risk remains at previous levels as

a result of macro-economic factors outside of

our coniral

@ Implementation of plans (o0 oddress employee
engagement and communicatians from
employee engagement surveys

@ Key objectives set for absence and employee
development

@ Succession planning and development process

Risk direction: likelihood reduced as the result of

the continuance of improved processes

& New systems to prevent contract penalty
deductions in the UK

@ Exit from unpraofiteble contract in Belgium on
mutually satisfactory terms

@ BDR and Wokefield PFI contracts on time and
to budget

Risk direction: tighter processes around ¢ontract
structures, but increased economic pressure on
clients leading to risk level remaining static




KEY RISK

{rumber aflocoted relates to heat diagromf

6

INVESTMENT AND GROWTH.
FINANCING RISK:

that funding is not ovailable

7

HEALTH AND SAFETY RISK:

thet we incur reputational loss,
or civil and criminal costs

8

RECYCLATE PRICING:

that the value we received

for recycied and recovered
product falls

9

FIRE AND BUSINESS
CONTINUITY PLANRING:
husiness interruption and ether
tosts as tha result of o
disaster such s fire

10

PROJECT EXECUTION:
the we fail fo deliver our
investment ond cost
reduction programmes

MITIGATIONS

Good quality external advice

Diverse range of financing options

and fimings

Strong relations with investors

Good management reputation and planning

GrouE Health and Safety Manager and
Heolth and Safety Committee in place

Delined and tracked health and safety

improvement plan in place
Active engagement with regulators
Safety leadership programme in place

Top agenda item on all management
meelings

Significant progress made - accident rate
improved by nearly 40% over past five years

Focus on improving product quality

Group collaboration to maximise pricing
leverage, where appropriate

Cost control actions to offset impact of
lost revenuve

Optimise commercial effectiveness to
improve quality of incoming waste and
raise gaie fees

Sustainable technelogies used align with
market needs

Active menitoring and enforcement of
maintenance, envirenmental, safety and
training stondards

Effective insurance programmes supported
by experienced brokers

improvements in fire control through common
fire control standards

EHactive disaster plonning processes at

key sites

Common risk survey process in place
including engagement with insurers

Regutar senior manogement review of
all programmes including post-investment
reviews

Srron%ﬁnanciuf aversight of project costs
and effective copital authorisation processes

Use of skilled and trained project
manogement feams

Fixing of contractual costs, where possible

PROGRESS & RISK DIRECTION

@ Successful investors days and events

® Diverse range of funding options of medium
to long-term maturity

Risk direction; reduced likelihood as the result of
good reputation and available financing options

® New occupational road risk programme
being developed and enacted

@ Torgeted strategy ot Belgium operational
performance

& Cgcherent lurgers developed for near-miss
reporting and leadership performance

Risk direction: likelihood reduced as the
result of progress made and improvement
programme development

® Development of new technologies to ensura
continuing fit with market needs

@ Renegotiation of off-take contracts where
appropriate

® Confinved development of quality schemes
to maximise value

@ long-term fixed price controcts for off-iake
where appropriate

Risk direction: while enhanced risk management
is in place, macro-economic pressures result in
risk rafing remaining static

® Group-wide business continuity planning
framework produced and being spread
across operations

& Dedicated fire oudits conducted at all sites
and gctions being progressed

& Strategy for retained risk funding being
developed

@ Improvements at ATM site in line with Seveso
Il requirements

Risk direction: improvements in risk monagement
in place and beinE developed, but pressures in
the insurance market for the wasle sector result

in increased potential impact rating

# Development and knowledge sharing of
project risk management processes via
Group Risk Committee

& Several opportunities reviewed and rejected
because ot lack of cestainty of returns

Risk direction: while enhanced controls are in

place ond being developed, the number and

variety of projects results in the risk tevel
remaining unchonged
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

CONTINUED

KEY RISK

fnumber aliocoted relales to heat diogram|

11

ICT FAILURE:
that iCT faiture causes business
interruption or loss

12

OPERATIONAL FAILURE:
operationa! failure of o key Farility
leading to business interruption
and ather costs

13

QUTPUT RECYCLATE/
RECOVERED PRODUCT
VOLUMES: that the volumes
of products we plara to
market falls

14

ENVIRONMENTAL
PERMIT RISK:
that our enviroamental permits
1o operate ara restricted
or removed

MITIGATIONS

Group Information Director in place

Development of greater centralisation of ICT
systems fo ollow common risk approach

Continved investment in upgraded systems
and infrastructure

Business continuity planning in place for ICT

Increased robustness of ICT systems through
shared services centre project

Highly experienced operational teoms with
in-depth knowledge of processes

Regular annual and other shut-downs at key
plants to ensure facilities remain well invested
and maintained

Mechanical breakdown insurance in place for
at risk facilities

Diversity of product off-takers to spread risk

Quadlity control systems in place to ensure
quality of products is as required

Investment in technologies which fit with
market needs for products

Experienced employees dedicated to product
ofttake markets

Monthly environmental issues reporting across
alk levels of organisation

EHective management of all environmental
matters arising

Environment management systems and regular
inspections and audits in ploce

Experienced and competent environmental
speciclist employees in place

PROGRESS & RISK DIRECTION

® Maximise benefits of shared service
cenlre project

@ Assessment of ICT resilience conducted
by insurers with high quality result

® Continved increases in robustness of
ICT systems

Risk direction: reduced risk rating as a result
of increased robustness and resilience of
ICT systems

@ Mechanical breakdown business interruption
insurance covers being reviewed to ensure
adequote

® New business inferruption plan framework
includes breakdown risk and mitigation
measures

@ Investment ot major plants to ensure
breakdown resilience

& Improvements at ATM critical site in line with
Seveso 1t requirements

Risk direction: improved risk management
processes in place, but nature and complexity of
major facilities results in risk rating remaining static

® Continuous review of market needs to ensure
fit of products

@ Investment in technologies and facilities which
meat market needs for products

Risk direction: new risk associated with waste-to-
product focus

@ Commuynity environmental engagement
performance introduced as key business
objective

® Five-year target for 100% of operating centres
to be accredited to the 1SO14001
international environmental standard
introduced

® Targetad strategies for sites af risk
Risk direction: new risk split from previous joint
safety, health and environment risk as a result of

differing risk monagement ond mitigation
approaches taken




Financial risks

The Group takes action to insure or hedge
against the most material financial risks.
Details of our key policies for control of
financial risks are:

® Interest rate risk
The Group has continued 1o limit its

exposure to interest rate risk by entering

into fixed rate retail bonds, fixed rate

senior notes and interest rate swaps that
fix a substantial proportion of floating rate

debt. At the end of March 2015, circa
85% of core borrowings were on fixed
terms. For ak long-term PH contracts,
interest rate swaps for the duration of

the contracts are entered into as part of

financial close of the project.

@ Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk for movements between
the Euro, Canadian Dollar and

Sterling. The majority of tha Group’s
subsidiaries conduct their business in
their respective functional currencies.
Hedging agreements, such as forward
exchange contracts, are in place to
minimise known currency transactional
exposures. The Group does not hedge
its foreign currency exposures on the
translation of profits into Sterling. Assets
denominated in Euros and Canadian
Dollars are hedged by barrowings in
the same currency 10 manage
transiational exposure.

® Trade credit risk

Trade credit risk is the risk of firancial
loss where counterparties are not able
to meet their obligations. The Group has
implemented the setting and monitoring
of appropriate customer credit mits.
Credit limits and outstanding receivables
are reviewed monthly. The Group has

a policy to ensure that any surplus

cash balances are held by financial
institutions, meeting minimum
accepiable credit ratings.

& Fraud risk

To mitigate the exposure to losses ansing
from fraud committed on the Group or
by Group employees, robust internal
controls and financial procedures are
reviewed and tested regularty.

Bales of plastic
recyclate awuaiting
shipment for re-use
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THE BOARD
GOVERNANCE OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors, all of whom members of Board committees.
the Company regard as independent, The executive directars implement
bring considerable international experience Board strategy, most recently having
to the Board across a number of sectors. reorganised the Group divisional structure
They play a full role in constructively 1o align operating businesses more
challenging and developing strategic closely with customers, to deliver
proposals, as well as chairing and being synergies and accelerate growth.
ERIC JACQUES
VAN PETRY STEPHEN MARINA
AMERONGEN RILEY WYATT
TOBY ADRIAN PETER

WOOLRYCH AUER DILNOT




DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

ADRIAN AUER BA, MBA, ACT
Group Chairman

Appointed: May 2005 and appointed
Chairman in July 2006. Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and member of
the Remuneration Committee.

Skills and Experience: Adrian has held
the position of Finance Director in a number
of major companies, notably in the building
materials and construction sectors,

as well as senior finance positions with

BP and ICI. He is Chairman of Addaction,
Britain's largest specialist drug and alcohol
treatment charity.

Adrian is considered by the Board to
be independent.

PETER DILNOT B.ENG
Group Chief Executive

Appointed: February 2012,

Skills and Experience: Prior to joining
Shanks, Peter was a senicr executive at
Danaher Corporation, a leading glebal
industrial business listed on the NYSE.

He held a number of progressive general
management roles including President
Danaher Middle East, Group President
Emerging Markets, and President EMEA
and Asia of its Gilbarco Veeder-Root
subsidiary. Before Danaher, Peter spent
seven years at the Boston Consuiting Group
(BCG) in London and Chicago, working
with industrial and pharmaceutical clients
and was a leader in BCG’s global Sales &
Marketing Practice. Peter’s earlier career,
after graduating from RMA Sandhurst, was
spent as an officer in the British Armed
Forces. He originally trained as an Army
helicopter pilot and saw active service with
both NATO and the UN.

TOBRY WOOLRYCH MA, ACA
Group Finance Director

Appointed: August 2012,

Skills and Experience: Toby began his
career at Arthur Andersen where he gualified
as a chartered accountant before becoming
Finance Director of Medicom International
Ltd, a medical publishing cormpany, in

1992, He joined Johnson Matthey plc as
Comorate Development Manager in 1997,
going on to become Divisional Finance
Director and then Managing Director of

one of Johnson Matthey's globa! speciality
chernicals business units. From 2005 to
2008, he was the Chief Financial Officer
and Chief Operating Officer at Acta SpaA,
a renewable energy company, before
jeining Consort Medical plc as Group
Finance Director.

ERIC VAN AMERONGEN
Senior Independent Director

Appointed: February 2007 and appointed
as Senior Independent Director in July
2007. Chairman of the Remuneration
Committes and member of the Audit

and Nomination Committees.

Skills and Experience: Eric has wide-
ranging European business experience
including the telecoms, defence and
publishing sectors. He holds a number
of non-executive and advisory positions.
Until January 2008, Eric was a non-
executive director of Corus Group pic,

a position he held for seven years.

Eric is considered by the Board to
be independent.

Other Appointments: Vice Chairman of
the Supervisory Boards of BT Nederand
BV and Thafes Nederlands BV, and alsc
Supervisory Board Member of ANWB BY,
Royal Wegener NV and Essent NV.

STEPHEN RILEY B.ENG, PHD
Non-executive Director

Appaointed: March 2007. Member of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees.

Skills and Experience: Stephen is
currently the CEQ and President, GDF SUEZ
Energy UK-Turkey. He has responsibility

for European plant operations, finance,
energy trading and business development.
He is a chartered engineer and joined
International Power in 1885, holding senior
positions in two UK power stations before
being appointed Managing Director of their
Australian operations in 2000. From January
2004 to February 2011, he was a director
of International Power plc, resigning from
that Board following the amatgamation

of International Power and GDF SUEZ
Energy International.

Stephen is considered by the Board to
be independent.

JACQUES PETRY MBA
Non-executive Director

Appointed: September 2010. Member of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees.

Skills and Experience: Jacgues is
currently Chaimman and CEO of energy
provider Albioma. He was Chairman and
Chief Executive of SITA and its parent
company Suez Environnernent. In 2005,
he was appointed Chief Executive of
Sadexc Continental Europe and South
America. Since 2007, he has advised
corporate and financial sponsors,
specialising in Infrastructure and
Environmental Services investiments
worldwide, He has extensive international
non-executive and executive experience.

Jacques is considered by the Board to
be independent.

MARINA WYATT MA, FCA
Non-executive Director

Appointed: April 2013, Chairman of the
Audit Committee and member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Cormmittees.

Skills and Experience: Marina is a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
and is currently the Chief Financial Officer
and a member of the Management Board
at TomTom NV, Following nine years with
Arthur Andersen in London and the US,

she then joined Psion Plc as its Group
Controller and became Group Finance
Director in 1996. In 2002 she was
appointed Chief Financial Officer of Coit
Telecom Plc and joined TomTom as its Chief
Financial Officer in 2005, Marina will be
leaving TomTom at the end of July 2015 to
take up the position of Chief Financial Officer
and Executive Director of UBM Pic, a global
events and communications company,

in September 2015.

Marina is considered by the Board to
be independent.

Other Appointments: Supervisory Board
member of Lucas Bols NV,
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

GOVERNANCE

STANDARDS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

n behalf of the Board,

| am pleased to present

our Corporate Governance

Report and confirm our

compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code for the year
to 31 March 2015. We believe that both the
Board collectivety and directors individuatly
have a responsibility to set and demonstrate
high standards of corporate governance.
The following pages outline the structures,
processes and proceduras by which the
Board ensures that these high standards
are maintained throughout the Group.

During the year, our Audit Committee,

supported by the Risk Committee has
continued to seek further improvement
and enhancements to our internal controls,
risk management and reporting framework.
For example, in response to the risk of fire
at our operating plants we have undertaken
programemes to enhance our systems
for the prevention, detection and fighting
of fires in order to mitigate against this
critical risk factor.

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTING MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board is required to confirm that
the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information
necassary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business modet
and strategy. The Audit Committee has
assisted the Board in this regard through
the adeption of a formalised internal review
process and approach.

Following on from the overwhelming
shareholder approval at last year's AGM,
our Directors’ Remurigration paolicy rmust next
be submitted for approval at the AGM to be
held in 2017, unless amendments are sought
before that date. An advisory resolution to
approve the Annual Report on Directors'
Remuneration, which details payments and
awards made ta directors during the year to
31 March 2015, will as usual be submitted
to the farthcoming AGM.

Finally, whilst our intermal procedures are
essential to the efficient running of the Group,
it is also my responsibility to ensure that we
maintain clear and effective communications

Shanks Group plc
Board

Audit Remuneration

Group Executive

Committee
. Corporate
Risk Responsibility*
Operating Divisions

“Additional reporting line 1o Group Boord

THE BOARD REMAINS
COMMITTED TO HIGH

Adrian Aver

Group Choirmon

with our shareholders and other stakeholders.
1 was therefore delighted to meet with some
of our largest shareholders and also market
analysts, at our two Capital Markets events
held in the year.

Ao

Adrian Aver
Group Chairman
Nomination Principal Boerd Comminess
Exequtive Management
Health i )
and Safety” Spednfist Committees
Divisional Monagement




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD IS PROVIDED WITH
APPROPRIATE INFORMATION
IN A TIMELY MANNER TO
ENABLE IT TO DISCHARGE

ITS DUTIES EFFECTIVELY

The Board is committed to maintaining

a sound governance framework through
which the strategy and objectives of

the Group are set, and the means of
attaining these objectives, and monitoring
performance is determined.

Corporate Governance Statement
The Board fully supports the principles of
good corporate governance. This report,
together with the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 77 to 91, explains how
the Group has applied and complied fully
with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code in force for the year to
31 March 2015.

The Board

The Board comprises the Chairman,

a further four independent non-executive
directors, the Group Chief Execurtive and
Group Finance Director.

The Chairman, who has been independent
since his original appointment, has primary
responsibility for running the Board. The
Group Chief Executive is responsible

for the cperations of the Group and for
the develogpment of strategic plans and

initiatives for consideration by the Board.
The formal division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Group Chief
Executive has been agreed by the Board
and documented, a copy of which

is available on the Group's website.

The non-executive directors bring a wide
range of experience to the Group and
are considered by the Board to be
independent of management and free
from any business or other relationship
which could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement.
The non-executive directors make a
significant contribution to the functioning
of the Board, thereby ensuring that no
individual or group dominates the decision-
making process. Non-executive directors
are not eligible to participate in any of
the Company’s share aption or pension
schemes. The Chairman also meets and
communicates regularty with the non-
executive directors without the presence
of the executive directors.

Eric van Amerongen continues to hold
the position of Senior Independent Director,
being available to shareholders should

they have concerns which contact through
the normal channels of Chairrnan, Group
Chief Executive or Group Finance Director
has failed to resolve or where such contact
is inappropriate.

The table below details the number of
formal Board meetings held in the year and
the attendance record of each director.

DIRECTOR BOARD MEETINGS
Adrian Auer {Group Choitman) 12{12)
Peter Dilno? 12012
Jocques Petry 12002
Stephen Riley 12430
Enc von Aragrongen 10612
Toby Woolrych 1202
Maring Wyatt 112

Bracketad figures indicate maximum potantial
attendance of each director.

The calendar of meetings of the Board and
its committees for 2014/15 is shown below.

THE CALENDAR OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES FOR 2014/15

APRIL MAY JUNE JuLy AUG SEPT oa DEC JAN FEB MARCH
Board (main meeting) . . . » . - . .
Rudit Committee . . .
Rermuneration Committee . .
Nomination Cammittes . .
Shoreholder (AGM) .

In gaaition, 32 duly authorised Board Commiltee meatings, comprising at least iwo directors, were held. fhese were primarily in conneclion with the alloiment of shares under emplayes

share schemes and transaction completion formalties.
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Board governance

There is a formal schedule of matters
reserved specifically for the Board's

decision. These include approval of financial
staterments, strategic policy, acquisitions and
disposals, capital projects over defined kmits,
annual budgets and new borrowing facilities.
The Board meets regularty, having met twelve
times during the year. Specifically during

the year under review, financial close was
reached on a 27 year municipal contract with
Derby City and Derbyshire County Councii in
August 2014. In December 2014 the Group
was selected as the preferred bidder for an
Organics Biofuels processing faclity project
in the city of Surrey in British Columbia,
Canada which reached financial close in
February 2015,

The Board is provided with appropriate
information in a timely manner to enable it

to discharge its duties effectively. All directors
have access to the Company Secretary,
whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures and regulations are followed.

In addition, directors are entitled,

if necessary, to seek independent
professional advice in connection with

their duties at the Company’s expense.

In recognition of the importance of their
stewardship responsibilities, the first standing
item of business at every scheduled Board
meeting is the consideration of the Safety,
Health and Environmental report. Other
regular reports include those from the Group
Chief Executive and Group Finance Director
covering business performance, markets and
competition, investor and analyst updates as
well as progress against strategic cbjectives
and capital expenditure projects.

All directors are required to notify the
Company on an ongeing basis of any
other commitmenits and, through the
Company Secretary, there are precedures
for ensuring that the Board's powers for
authorising directors' conflicts of interest
are operated effectively.

The work of the Board is further supponed
by three formal Committees (Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination), detailed on
the following pages. In addition, whilst not a
Committee with specific powers of its own
delegated by the Board, the Group Chief
Executive is assistad in the performance

of his duties by the Group Executive
Committee. This Commities mests monthly

and comprises the Group Chief Executive
and Group Finance Director, the Divisional
Managing Directors, Group Human
Resources Director and Group Information
Director. in addition there are three specialist
committees reporting through to the Group
Executive Committee: Risk, Corporate
Responsibility and Health and Safety.

In reviewing the Group’s overall corporate
governance arrangemenis, the Board
continues to give due consideration to
balancing the interests of customers,
shareholders, employees and the wider
communities in which the Group operates.

Board induction and

professional development

On appointment, directors are given an
introduction to the Group's operations,
including visits to principal sites and mestings
with operational management.

Specific training requirements of direciors
are met either directly or by the Company
through legal/regulatory updates. Non-
executive directors also have access to
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ non-executive
database and course programme. There is a
rolling programme of holding Board meetings
at different Group locations in order to review
local operations, with a focus on health and
safety during site visits.

Board evaluation

Performance evaluation of the Board,

its Committees and directors during the
year was based upon formalised self-
assessment questionnaires supplemented
by structured internviews conducted by

the Chairman with individual directors.

The evaluation of the Chairman was
undertaken by the non-executive directors,
ted by the Senior Independent Director. The
process was designed to cover the key
aspects of Board and Board Committee
effectiveness and directors’ performance.
The results, all of which were positive and
constructive, identified a small number

of areas for improvement. In conclusion,

it was determined that the Board and its
Committees continued to operate effectively
during the year and that each director
continued io demonsirate commitment to
their role and perform effectively. The Board
was therefore able to recommend the re-
election of the directors standing at the
forthcoming AGM.




Nomination CommiHtee

The Nomination Committee is chaired

by Adrian Auer and is solely comprised

of non-executive directars: Eric van
Amerongen, Stephen Riley, Jacques Petry
and Marina Wyatt. The Committee is
formally constituted with written terms of
reference which are available on the Group's
website. It met twice during the year and is
responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of directors
and succession ptanning. It also reviews
organisation and resourcing plans for

the purpese of providing assurance that
appropriate processes are in place to ensure
a sufficient supply of competent executive
and senior management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed
high ‘evel talent management and
succession plans for the Board and Group
Executive Committee.

Any new director appointed to the Board is
subject 1o election by shareholders at the
first opportunity after their appointment.

All non-executive directors are required
under the Company’s Articles of Association
to stand for re-election at each AGM. In
accordance with best corperate governance
practice, the executive directors also stand
for re-election at each AGM.

The Committee at the current time has

not determined to set a specific female
Board member quota. Appointments

to the Board and throughout the Group
continue to be based on the diversity of
contribution and required competencies,
irrespectiva of gender, age, nationality or any
other personal characteristic. Surmmarised
statistical employment data for the Group
can be found in the Corporate Responsibility
Report available on the Group website.

NOMINATION
DIRECTOR COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Adrian Aver (Chairman) 200
Jocques Pemy (0
Stephen Riley U
i van Amerangen 1(2)
Morina Wyatt 2(1

Bracketed figures indicate maximum patential attendance
of each director.

Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration Committee met twice

in the year and is formally constituted

with written terms of reference which are
available on the Group's website. The
Committee is solely comprised of non-
executive directors: Eric van Amerangen,
Adrian Auer, Stephen Riley, Jacques Petry
and Marina Wyatt. The Committee, which is
chaired by Eric van Amerongen, formulates
the Cormpany's remuneration policy and
the individual remuneration packages for
axecutive directors.

The Committee also determines the
remuneration of the Group's senior
management and that of the Chairman.

it recommends the remuneration of the
non-executive directors for determination
by the Board. In exercising its
responsibilities, the Committee has access
to professional advice, both internally

and externally, and may consult the Group
Chiet Executive about its proposals. The
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages
77 tc 91 contains particulars of directors’
remuneration and their interests in the
Company's shares.

L
Bric van Amesangen (Chairmen) 2(2)
Adrian Aue 12
Jocgues Pery 12
Stephen Rey 20
Marina Wyett 1

Brackeled figures indicate maximum potential attendance
of sach director.

Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committes met three times in the
year and is formally constituted with written
terms of reference which are available on
the Group's website. The Committee is
solely comprised of non-executive directors:
Stephien Riley, Jacques Petry, Eric van
Amerongen and Marina Wyatt who chairs
the Committee. As required under the

UK Corporate Governance Code, Marina
Whyatt has current and refevant financial
experience. She is a chartered accountant
and currentty holds the position of Chief
Financial Officer at TomTom NV.

The Chairman, the executive directors and
representatives from the external auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) are
regularty invited to attend mesetings. The
Committee also has access to the external
auditors’ advice without the presence of the
executive directors.

The Audit Committee has the authority

to examine any matters relating to the
financial affairs of the Group, This includes
the appointment, terms of engagement,
abjectivity and independence of the
external auditors, the nature and scope

of the audit, reviews of the interim and
annual financial statements, internal control
procedures, accounting policies, adherence
with accounting standards and such

other related functions as the Board may
require. The Committee also considers and
regularly reviews other risk management
and control documentation, including the
Group's policy on whistle-blowing and
security reporting procedures,

At their May 2014 meeting, the Committee
considered Comorate Governance
compliance, taxation and the 2014 financial
statements whilst the October 2014 meeting
was concerned primarity with the interim
results and a review of authority levels and
the treasury policy. The February 2015
meeting considered year end accounting
matters and treatments, PwC's audit ptan
and preparation of the 2015 financial
statements and reviewed risk systems and
internal control improvements.

DIRECTOR COMMITTEE MEFTINGS
Maring Wyat {Choir) 33
locques Petry 33
Stephen Riley 33
£iic von Amerongen 33

Bracketed figures indicate maximum potential attendance
of each direclor.
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In carrying out its duties, the Cornmittee

is required to assess whether suitable
accounting policies have been adopted and
to challenge the robustness of signifigant
management judgements reflected in

the financial statements. The significant
accounting issues considered by the
Committee during the year were:

& Management override of internal controls.
Having considered the regular internal
and external audit reports throughout
the year and management's letter of
representation, the Committee is satisfied
with the appropriateness of the system
of internal controls and that management
was operating within the control
environment.

& BRevenue recognition. In particular, the
Commitiee reviewed the accounting
treatment including any judgemental
matters in relation to revenue recognition
of material transactions and contracts.

@ Impaimment. In carying out impairment
raviews of goodwill, intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment,
a number of significant assumptions
have to be made when preparing cash
flow projections including long-term
growth rates, discount rates and future
profitability. Papers with supporting
information were presented to enable the
Committee to come to a fair and balanced
determination as to the level of the current
year impairmenis and the necessary
disclosures in the financial statements.

@ Presentation of non-trading and
exceptional items. Non-trading and
exceptional iterns have been separately
disclosed within the Group's consolidated
financial statements. The Commitiee
has reviewed papers prepared by
management showing how these costs
have been identified and calculated. In
the light of recent pronouncements from
the Financial Reporting Councit {FRC},
the Committee has considered both the
quantum and the presentation and is
satisfied that these armounts have been
treated appropriately.

® Landfill and other liability provisioning.
Landfill provisions due to their nature
are judgemental and may be affected
by a number of factors including
changes in legislation with uncertainty
over timing of payments in particular
for aftercare provisions. The Committee
received reports from management
outlining the annuat reassessment of
the provisions and determined that the
closing balances were appropriate. In
addition, the Committes considered the
appropriateness of the discount rate
applied 1o all such long-term provisions
following the recent decline in government
bond yields and concluded that it was
appropriate to take a one-off charge of
£7.1min the current year,

& Accounting for service concession
arrangements under PFI/PPP contracts.
This is a highly complex and technical
area of accounting and during the vear
the Committee considered the adequacy
of the disclosures concerning the
iudgement of the Group acting as agent
during the canstruction period, as set
out in Note 2 to the financial statements.
This involved discussions with senior
management and the external auditors.
In addition, the Group's accounting
policy for lifecycle expenditure was also
reviewed which has resulted in items
recognised as exceptional in the year.

® Accounting for various tax related matiers
including the level of tax provisions. The
most significant judgements in 2014/15
related 1o the tax treatment of the non-
trading and exceptional charges and the
recognition of £3m of additional deferred
tax assets for losses in the UK. The
Commitiee received reports from senior
management and also verbal and written
reporting from the external auditors.
It is considered that the level of losses
recognised on the balance sheet at
March 2015 is appropriate.

In addition, the Committee has considered the
impact of the change in accounting for joint
ventures and associates following the adoption
of the mew standard and the requirement

to account for imterest in joint ventures and
associates using the equity method which has
resulted in a restatement of the comparative
financial information operations.

In addition, in light of the recent
pronouncement from the FRC on complex
supplier arrangements the Committee

has considered the nature of the contract
agresments across the Group and has
concluded that no such material complex
arrangements exist.

Fair, balanced and uvnderstandable
The Audit Committee has assisted the
Board in their consideration as to whether
the Annual Report and Accounts are

fair, balanced and understandable, such
that shareholders are provided with the
necessary information to assess the Group's
performance, business modet and strategy.
Having reviewed the year end internal
verification and approval processes at their
meeting in May 2015, the Committee was
able to confirm this to be the case.

External audit

PwC were appointed as the Company's
external auditors by shareholders at the
AGM in 1994, following a competitive tender
process. The Audit Committee expects to
schedule an external audit tender process
by no later than 2020.

The Audit Commitiee continues to review
the performance and independence of the
auditors on an annual basis.

PwC rotate their lead audit engagement
partner as a minimurn at least every five
years, as required by their own rules and

by regulatory bodies. The current audit
partner will perform his last audit in 2014/15.
Rotation ensures a fresh look without
sacrficing institutional knowledge. The
rotation of lead audit partners, other partners
including specialist partners and senior
engagement personnel is reviewed on a
regular basis by the lead audit engagernent
partner in consultation with the Audit
Committee. As well as the lead audit partner
being required to rotate every five years, key




partners involved in the audit are required to

do s0 every seven years and other partners
and senior staff members every ten years.

The Committee’s responsibility to
monitor and review the objectivity and
independence of the external auditor is
supported by a non-audit services policy.
Specified non-audit services may be
provided by the external auditor subject
10 a competitive bid process other than

in situations where it is determined by

the Group Finance Director that the work
is Closely retated 10 the audit or when a
significant benafit can be obtained from
work previously conducted by the external
auditor. Whilst the Group Finance Director
may approve any new engagement up to
the value of £25,000, anything in excess
requires Audit Committee approval up

to an agreed annual aggregate limit

of 50% of the prior year's audit fee. In

exceptional circumstances, this limit may be

exceeded with the approval of the Board.
In determining whether or not to engage
the external auditor to provide any non-
audit services, consideration wilt be given
to whether this would create a threat to
their independence. Similarly, the external
auditor will not be permitted to undertake
any advocacy role for the Group such that
their abjectivity may be compromised. The
extermnal auditor may not provide services
involving the preparation of accounting
records or financial staterents, the design,
implementation and operation of financial
information systems, actuarial and internal
control functions or the management

of internal audits. During the year, less
than £0.1m of non-audit services were
provided by PwC, whilst their total audit
fees, as disclosed in note 5 of the financial
statements, amounted to £0.6m.

A resolution will be put 1o shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM proposing PwC's
re-appeintment as Group auditors.

As part of the external audit process, the
Committee discusses and agrees the
scope of the audit which is based around
a structured methodology to help ensure
quality and rigour as well as regulatory
compliance. The 2014/15 audit was

conducted via a six step audit process based

on PwC’s acceptance and indegendence
procedures reflecting their understanding of
the business and focusing on scoped areas
determined to be of highest risk.

Tax and other professional services have
also been provided to the Group by audit
firns KPMG, Deloitte and EY during the year.

Internal audit

The Audit Committee annualty considers
the need for a separate dedicated internal
audit function and this year the internal
audit capability has been enhanced and
resourced by the appointment 1o the
Group finance function of a Group Internal
Audit and Reporting executive. This role
supplements the existing programme

of intermnal cross-divisional peer reviews
designed tc bring the benefits of:

@ wider spread of specialist knowledge
during audits;

® enhanced operational and business
model knowledge input te internal audis;

& better ability to share knowledge across
the Group on audit cutcomes and
improvements; and

@ independent assessment as divisional
auditors will not audit their own divisions.

The Group finance function co-ordinates
the process to ensure consistency, quality
of reporting and close-out of improvement
actions and reports up to the Audit
Committee. Internal audit services from
suitably qualified external providers were
also engaged during the year. KPMG
performed twe control reviews which
covered UK accounts processing and the
order to cash cycle in Wallonia in Belgium.
The detailed findings from all reviews were
presented to and considerad by the Audit
Committee. Any necessary improvements
from beth the internal and external reviews
are acted upon by local divisional teams.

Accountability and audit

The responsibilities of the directors and

the auditors in relation to the financial
statements are set out on pages 94 to 101.

Risk management

The Group risk management framework,
maijor risks and the steps taken to manage
these risks are outlined on pages 61 to 67.
Internal control responsibility

The system of internal control is based

on a continuous process of identifying,
evaluating and managing risks including
the risk management processes outlined
on pages 61 to 67. The Board of directors
has overall responsibility for the Group’s
system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board recognises
that internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
faiture to achieve business objectives and
can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material
misstatements, losses and the breach of
laws and regulations.

Annual assessment of the
effectiveness of the risk
management and internal

control systems

In addition to the Board's ongoing
internat control monitoring process,

it has also conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems
in compliance with Provision C.2.1 of the
UK Corporate Governance Code and
Turnbull guidance. This review covered
all material contreols including financial,
operational and compliance controls and
risk management systems.

Specifically, the Board's review consisted
of the following elements:

@ consideration of changes in the risk
universe and the Group's ability to
respond to these through its review
of business risk registers controls and
improvement action plans;

@ review of the six-monthly certification
by divisional management to ensure
that appropriate internal controls are in
place; and

@ review of reports by internal audit and
external auditors.
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Continuous process for the
monitoring of the system of
internal control

The main elements of the internal control
framework which contribute towards its
continuous monitoring are as follows:

a defined schedule of matters for decision
by the Board;

a Group finance manual which sets out
financial and accounting policies, minimum
internal financial control standards and

the delegation of authority matrix cver
items such as capital expenditure, pricing
strategy and contract authorisation;

a comprehensive planning and budgeting
exercise. Performance is measured
monthly against plan and pricr year
results and explanations sought for
significant variances. Key performance
indicators (KPIs) are also extensively used
to help management of the business

and to provide earty waming of potential
additional risk factors;

monthty meetings and visits to key
operating locations by the Group's
executive directors and most senior
rmanagers to discuss performance
and plans;

appointment and retention of
appropriately experienced and qualified
staff to help achieve business objectives;

an annual risk-based internal audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee.
Summaries of audit findings and

the status of action plans to remedy
significant failings are discussed at Group
Board and Audit Committee meetings on
a regular basis;

a range of quality assurance, safety and
environmental management systems in
use across the Group. Where appropriate
these are independently certified to
internationally recognised standards
including 1SC3001, 1SO14001 and
OHSAS 18001 and subject to regular
independent auditing;

® arminimum of three scheduled Audit
Committee meetings each year,
comprising non-executive directors,
to consider all key aspects of the risk
management and intarnal control
systems; and

& prompt review by the Audit Committee of
any fraudulent activity or whistle-blowing
reports with appropriate rectitying action.

Where weaknesses in the internal control
system have been identified through the
monitoring processes outlined above, plans
for strengthening them are put in place

and action plans regularly monitored until
complete. The Board cenfirms that no
material weaknesses were identified during
the year and therefore no remedial action is
required in relation to them.

Financial reporting

In addition to the general risk management
and internal control processes described
above, the Group has also implemented
internal controls specific to the financial
reperting process and the preparation of

the annual consolidated financial statements.
The main control aspects are as follows:

@ formal written financial pdlicies and
procedures applicable {o all business units;

@ a detailed reporting calendar including the
submission of detailed monthly accounts
for each business unit in addition to the
year end and interim reporting process;

@ detailed management review 1o
Board leve! of both monthly
management accounts and year
end and interim accounts;

® consideration by the Board of whether
the Annual Report is falr, balanced and
understandable in line with new guidance
and with reference to the Board's
accumulated knowledge of the Group's
performance; and

@& bi-annual certification by divisional
managing and finance directors and
executive directors on compliance with
appropriate policies and accuracy of
financial informaticn.

The Committee also receives regular reports
from the Group Tax Manager on the Group’s
tax policy, tax management and compliance,

Anti-bribery and corruption

An anti-bribery policy is in place which is
applicable to all business units throughout
the Group. A 24-hour/seven-days-a-week
confidential reporting, ‘whistie-blowing’,
service for employees has also been

in operation throughout the year, with

all notificaticns being reported to and
considered by the Audit Committee.

Investor relations

The Company has an active investor
relations programme, regularty meeting with
institutional investors, analysts, press and
othner parties. The Board obtains feedback
from its brokers, Investec, on the views of
institutional shareholders and the Chairman
afttends meetings with major sharehclders
whose views are communicated to the
Board as a whole. Detailed shareholder and
market comment in particular is reported

to the Board after results announcements.
During the year the Company hosted

two successful Capital Markets events

for institutional investors and analysts.

The first was held in September 2014 at
the Group's ATM and Klok facilities in the
Netherlands and the second in Janwary 2015
at Wakefield, showcasing our new £100m
UK Municipat facility at South Kirkby. The
Company also communicates with private
and institutional investors through the AGM
and the Group website.

Other information

Other information, necessary to fulfil the
requirements of the Corporate Governance
Statement, relating to the Company’s share
capital structure and the appointment and
powers of the directors, can be found in the
Other Disclosures section on pages 92 to 95.

—




DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

GOVERNANCE

PUTTING POLICY INTO

PRACTICE WITH A FOCUS
ON FUTURE GROWTH

Remuneration Committee
Chairman’s Annual Statement

n behalf of the Board,

| am pleased to present the

Directors’ Remuneration

Report for the year ended

31 March 2015. The
rermuneration policy remains congistent
with that approved by sharehclders at the
2014 AGM with a 97.9% vote in favour. This
policy is reproduced in full on pages 78 to
83 for both ease of reference and to help
provide context to the decisions made by
the Committee during the year.

Similar to last year, and in line with the

new regulations, this Report is divided into
three sections:

® the Remuneration Committee
Chairman's siatement;

@ the Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
which details our remuneration policies
and their link tc Group strategy, as
well as projected pay outcomes under
various performance scenarios; and

® the Annual Report on Remuneration,
which focuses on the remuneration
arrangerments and outcomes for the year
under review, and how the Committee
intends to implement the Remuneration
Policy in 2015/186.

The undertying performance of our three
growth divisions remains robust although
market conditions for our Benelux Sdlid
Waste business in 2014/15 were very
challenging and this impacted performance.
As a result, the Group’s profits were
below target and this element oi the
2014/15 bonus did not pay out. Despite
this, cashflow performance was strong
and cashflow targets were achieved in
full. Personal objectives vested at 88% of
maximum for both Executive Directors.
Performance targets for the 2012-2015

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) award were
not met and therefore these awards lapsed.
Following approval at last year's AGM,
and as disclosed in last year's report, a new

LTIP structure was introduced during
the year 1o improve alignment to Group
strategy and to help retain and motivate
critical talent.

Between 1 June 2014 and 31 March
2015, our Group Finance Director Toby
Wooinych took on additional responsibilities
as interim Managing Director for our Belgium
Saolid Waste business. To recognise the
matenial increase in his responsibiliies, the
Committee agreed to award him a temporary
salary supplernert of £4,160 per month for
the 10-month period. This temporary salary
supplement does not affect his annual bonus,
LTIP award or pension,

During the year, the Committee reviewed
the remuneration policy and concluded
that the current structure continued 1o be
appropriate. For 2015/16, salaries for the
Group Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director have been increased by 2% {in line
with increases for the genera! employee
population). The annuat bonus will operate
on the same basis as last year with 75%
based on financial performance and 25%
on personal objectives, with one third of any
bonus deferred into shares over three to
five years. From 2015/16, the Committee
intends to disclose annual bonus targets
in the annual report immediately following
the end of the performance year. No
changes are proposed to the LTIP for 2015
which will continue to be based on three
year performance: 50% on EPS growth,
25% on share price growth and 25% on
improvernent in ROCE. LTIP shares vest
over three to five years.

The Committee concluded that no
changes to the Remuneration Policy

Eric van Amerongen
Chairman of the
Remunerction Committee

wera required at this time. However,

the Cormmmittee notes the requirement for
malus and clawback in the updated UK
Carporate Governance Code and is taking
steps to implement the changes. Our
current Palicy includes provisions for malus
on deferred bonus and unvested LTIP
awards. Clawback is being introduced to
the annuat bonus for the performance year
ending 31 March 2016 and for LTIP awards
being made in 2015.

The Remuneration Committee believes
that the cumrent remuneration poiicy is
proving effective and is atigned with the
interests of sharehofders. it incentivises
management to deliver the Group's strategy
and to maximise value, and will help retain
and motivate critical talent.

Resolutions seeking approval of the
Annual Report on Remuneration and renewsal
of our Sharesave Scheme will be put to
shareholders at the 2015 AGM.

o

Eric van Amerongen
Chairan of the Remuneration Committee
21 May 2015
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Thig report, prepared by the Committee

on behalf of the Board, takes full account

of the UK Comporate Governance Code

and the latest Investment Association (A}
and National Association of Pension Funds
(NAPF) guidelines, and has been prepared

in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules of the
Financial Conduct Authority and the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) {Amendment)
Reguiations 2013. The Act requires the
Auditor to report to the Group's shareholders
on the audited information within this report
and to state whether in their opinion those
parts of the report have been prepared in
accordance with the Act. The Auditor's
opinion is set out on pages 96 10 10t and

Directors” Remuneration Policy

The principal objectives of the Remuneration
Committee, which is chaired by Eric van
Amerongen and comprises all the non-
executive directors, are to help attract, retain
and motivate high calibre senior management
and te provide a competitive remuneration
package linked to performance and the
interests of shareholders.

The Committee seeks to ensure that the
senior executives are fairly rewarded in
light of the Group's performance, taking
into account all elements of their
remuneration package. A significant
proportion of executive remuneration

Incentive Plan {LTIF). The fixed portion
of remuneration comprises basic salary,
benefits and a payment in fieu of pension,

This secticn of the report sets out the
remuneration policy for executive directors.
This Policy was approved and formally came
into effect at the AGM held an 25 July 2014.
In formulating and reviewing the Policy, the
Committee takes full account of the UK
Corporate Governance Code and the latest
1A and NAPF guidetines. Remuneration

paid to executive directors in 2014/15 and
rernuneration arangements proposed for
2015/16 are set out later in this report.

those aspects of the report which have been
subject to audit are clearty marked.

is performance refated. This comprises
an annual bonus and a Long Term

POLICY TABLE

Base salary: To pay a competitive basic salary to attract, retain and motivate the talent required
to operate and develop the Group's businesses

OPERATION OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE METRICS
Base solries are generafly reviewed on n annugl basis of follawing o significont  Any basic salary increases ore applied in Ene with the outcome of Nane.
change in responsibilidies, the review.

For exacutive direcars, it is anticipated thot salgry increases will normolly
be in fine with thasa of solaried emplayees os a wholg. In exceptional
dircumstonces (inchuding, but not kmited fo, o material increase in job size
or complexity of o material market misalignment), the Committee has
discration to make oppropriote adjustments 1o solary feves fo ensure they
remain marke! compefitive,

Sulary leves ore reviewed by reference to FFSEdisted companies of similor size ond
complexity. The Committee clsa has regard fo individual and Group performance
ond changes to poy levels across the Group.

Pension: To provide an opportunity for executives to build up a provision for income on retirement

OPERATION OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE METRICS
Exacutive direczors receive a cash pension allowanca in liew of pensien Executive directors may receive a cash ollowonce of up to 25% of salary.  Nose.

schere contributions.

Benefits: To provide market-competitive benefits

OPERATION OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE METRICS

Benefits may vary by role. Howgver, the totol cast of toxabde benefits will  None.
not normally exceed 10% of salary.

The Committee retains discration to approve a highes cost in exceptional
dircumstonces. {e.g. relocation or expotiiglion) of in cicumsiances whese

factors outsida the Graup's controk hova changed (2.g. increases in mocket
insurance premia).

Benefits include [ifa ossurance, medical insurance, income protection and
car/trovel ollowances.

Savings Related Share Option Scheme {SRSOS): To encourage share ownership among UK employees
and use the benefits available under an HMRC approved scheme

QPERATION OPPORTUNITY

In line with HMRC's sequirements for such schemes, Sharesave opfions may be The maximurn opportunity will not exceed the relevant
granted fo o UK employees. The opfions are gromved o the highes of the nominal ~ HMRC Ermits.

volue of an oidinary share and an amesnt determined by the Cormittee being not

Jess than 80% of the morket velue. LIK executive directors partiipate on the some

teims os other LK employees,

PERFORMANCE METRICS

Noze.




POLICY TABLE conmnuen

Annual bonus: To motivate senior executives o maximise short-term performance and help drive initiatives
which support long-term value creation

OPERATION

Perfarmance measures, fargefs ond weightings are set of the sturt of
the yeor. The maximum bonws is payeble only if olf performance torgets
ore met in full.

One third of any annual bonus oword is deferred into shores for o least
three years, subject to contimued employment. The Group’s currant
policy is far 50% of the bonus 1o vest after three years, 25% 10 vest
after four years, ond 25% o vest after five vears.

Malus provisions exist which entitle the Committes, o its discretion,

to reduce the final aword or deem it to hove lopsed (ro the extent it
hurs ot yer vested) in exception! cirurnstonces, e.g. motesial financick
misstatement or gross miscondud.

Effective kom the 2015 /16 performance year (i.e. payments from

1 Aprit 2014) the banus wil ako ba subject fo dowbodk, i.8. recovery

of paid omounts for moteriat finoncint misstotement or conduct fustibying
summary dismissal.

OPPORTUNITY
For executhvg directors, the meximem anawsal bonus oppartunity is
150% of sbary.

For threshold pedormance, the bonus earned & generolly 25% of
maximum and for o-target pesformance 80% of moximumm,

PERFORMANCE METRICS

Executive diector performance is assessed by the Committee on
on ennual basis by reference to Group financial performance (75%
weighting) ond the achievement of personal or strategic objectives
{25% weighting)

When assessing finoncial performance, the primary meosures ore
underbying profit before tix and underlying frea cash Aow, but may
indude athet indicators of performance defined ot the start of the
yeor, The Commitiee retuins distrefion to very the weightings of
measures +/~ 25%, o help ensure ofignment with the business
priarities for the year. Bonus targefs ore generally cafibrated with
reference 1o the Group’s budget for the year.

The Committe has the discretion to odiust the formulaic bonus
outcomes both upwords (within the plon limits) and downwards,
10 ensura that poyments ore o rue reflection of peformance
over the performance period, e.g. in the even? of unforeseen
dicumstonces outside managemen! controk,

Datolls of the measures, weightings and targets applicoble for
the financial year under review ore provided in the Annucl Repert
an Rernuneration.

Long-term Incentive Plan (LTIP): To motivete and retain executives and senior managers to deliver the Group's
strategy and long-term goals and to help align executive and shareholder interests

OPERATION

Executive directars and seniar employees may be gronted awards
anqually, s detesmined by the Committes. The vesting of these owards
is subject fo the giteinment of performance conditions.

Avauds are in the form of Group shares, Dividends accue over the
vesting period but would be peid only on shares that vest.

Awards made under the LTIP have o performance and vasting period

of ot leust three years. If no entilement has been comed of the end

of the relevant performence period, then the awards will kapse. Once
vested awords may, af the disaetion of the ommittee, be sshied to
further holding in whole, or in part, for o period of up to two years
following the end of the performance period. The Geaup's aurrent
policy is for S0% to be relearsed immediately {subject to confinued
employment), 25% after a further yeor and 25% after wa more years.
Malus provisions exist which entitle the Comméttes to reduce the

finol award or dzem it to have lopsed during the petiod between the
granting and end of the kter of the vesting ar holding period, if there
has been moterial misstatement, gross misconduct or something which
wouses significont reputationdl domage to tha Group,

From 2015, LP awards will also be subiect 1o dawback, i.e. recovery
of vested aw:ds for moteriol finonciol misstoternent or conduct justfying
simmary dsmissal.

OPPORTUNITY

The maximum oward limit in nermal diccumstances under tha 2011
Long Term bncentive Plgn will be 150%% of salory {up to 200% in
exceptional drcumstances).

The Committea’s corrent intention i fo gront owords of 150% of
solory to tha Group Chigf Executiva and 120% of salory to the Greup
Finance Director,

Threshald performance will resut in vesting of 25% of maximum unger
eoch elerent,

PERFORMANCE METRICS

Vesting of LTIP qwards will be subject to confinued employment
and peformance over o penod of ot Jeast three yeors.

The performance measures for 2014 anwords are EPS, share
prica and ROCE, weighed 50%, 25% and 25% respeciively. The
Commiftes hos the discration to adjust the performance measures
and weightings up to +/~ 25% to ensure they continue fo be
finked to the defvery of Group stategy.

In pddition fo the Group achieving its EPS, shara price ond ROCE
toigess, the Commitiee must satisty itself that the recoeded
outcome is a foir reflection of the underying performanca of the
Group. The Committee has discretion {within the limits of the
scheme) to adjust the formlaic performance outcomes to ensure
that payments foiry refiect underying performance over the
pesiod. Adjustments moy be upwards or downwards. Detaiks of
LTIP targets are included in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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NOTES TO THE POLICY TABLE

Payments from existing awards
The Group will honour ary commitment
entered into, and executive directors will
be eligible to receive payment from any
award made, prior to the approval and
implemeniation of the remuneration policy
detailed in this report, including previous
awards under the LTIP. Details of any such
awards are disclosed in the Annual Report
on Remuneration.

Use of discretion

The Committee may apply discretion as
detailed below. Under each elerment of
remuneration, a full description of how
discretion can be applied is set out in line
with the UK reporting requirements:

@ To ensure fairness and align executive
remuneration with individual and
undertying company performance the
Cornmittee may adjust up or down
the outcome of the annual bonus
and LTIP. Any adjustments in light of
‘non-regular events’ (including, but not
limited to, corporate events, changes
in the Group’s accounting policies,
minor or administrative matters, internal
promotions, external recruitment and
terminations of employment) are expected
to be made on a 'neutral’ basis - i.e.
adjustments will be designed so that
the event is not expected to be to the
benefit or the detriment of participants.
Adjustments to incentives to ensure
that outcomes reftect underlying
perfarmance may be made in exceptional
circumstances to help ensure outcomes
are fair to shareholders and participants.

Performance measurement selection
The measures used in the annual bonus are
selected annually to reflect the Group's main
business prionties for the year, and capture
both financial and non-financial objectives.
Group financial performance targets relating
to the annual bonus plan are based around
the Group's annual budgst, which is reviewed
and approved by the Board prior 1o the start
of each financial year. Underlying profit before
tax and undenlying free cash flow are typically
used as the key financial performance
measures in the annuat bonus plan because
they are clear and well-understood measures
of Group performance.

Performance targets are reviewed annually
and set to be stretching and achievable,
taking into account the Group’s resources,
strategic priorities and the economic
environment in which the Group operates.
Targets are set taking into account a range
of internal and external reference points,
including the Group's strategic plan and
broker forecasts for both the Group and
sector peers. The Committee believes that
the performance targets are stretching, and
that to achieve maximum outcomes requires
truly outstanding performance.

The Committee considers the combination
of three-year EPS growth, ROCE
improvement and share price growth in

the LTIP to be key indicators of success for
the Group. These measures are transparent,
visible and motivational to participants,
balance growth and returns, and provide
good line-of-sight for executives and
alignment with shareholders.

Remuneration policy for

our senior leaders

The Group's approach to annual salary
reviews is broadly consistent across the
Group, with consideration given to the scope
of the role, level of experience, responsibility,
indlividual performance and pay levels for
comparable roles in comparable companies.
The broader Rermnuneration Policy across the
Group is also consistent with that set out in
this report for the executive directors. For
example, remuneration is linked to Group
and individual performance in a way that is
ultimately aimed at reinforcing the delivery

of shareholder value.

Senior employees generally participate in an
annual bonus scheme with a similar structure
to that described for the executive directors.
Opportunities and spegcific performance
conditions vary by organisational level, with
business area-specific metrics incorporated
where appropriate.

Members of the Group Executive Committee
and other senior managers participate in the
LTIP on a similar basis to, but at lower levels
than, executive directors.

All UK employees are efigible to participate in
the Sharesave Scheme on the same terms.

Share ownership guidelines

The Commitiee recognises the importance of
executive directors aligning their interests with
shareholders through building up significant
shareholdings in the Group. Share ownership
guidelines are in place that require executive
directors to acquire a holding equivalent

to 100% of their salaries over five years.
Executive directors are required to retain
50% of any LTIP and deferred bonus shares
acquired on vesting (net of tax) until they
reach their ownership guideline.

Approach to recruitment
remuneration

External appointments

In the cases of hiring or appeinting a new
executive director, the Committee may make
use of any of the existing components of
remuneration, as described in the Policy
Table on pages 78 and 78. The maximum
limits for variable pay (excluding buy-outs)
will be as for existing executive directors.

In determining the appropriate remuneration
for a new executive director, the Committee
will take into consideration all relevant
factors (including the overall quantum and
nature of remuneration, and the jurisdiction
from which the candidate is being recruited)
to ensure that all such arrangements are

in the best interests of Shanks Group and
its shareholders.

The Committee may alsc make an award

in respect of a new appointment to buy-out
incentive arrangements forgone on leaving
a previous employer on a like-for-like basis,
in addition to providing the normal
rermuneration elements.

In constructing a buy-out, the Committee
will consider all relevant factors including
time to vesting, any performance conditions
attached to awards, and the likelihood of
those conditions being met.

Any such buy-out awards will typically be
made under the existing annual bonus and
LTIP schemes, although in exceptional
circumstances the Committee may exercise
the discretion available under the FCA

Listing Rule 9.4.2 R to make awards using

a different structure. Any buy-out awards
would have a fair value no higher than that of
the awards forgone.




Internal appointments

In cases of appointing a new executive
director by way of internal promotion, the
Committee will determine remuneration in
line with the policy for external appointees.
Where an individual has contractual
commitments made prior to promotion
to the Board, the Group will continue to
honeur these. Incentive opportunities for
below Board employees are typically no
higher than for executive directors, but
measures may vary to ensure they are
relevant to the role.

Non-executive director recruitment
In recruiting a new non-executive director,
the Committee will use the policy as set
out in the table on page 83. A base fee

in line with the prevailing rate for Board
membership would be payable, with
additional fees payable for acting as Senior
Independent Director or Chairman of a
Committee, as appropniate.

Pay scenario charts

The charts on the right provide an estimate
of the potential future reward opportunities
for the executive directors, and the potential
split between the different elements

of remuneration under three different
perforrmance scenarios: ‘Minimurm’,
'On-target’ and ‘Maximum'.

Potential reward opporiunities are based on
our Remuneration Policy, applied to basic
salaries as at 4 April 2015. Note that the
projected values exclude the impact of any
share price mavements and dividends.

The *Minimum’ scenaric shows basic
salary, pension and benefits {.e. fixed
remuneration). These are the only elements
of the executive directors’ remuneration
packages which are not at risk.

The ‘on-target’ scenario reflects fixed
remuneration as above, plus a target bonus
of 80% of maximum and threshold LTIP
vesting of 25%.

The ‘Maximurm'’ scenarnia reflects fixed
remuneration plus full pay out of all
incentives, excluding any share price
appreciation and dividends (as per the
regulations).

Proportion of fixed and variable remuneration for executive directors

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE £°000
RAXIMUM 30% 5% 5% £1,949
ON-TARGET 45% 42% 13% £1,305
WINIMUR 1002 £592

GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR £'000
WomoM 329, 38% 30% £117
ON-TARGET a6% 43% 1% £821
MINIMUM 100% £376

KEY Sclary, pension ang bene’ss
Annual benus

longterm incentives

Service contracts and
exit payment policy

Executive director service contracts,
including arrangements for early termination,
are carefully considered by the Committee.
The Committee has agreed that the

policy with regard to the notice period for
executive directors is one year's written
notice from the Group and from the
individual. The contracts provide for an
obligation to pay salary pius contractual
benefits for any portion of the notice period
waived by the Group. The Group has the
ahility to pay such sums in instalments,
requiring the director to mitigate loss (for
example, by gaining new employment) over
the relevant period.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DATE OF SIRVICE

CONTRACT
Peter Dilnat | Februory 2012
Toby Woalrych 27 hugust 2012

If employrment is terminated by the Group,
the departing executive director may have a
legal entitlement {(under statute or otherwise)
to certain payments, which would be met.

In addition, the Committee retains discretion
to settle any other amounts reasonably due
1o the executive director, for example to
meet the legal fees incurred by the executive
director in connection with the termination
of employment, where the Group wishes

o enter into a setfiernent agreement {as
provided for below}, and the individual must
seek independent legal advice.

In certain circumstances, the Committee
may approve new contractual arrangements
with departing executive directors including
{but not limited to) settlement, confidentiality,
restrictive covenants and/or consuttancy
arrangements. These will be used sparingly
and only entered into where the Commitiee
believes that it is in the best interests of the
Group and its shareholders to do so.

When considering exit payments, the
Committee reviews all potential incentive
outcomes to ensure they are fair to both
shareholders and participants. The table on
page 82 summarises how the awards under
the annual bonus and LTIP are typically
treated in different circumstances, with the
final treatment remaining subject to the
Committee's discretion:
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Treatment of awards on exit

SCENARIO

ANNUAL CASH BONUS

Ikhealth, disability, death, retirernent (with Group consent)
or ny ather regsons the Committee may determine in its
uhsolute discretion.

Change of cantrol.

TIMING OF VESTING

Normal payment date, although the
Commifteg has disaretion 1o accelerate.

TREATMENT OF AWARDS

Cash bonuses will anly be paid o the extent that Group and personcl objectives set at the beginning
of the year have been achieved. Any resulting bonus will generally be pro-ruted for tfime served during

the year,

Performance ggainet taigets will be ossessad ot the point of changs of control and any resulfing bonys

Any other reason.

DEFERRED ANNUAL BONUS {DAB)

{Ibheglth, disability, death, retirement {with Group consent)
or gy other reasans the Commiliee moy determine in ifs

Nat applicabla.

Normal poyment date, glthaugh the
Committee hos discration 1o accelerate.

No banus is paid.

Any autstonding DAB owards will generally be pro-tated ot fime.

absolute discretion.

Gogedfanre. by, Any outstanding DAB awards will generally be proated for time,

Any other reoson. Not applicable. Awards lopse.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP)

Ithealth, disability, death, refirement {with Group consent) Normal vesting dote, although the Any gutstanding LTIP qwards wil generally be pro-ated for time and perfarmance.

ol any other reasons the Committae may determine in its

Committea hos discretion fo cecelerate.

ubsoluse discretion.

Charge of control, immediatety. Any autstanding LTIP awasds wil generally be pro-tated for fime and perfarmance, subjedt to the
{ommittee’s discrefion.
In the event of o change of confrol, nwards moy alternafively be exchanged for new equivalent owads
in the oequier where appropnate.

Any other reoson. Nat opplicable. Awards lopse.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors do not

have service contracts as their terms

of engagement are governed by ietters

of appeintrment. These letters and the
Company's Articles of Association make
provision for annual renewal at each AGM.
Details of the non-executive directors’
terms of appointment are shown in the
table on the right. The appointment and re-
appointment and the remuneration of non-

executive directors are matters reserved for

the full Board.

The non-executive directors are not eligible

to participate in the Group

’s performance-

related incentive plans and do not receive

any pension contributions.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR INITIAL AGREEMENT DATE RENEWAL DATE

Adrion Augr 14 May 2005 31 Juiy 2015
. Juwuﬁmv ......................................... - Zom S 3] Ju,y - .
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Details of palicy on fees paid to non-executive directors are set out in the table below:

OBJECTIVE QOPERATION

To athiact ord retain nonexecutive  Fee levels ore ieviewed ennually, with oay adjustmaents effective

directars of the highest calibre 1 April ench year,

with braad commercial and other i feg poid 1o the Chairmon is determingd by the Comittee, and fees o
experience relevant o the GROUp. oo exeeytive daectars are determined by he Boaid.
Addional fees org payabla for acting as Senior Indepandent Divactor and as
Chairman of the Baord’s Committees {Audit and Remunerstian).
Fee tavels are reviawed by reference o FTSEdisted compenies of similar size
anef complexity, The required time commitment ond responsihilifies ore teken

OPPORTUNITY

info aceount when reviewing fee levels.

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES

Norrexenutive director fee increases are applied in fine with the outcome of the  None.
teview. Fees in respect of the year under review, ond for the following year, ore
disclosed i the Anouai Repart an Remuneration.

Itis expectad thot any intremses fo no-executive direcior fees will nocmctly

ba in fine with those for soloried employees. Howaver, in the event that theze

is 0 material misaEgnment with the market or a change in the complexity,
responsibdlity o1 Fime comemitmens required to fulfil o norexetutive dietter role,
the Boatd has discretion to make on oppropriate odjustment o the fee lavel.

OVERVIEW

External appointments

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee acknowledges that
executive directors may be invited to
become non-axecutive directors of other
quoted companies which have no business
relationship with the Group and that these
duties can broaden their experience and
knowledge to the benefit of the Group.
Executive directors are limited to holding
one such position, and the policy is that
fees may be retained by the director,
reflecting the personal risk assumed in such
appointments. No external appointments
were held by the executive directors during
the year.

Consideration of conditions
elsewhere in the Group

Although the Committee does not consutt
directly with employees on executive
Remuneration Palicy, the Committee
does consider general basic satary
increases across the Group, remuneration
arrangements and employment conditions
for the broader employee population when
determining Remuneration Policy for the
executive directors.

When determining executives’ remuneration,
the Committee takes into account views of
shareholders and best practice guidefines
issued by institutional shareholder bodies.
The Committee is always open to feedback
from shareholders on Remuneration

Policy and arrangements, and commits

to undergoing shareholder consultation

in advancs of any significant changes to
Remuneration Policy.

The Committee will continue to monitor
trends and developments in corporate
governance and market practice to ensure
the structure of the executive remuneration
remains appropriate.

Further detail of the votes received in
relation to the Policy Report and the Annuat
Report on Remuneration at the 2014

AGM is provided in the Annual Report on
Remuneration on page 84.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The following section provides details of
how our Remuneration Policy was
implemented during the financial year
ended 31 March 2015,

Remuneration Committee
membership in 2014/15

The role of the Committee is to:

# Determine the Group's policy on
remuneration and menitor its careful
implermentation;

® Review and set performance targets
for incentive plans;

@ Set the remuneration of the Group's
senicr managerment;

& Approve the specific remuneration
package for each of the executive
directors;

& Determine the remuneration of
the Chairman;

@ Determine the terms on which LTIP
and Sharesave awards are made
to empicyees; and

@ Determine the policy for and scope
of pension arrangements for the
executive directors.

The Committee’s full terms of reference are
set out on the Group's website.

As of 31 March 2015, the Committee
comprised five independent non-executive
directors:

& Eric van Amerongen
{Commitiee Chairman)

® Adrian Auer
® Jacques Petry
@ Stephen Riley
& Marina Wyatt

Cnly members of the Committee have

the right to attend Committee meetings.
Other individuals, such as the Group Chief
Executive, Group HR Director and external
consultants, advise the Committee and may
attend from time to time by invitation. The
Company Secretary acts as secretary to the
Committee. No individuals are involved in
decisicns relating to their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met twice
during the year and details of members'
attendance at meetings are provided in the
Corporate Governance section on page 73.

Advisers

Kepler Associates Partnership LLP (Kepler)
provided independent advice to the
Committee relating to executive remuneration
anct benefits during the year. Kepleris a
member of the Remuneration Consultants
Group and is a signatory to the Code of
Conduct for consultants to Remuneration
Committees of UK-listed companies,
details of which can be fourid at
www.remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.
Kepler adheres to this Code of Conduct.

In 201 4/15 Kepler provided independent
advice on remuneration for executives,
remuneration benchmarking data and

regular market and best practice updates.
Kepler reports directly to the Chairman of the
Committee and provides no other senvices to
the Group. Their total fees for the provision

of remuneration services to the Committee in
2014715 were £49,000 plus VAT on the basis
of time and materials

The Committee undertakes due diligence
periodically to ensure that Kepler remains
independent of the Group and that the
advice provided is impartial and objective.
The Committee is satisfied that the advice
provided by Kepler is independent.

Summary of shareholder voting at the AGM on 25 July 2014:

REMUNERATION POLICY

For (including discrefionary)

Against

TOTAL NUMBER OF YOTES % OF VOTES CAST
280,656,244 97.9%
6,030,594

ol s s g it ) 106,686.40
Vmesw'mh EId .............................. S ] 0'225306 ...................................................................
ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION TOTAL NUMBER OF VOTES % OF VOTES CAST

For (including discretionary} 284,704,516 97.9%
Agmms e e R e e renien e —eeirie o &23“06 et et e 2]%
hmlvmesms'(emmmummhemwm) 290'936,?22 e tyennn s lm
.,v.‘;r;s.mmwld e eessmamsiet e o R e SR e s e e e o 5975]24 ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
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Single total figure of remuneration for executive directors {audited)
The table below sets out a single figure for the total rermuneration received by each executive director for the year ended 31 March 2015
and the prior year.
PETER DILNOT TOBY WOOLRY(H
g
2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 ]
£000 £000 £000 £000 2
=
3 =
Basic solary 433 443 283 20 s
Toxzble benefirs' 7 i n |
Pension? 108 11 57 58
Single-yeor voriole? 285 313 186 H05
Multiple-year voriable* - - - - S
- - e e SRR B R LT LT T T U T U IS PN TSNS - 3
N =
Grher 7 8 5 46 2
TOTAL 860 902 552 620
1 Taxahle benefits comprise car clloworece and madicnl insuance
2 During the yeor, Peter Dilnot and Toby Woolrych recened cash supplements in liew of peasion contribution of 25% and 20% of salary respectively.
3 Poymen for performance duting the year under the annuct bonus, and includes ony deferred annual bonus [See following sactions for hurther devils |
4 tncludes ony IIP owards bosed an the volue ot vesiing of shares vesting on performance over the thieeyear penod ending 31 March 2015 for 2014/15, and lor shores vesting on performance w
aver Ihe three-yeor period ending 31 March 2014 for 2013714, =
5 Inclydes Sharesave owards, valued based on embedded gain ot gront, life ossuronce and income pratection For Toby Woalrych, this alse includes o lemporary solary supplement of £4,160 =
per month between 1 June 2014 and 31 March 20135 for teking on additional responsibiliies os interm Menoging Directar for the Belgium Solid Waste business, in addition 1o his current role =
a3 Group Finance Direcicr. “
=
ot
=
=
=

Single total figure of remuneration for non-executive directors (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each non-executive dirsctor for the year ended 31 March
2015 and the prior year.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

BASE FEE ADDITIONAL FEES TOTAL

203/14 2014/15 2003/14 2014/15 013/14 2014115

£000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000

Adrian Auer (Chaiiman) i A1 - - 13 116

oty 38 ''''''' 39 - - 8 39
Sy » 3 - - 3 9
E"c vunAmem" genw .................................... Sé ...................... 3 9 ....... - e :; 5]

Mnnmwwm bt s AR e 128 s e e 3839 S 1 - e ; ;

1 Eric von Amerongen's additional fees comprise £5,000 for his role os the Senior Independeant Director and £7.000 for his Chairmanship of the Remuneration Committee. His fees in 2013/2014
wete paid in evras but stoted obove in steding at an exchonge rote of £1:€1 183% His lees ore now set in sterling and paid in euros each month at the prevailing monthly exchange rote
2 Maring Wyuait's oddrional lee comprises £2.000 for her choirmanship of the Audit Commitiee,
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Incentive outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2015

Performance-related annual bonus Based on the financial performance of the Toby Woolrych, represernting £312,608 for

in respect of 2014/15 performance Group during the year, a bonus of 37.5% of  Peter Dilnot and £204,697 for Toby Wooalrych.
For the year to 31 March 2015, the salary was payable for the financial glement.

maximum bonus potential for executive Based on the achievement of personal Further details of the bonuses paid for
directors was 150% of basic salary. objectives, the Committee determined 2014/15, including performance against
75% of the bonus was based on financial that overall bonuses of 70.5% of salary each of the metrics, are provided in the
performance and 25% on the achievement be awarded to both Peter Dilnot and table below.

of perscnal objectives.

Financial element outcomes
The specific targsts for the year are deemed to be commercially sensitive and are not disclosed in this report but will be disclosed
retrospectively in the next annual report.

MEASURE WEIGHTIRG ACTUAL PERFORMANCE BOKUS PAYOUT (% OF MAX)

50% Below threshold and torget 0%

Undetying free cosh fow 25% Target hs been achéeved 100%

Personal element outcomes
The perscnal performance measures were based on individual objectives, as detailed pelow:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PERSONAL OBJECTIVES DURING THE YEAR BONUS PAYOUT (% OF MAX}

Develop end communicote refreshed Group smateqy; define porfalio manogement plon; defiver
Peter Dilnot commercicl effectiveness programme ond cost savings; talent management and succession plenning; 88%
investar refarions; drive health ond safely improvements

Define partfolio managerment plan; dediver commercicd effeciveness goins cd cost savings; invastor
Toby Woolrych relations; improve Graup controls processes; develop Shenks’ Belgium argunisation; drive health and 88%
safety improvements

Overall bonus outcomes

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FINANCIAL ELEMENT BONL'S OUTCOME PERSONAL ELEMENT BONUS OUTCOME OVERALL BONLS QUTCOME

{% OF SALARY) {% OF SALARY) {% OF SALARY)
Peter Dilnot 37.5% 1% 10.5%
Toby Woolrych 37.5% 13% 70.5%

Ore third of the bonus was awarded in shares, which will vest 50%, 25% and 25% in 2018, 2019 and 2020 respectively.




2012 LTIP vesting

Peter Dilnot and Toby Woolrych were granted awards under the 2012-2015 LTIP cycle of circa 200% and 150% of salary respectively,
Vesting was dependent on three vear adjusted underlying EPS and share price performance. Further detalils, including vesting scheduies
and performance against targets, are provided in the table below:

PERFORMANCE

MEASURE TARGETS

PERFORMANCE

0% vesfing for EPS growth belaw 7% p.a.

5% vasting far EPS growth of 7% p.c.
50% vesting for EPS growth of 25% p.o. o mare

1x mulfiplies bor share price growth ot or below 15% p.o.

Share piice growth

Stiaight fine vesting betwesn these points

TOTAL LTIP VESTING

2x multigtie for share prce growth of 25% p.a. ar more

ACTUAL VESTING OUTCOME
PERFORMANCE {% OF MAXIMLIM)
<J% 0%
<15% 0%

0%

Share price growth was calculated using three-month average share prices immediately prior to the start and end of the performance

period. The three-year period over which performance was measured ended on 31 March 2015, Having failed to achieve the performance

targets, the award has not vested and therefore has been deemed to have lapsed.

Scheme interests awarded in 2014/15 {audited)
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In May 2014, Peter Dinot and Toby
Woolrych were granted awards under the
2011 LTIP with a face value of circa 150%
and circa 120% of their respective 2014/15
salaries. The three-year period over which
perfomance will be measured began on 1
April 2014 and will end on 31 March 2017.
Performance will be assessed 50% on EPS,
25% on share price and 25% on ROCE
over the three-year performance period.
25% of maximum is payable for threshold
performance. Detail on performance targets
is provided in the table opposite. For any
shares to vest, the Committee will also need
to satisfy itself that the recorded cutcome is
a fair reflection of the overall performance of
the Group over the period.

50% of vested awards will be released
immediately {(subject to continued
employment}, 25% after a further year
and 25% after two years.

Exit payments and payments to past directors made in the year (audited)

MEASURE

EPS CAGR

WEIGHTING

50%

Share price CAGR

Impravement in ROCE

5%

5%

TARGETS

(% vesting below 5% p.o.
25% vesting far 5% p.o.
0% vesting for 10% p.o.
100% vesting far 15% p.a.

Stroight{ine vesting batween these points

(% vesting below 9% p.o.
25% vesting for 9% p.o.
50% vesting for 13% p.o.
100% vesting far 1 7% p.0.

Stoightine vesfing between thesa points

0% vesting below +0.5%

25% vesting for +0.5%

100% vesting far +2.0%

Straightine vesting between thesa points
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EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Peter Dilnol

Toky Woakrych

DATE OF GRANT

19 May 2014

AWARDS MADE
DURING THE
YEAR (SHARES)

652,000

MARKETPRICE AS ~ GRANT
PER PLAN RULES VALUE

102p

29 May 2014

341,000 102p £347 820

£665,040

No exit payments or payments to past directors were made in the year.
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2015/16

Basic salary

Market positioning of basic salary is reviewed
on an individual basis, taking account of the
individual performance and experience of
each executive director and advice received
from the Committee’s independent advisers
on remuneration levels for similar roles in
comparabie companies.

The Committes approved the following basic salary increases with effect from 1 Apnl 2015:

EXECUTIVE BASIC SALARY AT
DIRECTOR 1 APRIL 2014
Peter Dilnot £443415

Taby Weolrych £290.350

BASIC SALARY FROM PERCENTAGE
F APRIL 2015 INCREASE
£452,285 %

£296,160 %

Pension

The Group Chief Executive and Group
Finance Director receive a cash supplement
in lieu of pension of 25% and 20% of salary,
respectively, or an equivalent pension
contribution.

Annual bonus

The maximum annual bonus opportunity
for executive directors in 2015/16 will be
150% of salary, with one third of any
bonus pay out deferred into shares vesting
50% after three years, 25% after four
years and 25% after five years. Pay out

for achievement of target performance

will be 80% of maximum.

Bonuses will be based 50% on undertying
profit befors tax, 25% on underlying free
cash flow and 25% aon personal objectives.
Proposed target levels have been set to be

challenging relative to the 2Q15/16 business
plan, although specific targets ara deemead
to be commercially sensitive and will be
disclosed retrospectively in the 2015/16
annual report.

Lmp

The Committee intends that LTIP awards
granted in 2015 will have the same
performance conditions as those granted
in 2014. Vesting is based on achievernent
of EPS, share price and ROCE targets
{combined additively), as detailed on page
87. The EPS measure used is adjusted
undertying EPS. The same basis for
adjustments is used for both vesting and
base year EPS numbers for LTIFP awards to
ensure consistency. LTIP oppertunities are
150% of salary for the Grroup Chief Executive
and 120% of salary for the Group Finance
Director.

The proportion vesting for threshold
performance for these awards is 25% of
maxdmum, Vested shares will be subject
to an additional two-year holding pericd
post-vesting.

For any shares o vest, the Commiitee
will also need to satisfy itself that the
recorded outcome is a fair reflection of
the overall performance of Shanks over
the period.

Clawback

As mentioned in the Chairman’s annual
staternent, clawback is being introduced to
the annual bonus for the performance year
ending 31 March 2016 and for LTIP awards
being made in 2015,

Chairman and non-executive
director fees

Following a review of Board fees, and taking
into account salary increases across the
Group, the Board determined to apply

a 2% increase to the fees payable to the
nen-executive directors. The Committee,

in censidering similar factors, determined that
the fee payable to the Chairman of the Board
also be increased by 2%. A summary of the
fee increases, which are effective from 1 April
2015, is set out in the table on the right:

2014/15 2015/16
Base fees
(huumun e e e 2”60005:”8320
S 539730
..;l.ddﬁnmi -
Audit Cnmminee"(.hui: 57,000 £7.140 .
e Comtes G Cum ww
Senwr 'l‘nJe‘pendenl [Hrector £5,000 £5,100




Percentage change in Group Chief Executive’s remuneration

The table below shows the percentage
change in the Group Chief Executive's
remuneration from the prior year compared
to the average percentage change in
remuneration for all UK-based employees.
This group was selected because

the Committee believes it provides a
sufficiently large comparator group to
give a reasonable understanding of
undertying increases that are based on
similar incentive structures, whitst on the
other hand reducing any distortion arising

from including all of the geographies in
which the Group operates, with their
different economic conditions. To provide
a meaningful comparison, the analysis
includes all UK based employees and is
based on a consistent set of employees.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OTHER EMPLOYEES

2013/14 201415 % %

£000 £000 CHANGE CHANGE

Salary 433 443 % i)

Tomhle L 2 ] ....... — - "
Smglwmm"ah!e . 285 3]3]0% 40%

Total 145 783 5% 4%

Relative impartance of spend on pay

The table shows the percentage change

in total employee pay expenditure and
shareholder distributions {1.e. dividends and
share buy-backs) from the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 to the financial year
ended 31 March 2015.

2013/14 2014/15 %

£m £m CHANGE

Distribution ta sharcholders 13.7 37 0%
Employee remunergtion 1618 156.2 3%

The Directors are proposing a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 2.35
pence per share (2014: 2.35 pence).

Pay for performance
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The graph to the right shows the Total
Shareholder Return (TSR} of the Group over
the six-year period to 31 March 2015. Whilst
there is no comparator index or group of
companies that iruly reflects the activities

of the Group, the FTSE Support Services
Sector has been selected as a comparator
index as it is the sector in which Shanks is
classified and tends to be the index against
which analysts judge the performance of the
Group. The Group is also a member of the
FTSE All-Share Index. The table on page 90
details the Group Chief Executive's single
figure remuneration and actual variable pay
outcomes over the same period.

Historical TSR Performance

Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the six years to 31 March 2015
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Group Chief Executive’s single figure of remuneration over the six-year period to 31 March 2015

2009/10 010/ 201 /12 2012/13 053/14 014/15
PETER DILNOT'
Group Chief Executive single figure of rerunergion (€006 157 857 960 902
Annual bonus outcome (% of maximum} 87% 19% 46% 70.5%
UTIP vesting outcome (% of meximum) - 0% 0% 0%
TOM DRURY?
Group Chiet Executiva single figure of remunesotion (€000) 663 840 284

38% 69% 0%

LTIP vesting outcome (% of moximu

) 0% 1] 0%

1. Peter Cilnat was appainted os Group Chief Executive on 1 Febiuory 2012,
2. Tom Drury resigned as Group Chief Executive an 30 September 2011

Directors’ interests

The interests of the directors and their ORDINARY SHARES AT gfg:";:'n cs:‘;:f;
tamiiies in the ordinary shares of the Group T APRIL 2014 AND 21 MAT 2015
during the year anfj as at 21 May 2015 were Peter Dot 172191 83210
8BS SNOWN ORI ENB TIGNE. e aeeere e eeseeAR et RR R A s £ SRR 4R R RS e i
Taby Woolrych 14,757 27,493
Details of direCtors’ INTErESIS iN ShAMRS b T S -
and options under the long-tem incentive L B e s s e OB 38
schemes are set out in the sections below. facques Patry - -
Stephen Riley 20,000 20,000
Eric van Amerangen - -
Marina Wyott - -

Directors’ shareholding {(audited)
The table below shows the shareholding of each executive director, against their respective sharehoiding requirement as at 31 March 2015:

SHARES HELD OPTIONS HELD
VESTED BUT UNVESTED AND UNVESTED AND
OWNED SUBJECT TO SUBJECE TO VESTED BUT SUBJECTTo  SHAREHOLDING CURRINT o ReMENT
OUTRIGHT OR REQUIREMENT  SHAREHOLDING
iy HOLDING  PERFORMANCE  NOT EXERCISED  CONTINUOUS Py o SaLART NET?
PERIOD CONDITIONS EMPLOYMENT
Petar Bilnot 83,210 - 1,689.000 - 23,042 100% 19% No
Toby Woolrych 27,493 - 850,000 - 23,042 100% 1% No

Shareholdings were calculated using the mid-market price at 31 March 2015 of 105.75 pence.
| Share ownership guidel ~es of H00% of salary 10 be achieved over five years were introduced for execulive dusctors last ysar 1o further align their nterests with thase of shoreholders
The executive direciors are curreny working towards meeting these guidelines
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S
Directors’ interests in shares options and shares in our Long Term Incentive Plan and all-employee plans
The executive directors have been made notional allocations of shares under the Group’s Long Term Incentive Plan:
OUTSTANDING AWARDS AWARDS Erenate  OUTSTANDING pateor  SMAREPRICE .o o vt RESTRICTED
AWARDS AT MADE DURING  LAPSED DURING DURIKG AWARDS AT 21 AWARD ON DATE OF PERICD END PERIOD END
31 MARCH 2014 THE YEAR THE YEAR' THE YEAR MARCH 2015 AWARD (PENCE} =
[=]
1,091,000 - 1,091,000 - - 01.08.12 19.27 31.03.15 01.08.15 E
Peter Dilnot 1,037,000 - - - 1,037,000 07.06.13 8342 31.03.16 07.06.14 E
- 452,000 - - 652,000 29.05.74 102 31.03.17 3.03.0% -
470,000 - 470,000 - - 28.08.12 90.33 31.03.15 80815 ——
Toby Woolrych 509,000 - - - 509,000 07.06.13 83.42 31.03.76 07.06.16
- 341,000 - - 341,000 290514 102 30 31.03.1%9
1 Performance condihons not mar 31 March 2015,
2 The performance conditions relating to the vesting of cuistanding ewards are shown on page 87
3 One third of the annuat bonus for the yeor ended 31 March 2015 is cworded n deleried shores unde: the Deferred Annuval Bonus Scheme.
These were not owarded ot the time of publicotion ond will be included in next year's report.
The executive directors held options to subscribe for ordinary shares under the Shanks Group plc Savings Related Share Option Scheme: _
DATE OF NORMAL NORMAL  opTiON PRICE  NUMBER AT GRANTED LAPSED EXERCISED  NUMBER AT 31 §
GRANT DATES FROM. DATES 10 {PENCE) 1 APRIL 2014 IN YEAR IN YEAR IN YEAR MARCH 2015 &
200912 011115 30.04.36 7134 12,328 - - - 12,328 g
Peler D‘[m' ....................................................................... . s
25.09.14 RIRY 30.04.18 840 - 10714 - - 10,714 =
2009.12 011115 30.04.74 73.0 12,328 - - - 12,328 I
waw ........................ o ——
25.09.14 01.11.07 30.04.18 840 - 10,714 - - 10,714 =
1 The option price is the price at which the option was granted. The price is set by the Remuneration Committee but s not less than 80% of the overoge market price of the shores over the lost ;‘
three dealing days immediotely preceding the date of the inviration to subscribe. =
=
=
Tha highest closing mid-market price of By order of the Board 2
the ordinary shares of the Group during the 8
year was 112 pence and the lowest closing

mid-market price during the year was
86.25 pence. The mid-market price at the
close of business on 31 March 2015 was
105.75 pencs.

Other interests

None of the directors had an interest in
the shares of any subsidiary undertaking
of the Group or in any significant contracts
of the Group.

Uh. 2

Eric van Amerongen
Chairrmnan of the Remuneration Committee
21 May 2015
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The Company’s Articles

of Association

Many of the matters described below are
governed by the Company’s Articles of
Assaciation (Articles) as well as by current
legislation and regulations. The Articles can
be found on the website at www.shanksplc.
com/investor-centre/sharehclder-information.
Unless expressly specified to the contrary in
the Articles they may be amended by special
resolution passed at a general meeting.

Strategic report

The Strategic Report set out on pages

2 to 67 provides a fair review of the Group's
business for the year ended 31 March 2015.
It also explains the objectives and strategy of
the Group, its competition and the markets
in which it aperates, the principal risks and
uncertainties it faces, the Group's financial
position, key performance indicators and
likely future developments of the business.
The Strategic Report was approved by a
duly authorised committee of the Board on
21 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by the
Company Secretary.

Directors’ report

The Directors’ Report comprises pages 68 to
95. The Directors' Report was approved by
a duly authorised committee of the Board on
21 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by the
Company Secretary.

Other information

Apart from the detaits of the Company's
long term incentive plans, as set out in the
Directors' Remuneration Report on pages
77 to 91, no further information requires
disclosure for the purposes of complying
with the Financial Conduct Authority's Listing
Rule 9.8.4C.

Directors

The composition of the Board at the date
of this Report, together with directors’
biographical details, s shown on pages
68 and 69. All served on the Board
throughout the financial year under review
and all will be offering themselves for re-
election at the Company's AGM.

Appointment and replacement
of directors

The Company shall appeint not less than two

directors (disregarding alternate directors).
The appointment and replacement of
directors may be made as follows:

# the Company’s members may, by ordinary

resclution, appeint any person who is
willing to act to be a director;

@& the Beard may appoint any person who
is witling to act to be a director. Any
director so appeointed shall hold office

only until the next AGM and shall then be

eligible for election;

@ each director shall retire from office at
every AGM but he or she may be re-
appointed by ordinary resolution if efigible
and willing;

® the Company may, by special resolution,
rermove any director before the expiry
of his or her period of office or may. by
crdinary resolution, remove a director
where special notice has been given and
the necessary statutory procedures are
complied with; and

@ a director must vacate his or her office if

any of the circumstances in Article 100 of

the Articles of the Company arisa.

Powers of directors

The business of the Company is ranaged
by the Beoard which may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whether relating

to the management of the business of the
Compary or not. This power is subject to
any limitations imposed on the Company by
legislation. It is also limited by the provisions
of the Articles and by any directicns given
by special resolution of the members of the
Company. Specific provisions relevant to the
exercise of powers by the directors include
the following:

@ pre-emptive rights and new issues of
shares — under the Companies Act 2006,
{the Act), the directors of a company are,
with certain exceptions, unagle to allot
any equity securities without express
authorisation, which may be contained
in a company’s Articles or given by its
shareholders in general meeting. In
addition under the Act, the Company
may not aliot shares for cash (otherwise
than pursuant to an employees share
scheme) withaut first making an offer to
existing shareholders to allot such shares
to them on the same or more favourable
termns in propertion to their respective
shareholdings, unless this requirement
is waived by a special resolution of the
Company's shareholders. The Company
received autharity at the last AGM to allot
shares for cash on a non pre-emptive
basis up to a maximum nominal amount
of £1,988,619. This authority lasts until
the earlier of the AGM in 2015 or 30
September 2015;

® repurchase of shares — subject to
authorisation by shareholder resolution,
the Company may purchase all or any of
its own shares in accordance with the Act




and the Uisting Rules. Any shares which
have been bought back may be held as
treasury shares or, if not so held, must be
cancelled immediately upon comptetion
of the purchase, thereby reducing

the amount of the Company’s issued
share capital. The Company received
authority at the tast AGM to purchase

up to 39,772,397 ordinary shares. This
authority lasts until the earier of the AGM
in 2015 or 30 September 2015; and

& borrowing powers — the directors are
empowered to exercise all the powers
of the Company to borrow money and
to mortgage or charge all or any part
of the Company's assets, provided that
the aggregate amount of borrowings
of the Group outstanding at any time
does ot exceed the limit set out in
the Articles, unless sanctioned by an
ordinary resolution of the Company's
shareholders.

Directors’ indemnities

As at the date of this Report, the Company

has granted indeminities to the extent

permitted by faw, in respect of certain
liabilities incurred as a resutt of carrying

out the role of a director of the Company.

The indemnities are qualifying third party

indemnity provisions for the purposes of the

Companies Act 2006. In respect of those

liabilities for which the directors may not

be indemnified, the Company maintained

a Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance

policy throughout the financial year and has

renewed that policy.

Corporate governance

The Board is fully cormmitted to high
standards of corporate governance. Details
relating to the Company’s compliance with
the UK Cerporate Governance Code for
the financial year are given in the Corporate
Governance and Directors’ Remuneration
Reports on pages 70 to 91.

Corporate responsibility

Shanks Group plc is a leading international
waste-to-product company. information
on Corporate Responsikility (CR) matters
including those on environment, social,
cormmunity and employmenit policies

and health and safety are set out in the
Corporate Social Responsibility section on
pages 29 to 33, and in the People section
on pages 56 to 60 of the Strategic Report.
These include disclosures on greenhouse
gas emissions reporting as well as human

rights and gender diversity policies. Further
details on the Company's approach to
carbon avoidance and the berefits of
sustainable waste management can afso
be found in the Group CR Report and CR
Policy both of which are available on the
Group website.

Results and dividends

The Group's Consolidated Income
Statement appears on page 102 and note
3 to the financial statements shows the
contribution to revenue and profits made
by the different segments of the Group's
business. The Group's loss for the year was
£16.9m (2014: loss of £28.2m).

The directors recommend a final dividend
of 2.35 pence (2014: 2.35 pence) per
share be paid on 31 July 2015 to ordinary
shareholders on the register of members
at the close of business on 3 July 2015.
This dividend, if approved by shareholders,
together with the interim dividend of 1.1
pence (2014: 1.1 pence} per share already
paid on & January 2015, will make a total
dividend for the year 3.45 pence per share
(2014: 3.45 pence).

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors nave
formed the view, at the time of approving the
financial statements, that the Company and
Group have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that the Group's business is a
going concern, For this reason the directors
continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

Share capital

The Company’s share capital comprises
erdinary shares of 10 pence each par value.
As at 31 March 2015 and as at the date

of this Report there were 397,850,417

and 397,853,415 ordinary shares in issue
respectively. During the year ended 31
March 2015 no ordinary shares were issued
other than in respect of the exercise of
options or awards under the Company's
share schemes, details of which are given
in note 7 to the financial statements.

Principal rights and obligations
attaching to shares

@ Dividend rights — the Company may, by
ordinary resolution, declare dividends
but may not declare dividends in excess

of the amount recommended by the
directors. The directors may also pay
interim dividends. No dividend may

be paid other than out of profits available
for distribution. Payment or satisfaction
of a dividend may be made whoily or
partly by distribution of assets, including
fully paid shares or debentures of any
other company. The direciors may
deduct from any dividend payable to a
member all sums of money

{if any} payable by such member to

the Company in respect of their
ordinary shares.

& Voting rights — voting at this year's AGM
will be by a pall only. On a pall, every
shareholder who is present in person or
by proxy or represented by a corporate
representative has one vote for every
share held by that shareholder. In the
case of joint holders of an ordinary share,
the vote of the senior who tenders a vote
shall be accepted to the exclusion of the
votes of the other joint holders. Seniority
is determined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear in
the Company’s register of members in
respect of the joint holding. The deadline
for appeinting proxies to exercise voting
rights at any general meeting is set out
in the notice convening the relevant
meeting. The Company is not aware of
any agreements between holders of its
shares that may result in restrictions on
voting rights.

® Return of capital —in the event of
the liquidation of the Company, after
payment of all liahilities and deductions
taking pricrity, the balance of assets
available for distribution will be distributed
amongst the holders of ordinary shares
according to the amounts paid up on the
shares held by them. A liquidator may,
with the sanction of a special resolution
of the shareholders and any other
sanction required by law, divide among
the shareholders in kind the whole or any
part of the Company's assels or vest the
Company’s assets, but no shareholder
may be compelled to accept any assets
upon which there is any liability.

Share restrictions

There are no limitations under the
Company's Articles of Association that
restrict the rights of members to hold the
Company's shares. Certain restrictions
may from time to time be imposed on the

93

OVERVIEW

’ STRATEGIC REPORT | |

GOVERNANCE

1 FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

|




94| SHANKS GROUP plc | ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2015 ’

OTHER DISCLOSURES

CONTINUED

transfer of the Company’s shares by laws
and regulations such as insider trading

laws. In limited situations, as permitted by
the Articles, the Board may also decline

to register a transfer. The Company is not
aware of any agreements between holders
of its shares that may resutt in restricticns on
the transfer of securities.

Employee share schemes ~

control rights

The Company operates a number of
employee share schemes. Under one of
those schemes, ordinary shares may be
held by trustees on behalf of employees.
Employees are not entitled to exercise
directly any vating or other control rights in
respect of any shares held by such trustees.
The trustees have full discretion to vote or
abstain from voting at general meetings of
the Company in respect of such shares.

Notifiable interests

The Company has been notified of direct and
indirect interests in voting rights equal to or
exceeding 3% of the ordinary share capital
of the Company as set out in the table on
page 95.

Retail bonds

As at 31 March 2015 the Company had in
issue two Retail Bonds: the first, comprising
€100m 5% guaranteed notes dueg 22
October 2015; and the second, comprising
€100m 4.23% guaranteed notes due 30
July 2019. There are no restrictions under
the instruments governing these notes that
restrict the rights of investors o hold or
transfer them. The Company is not aware
of any agreements between the holders of
the notes that may result in restrictions on
their transfer.

Change of control - significant
agreements

The Group's principal financing instrument
at 31 March 2015, a €180m multicurrency
revolving credit facility with seven major
banks, contains an option for those
banks 1o declare by notice that all sums
outstanding under that agreement are
repayable immediately in the event of

a change of control of the Company.

Any such notice may take effect no earlier

than 30 days from the change of control
and, if exercised at 31 March 2015, would
have required the repayment of £32.6m
(2014: £51.9m) in principal and interest.

The Group's Retail Bonds issued in October
2010 and July 2013 require notice to be
given to bondholders within seven business
days of a change cof control following

which the holders have an option to seek
repayment at a 1% premium, within 60 days
of that notice. Such repayment must be
made within 10 business days of the expiry
ot the option pericd. If exercised at

31 March 2015, repayment of £146.2m
{2014: £171.2m) in principal and interest
would have been required.

The notes issued under the Group's 24
March 2011 private placement contain

an option for the noteholders to enforce
prepayment between 30 and 60 days from

a change of control of outstanding principal
and interest which would have amounted

in total at 31 March 2015 to £28.9m (2014:
£33.9m). In addition, a make-whole payment
amounting to £4.8m (2014: £4.1m) which is
not provided for in these financial staterments
would be payable to private placement
notehclders based on treasury yields at 31
March 2015.

The rules of the Company's employee share
plans provide that awards and options may
vest and become exercisable on a change of
conirol of the Company.

Research and development

The Group spent £206,000 (2014: £180,000)
on research and development during the
year. This related to the development of
technotogies for mapping landfil sites,
optimising waste decomposition processes
and the recovery of energy and materials
through excavation techniques and waste
pre-treatment.

Political donations

No donations were made by the Group for
political purposes during the financial year
(2014: Lnil),

Annual General Meeting
Notice of the AGM of the Company to be

held at the offices of Ashurst LLP, Broadwalk
House, 5 Appold Street, London EC2A
2HA on Thursday, 23 July 2015 at 11.00am
will be made available to shareholders,
together with a form of proxy, and will

also be available on the Group website

at www.shanksplc.com. The directors
consider that all the AGM resolutions are

in the best interests of the Company and
they recommend unanimously that all
shareholders vote in favour, as they intend
1o do in respect of their own shareholdings.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
The directors are responsible for preparing
the Annual Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the financial
staterments in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the Group and Parent
Company financial staterments in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union (EU).

Under company law, the directors must

not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affalrs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Group for that period. In preparing
these financial staternents, the directors are
required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

@& make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

@ state whether applicable IFRSs as
adopted by the EU have been followed,
subject ta any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

@ prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.




The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that

are sufficient 1o show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article

4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and the Group

and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Company’s
website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparaticn and dissemnination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

The directors consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,

is falr, balanced and understandable

and provides the information necessary

for shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business mode! and strategy.

Each of the directors, whose names

and functions are listed on page 69 of the
Annual Report confirms that, to the best of
their xnowledge:

& the Group financial staterments, which
have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financiaf position and
loss of the Group;

@ the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group.
together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces;

@ there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditers are
unaware; and

& they have taken all the steps that they
ought to have taken as directors in
order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditors
are aware of that information.

e

Philip Griffin-Smith
Company Secretary
21 May 2015

Shanks Group plc
Registered in Scotland no. SC077438
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF SHANKS GROUP PLC

Our opinion

What we have audited

In our opinion, Shanks Group pic's Group
and Company financial statements
{the: “financial stataments"):

® give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as
at 31 March 2015 and of the Group's and
the Cormpany’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended;

® have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) as adopted
by the European Union; and

® have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the
1AS Regulation.

Our audit approach - Overview

Shanks Group plc’s financial statements
comprise:

& the Group and Company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2015;

@ the Consolidated Income Staternent and
Statement of Comprehensive Income for
the year then ended;

& the Group and Company Statemnert of

Changes in Equity for the year then ended;

® the Group and Company Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

@ the notes to the financial statements,
which include a summary of significant
accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been
presented elsewhere in the Annual Report,
rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These are cross-referenced
from the financial statements and are
identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that

has been applied in the preparation of the
financial statements is applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union.

Materiality

@ Overall Group materiality: £1.1million
which represents 5% of the Group's
adjusted profit before tax.

Audit scope

@ We performed an audit of the complete
financial information of the Hazardous
Waste, Nethertands Solid Waste, Belgium
Solid Waste, UK Municipal and Group
Central Services divisions.

@ We obtained coverage of 96% of the
Group adjusted profit before tax from
the audit procedures performed.

@ Additionat procedures performed at
the Group level over non-reporting
components.

Areas of focus

& Goodwil, intangible and tangible
asset impairment assessment,

® Presentation of non-trading and
exceptional items.

@ Accounting for provisions.
@ Accounting for taxation.
& Accounting for PFI contracts,

@ Accounting for joint ventures and
associates.

® Revenue recognition on contracts
where performance occurs over time.




The scope of our audit and our
areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Irefand) {'ISAs (UK & Ireland)™).

We designed our audit by determining
materiality and assessing the risks of
material rmisstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at
where the diractors made subjective
judgements, for example in respect of

Area of focus
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE AND TANGIBLE ASSET IMPAIRMENT

At 31 March 2015 the Group hod £173.8m of goodwil ond intunggble assets ond €282 9m of tungible
ossefs on the Group balance sheet. See nates 14 ond 15 respeciively.

The Group is required o ornwally essess the corrying volue of goadwil by performing o volue in use
cotudotion based on the future troding profections of the relevant qush generuting unit {CGUY.

In the current year, as a result of performing valug in use colculations, the Group recarded goodwill
impairment chargas of 11, 1m in refation o goodwall in the Netherlands Solid Waste division, In the prior
yen! the Group alsa recorded an impaitment charge on the goodwil in the Nethedands Solid Waste (G0
of €8.9m.

Accardingly, we focused on this area becouse the volve in e calcuktion indudes key assumptions ond
management judgements, ond we consides there to be a heightened risk over the quantum of the impairmen
¢harge recorded in the current year.

Seporately fo the consideration of the comying vatue of goodwil, the Group must consider whether arry
indicators of impairment hove been identified in redation fo ofher intangible essefs subject o amortisation and
tangible assets subject to depredation in CGUs without goodwill.

Tvo of e Group's opesating sites performed below budget during the yeas. Accordingly he Group has
pesfomed separofe volue in use ssessments 1 ascertuin whether the corying volues of he ossefs of these
sites are supporiable. As a result of this analysis asset impaimendts of £10.5m have been recorded.

We focused on this area because the consideration of whether indicatovs of impoirment of ather tangibie and
infongible ossets exist is judgermental.

PRESENTATION OF NON-TRADENG AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The Group presens two measutes of performance in the Income Statement; stotutocy ond troding/
underying, the lotter after adjusring for certain items thot managerment believes do not reflect the hue
underlying pe-formance of the Gioup.

The derermingtion of which iterns arg dossified os exceptiond) ar sor-hading is subject o [udgement ah
herefose users of the accounts could be misled if oemounts are not clossified eppropriotely.

A desaiption of the amounts prasented as norrading o excepsional is included in nate 4 to the
finondal statements.

significant accounting estimates that
invalved making assumptions and
considering future events that are inherently
uncertain. As in all of cur audits, we also
addressed the risk of management override
of internal controls, including evaluating
whether there was evidence of bias by the
directors that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

the allocation of our resources and effort,
are identified as “areas of focus” in the
table below. We have also set out how ws
tailored our audit to address these specific
areas in order to provide an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, and any
comments we make on the results of our
procedures should be read in this context.
This is not a complete list of all risks
identified by our audit.

The risks of material misstatement that had
the greatest effect on our audi, including

How our audit oddressed the area of focus

For ol (GUs wa obtvined the discounted cash flow forecasts prepared by manogement. Dercls of the
assumptians included in the cosh flow ferecasts prepored by the Group are indluded in nates 14 ond 15.

We evolugted the accuracy of the future cash fow forecosts By comporing them with the latest Board
appeaved budgets and considering the histusic occuracy of monagerment’s Forecasts by comporing prior
year forecasts o actuol outtun. We challenged:

& the key assumptions for long term growth rates in the forecasts by cempering them with
historical results, econamic and industry forecasts; ond

& the discount rate used. Specificofly, we recolulozed the Group’s weighted avesoge cost of copitel
using market comporable information,

We also performed sensitivity anolysis on the discounted cash flow forecosts and on the ohility of the
Gtoup fo generots the forecast cosh flows. Hoving oscerfined the extent of change in thase assumptions
thot either indvidually or coBectively wovld be required for the goodwil, intongible and rongible assets v
be impaired, we considered the likelibood of such o movement in those key ossumptions orfsing.

In the Netherlands Solid Wosta CGL a praportion of the goodwill was impaired by manogement. For other
(s with goodwill we were satisfied that the corrying velue of goadwill was supporred by the value in

use caloutations. Hoving performed the procedures obove we satisfied ourselves thot the omount of the
impaitment recarded in the Nethedands Salid Wasie (GU was within a reasenable range of oufcomes,
aliheugh wa concluded the? any reasonably possible change in assumprians could cause further impairment.

In the CGUs without goodwill, we considered whether any indicators of impairment existed ather than in
the two opersting sites identified by menagement. We compared actud performonce of the relevant cash
genernting unit with budget,forecast and, where performance was below budget forecast, investigoted
the underlying rouses. Hoving performed these procedures, ond thase on the cash flow forecasts prepored
by menagement above, we concluded that the fangible end other intangible irpairments recorded by the
Geoup in (GUs without goodwill were appropriate and that the quantum of these impaimments were within
o teasanable range of outcomes.

We considered the appropriateness of the adjusiments mode to stafiutary profit befota tox to derve
Troding Profit ond edjusted grafit before rox. In ardee to do this we considered:

& The Gioup's accounting policy on exceptional and non-rading ifems; and
@ Recent pronguncements by the FRC an 1his matter.
We choflenged monogement on the oppropriateness of the dossfication of such items being mindful thot

tlassification should be even handed hetween goins and losses, the buosis for the dossification dhearly
disclosed, ond applied consistently from one year to the next.

Out work highlighted certain iterns that management had dhossified as exceptional which were
judgementul, Hoving considered the noture ond quantum of these items, overall we re safisfied that the
presentation of nor-mading ond exceptianal items in the finonciol statements for the vear endzd 31 Mard:
2015 is appropriate,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF SHANKS GROUP PLC

CONTINUED

Area of focus
ACCOUNTING FOR PROVISIONS

The fimoup apertes in dffesent jurisdichans and in on industry that is heavily regulted and subjedt 1o chonge.
Noncormplidnce wih laws and ragulanions has the posenrial ra lead fo kigation, penalnies o fines ond assodiated
financial or reputationcl domage.

The Group has recognised long term londfill provisions For site reshorction ond aftescare of £32.9m ot

31 Maich 2015.

Separately the Group has other provisions of £14.6m principally comprising onerous canraets, wananfies and
indernniies. Due fo theis nature, ofl of these provisions ure judgementai, Changes ko the envionment in whidh
the Group opermtes con impact bath the omounts required to sere the pravision and the pesiod oves which the
peavision is racognised.

Certoin onerous contract provisions hove been reassessed in the year and the changes in these provisions
reconfed a5 exceptional ifems.

In addition, dwe to significant dedines in market rigk fia interest rotes, the Group fras reduced the discount
otes applied to long term provisians. The effict of the dhange in discount rates has been accounted for as an
exceptional charge of ¢7.1m.

ACCOUNTING FQR TAXATION

The Group has recognised £21.7m of o tetol potentiol deferred tox asset of $42.2m as a3 31 Masch 2015.
The omaoni of deferred fux asset recognised is udgemental end is determined by reference to futue
forecasts of fxable profits,

In the current year the Group has mcrensed the level of the delerred tax csset recognised 1o represent

0 greater omount of forecast tovoble peofits. This reflects the geater visibility of peafits undes long term
confacts in she HK muricpal business.

Separately, a Group restructuring has been completed in the year, approved by dll relevent tax authorifies,
which hos led to an cverall fox benefit.

ACCOUNTING FOR PFI/PPP CONTRACTS

Under the tesms of the Group's UK PFI/PPP agreements the Gioup has the abligation fo renew and replace
ports of the waste managerent focility as they wear out aver the period of the operating centiodt, Such
fecydle expenditure is occounted for in accordance with IFRIC 12 which requires o provision for ecyds
expenditure 1o be buitt up os wear and tear ocarrs an the fadiity,

During the year the Group hos reassessed the corrying volue of the provision required ond recorded o £0.3m
dehit in exceptional items within the income statement relating fo amounts that should have been pravided
in prior years.

Separately, the Group has conirocts o operme assets which contain fecycle obligations that ore not
aecaunted for in occordonce with IFRIC 12. During the year, the Group has reassessed the allocation of
revenue o meet ifecycls maintenance obfigatians and befieves that the amount allocated historically sheuld
hove been higher, This has led to the recognifion of o £2.0m exceptional charge fe revense representing
revenue recoqnised in tha past that should have been deferred to futuze periods.

How cur audit addressed the area of focus

Our audit work on provisiens 05 a whole comprised:

& Mesting with inhouse fegol counsel o determine the status of known duims against the G:oup ond
nssess the approprioteness of the associated provisians held;

& Understanding the processes and controls in place to ensure complianee and a discussion of any
instonces of nan-compliance in the year with management;

@ Reoding significont cantacts entered infa by the Broup to determine whether oy ather coniocts,
ather than those identified by management, ure onerous;

@ Reoding board minutes 1o identify any relevant motters reported o the board,

For the Group's long term peovisions we:

& Discussed the bosis of the caleulation of the pravision with manogement;

@ (onsiderad the opproprigteness of the discount rates applied to the foracast future cosh flaws in
light of marke? risk free rates and the nature of the risks in the future ash flows; and

@ Considered tha estimation accuracy of the forecost spend on which the provision is based on ous
knowledge of the industry, the sites and contiacts involved,

Having pesformed the procedures above we found that eppropriate premia for the risks inherent in the cash

flows hed been inchuded in the discount rates epplied to eoch pravision, which differad depending on the

nawe af the provision.

Wa also found they management had appeopriately token accaunt of new information or changes in the year
in colculating the dasing provisions of the balance sheat date.

As past of our wark n deferred tox we hove considered the epproprinteness of management’s ossumptions
and estimates in relation fo the Bkelhood of generafing suitotde futwe toxatde profits e support the
recogrifion of defered tox assefs. Specicolly we considered:

& Board appraved budgets ond farecasts;
@ The level of forecost profits by legal entity; and
@ The historic lavel of ufilisation of deferred tox ossefs.

Hoving performed the procedures obove we found that the level of deferred fax asset recognised at
31 Maxh 2015 & reasonbla,

Part of the reduction in the underying effectiva fax rate is athribetable to the impact of the Group
restrugturing, We utifised oue specialist knowledge in this area ta cudit of the sccuracy of the current tox
bakances recognised in the finoncicl statements. We did not find any errors qrising fram our work.

We hove considered the appropriafeness of the occounfing for lifecyde expenditure by considering the
requirements of IFRIC 12, the nature of the expendinue fo ba incurred by the Group and the natuwre of its
PFI/PPP confractual arrangements. We hove oudited the colcvlation of the amounts recagnised, which
inchded holding discussions with pessans autside of the fingnce team fo understand the methodology used
10 tompila the forecasts of future Hetytle expendinge, ond we ore sarisfied tat the approach fken is in
occordara with the requirements of IFRS.

We chellenged management s to whether it was mote opprapeiate to present the correction of the
occounting hieatmest! as o pioe yeor adustment, rather than as an exceptional item in the current year,

We considered the quontum of tha portion of the odjustment hat relotes o the: priar year, together with
that of the adjustment to associate income (see Accounting for joint ventures and assodales below) ond
note thot in aggregata they ore rot material to the prior vear odfosted prafit before tox. Accordingly we ore
stisfied that it is oppropriote for these odjustments % be occounted for in the cureent period as exceptional.




Area of focus
ACCOUNTING FOR JOINT VENTURES AND ASSQCIATES

The Group has odopted [FRS 11 *Joint Amangements™ and IFRS 12 “Oisdoswre of Intecests in Other
Entities” for the first time in these fingnciol statements. IFRS 11 requires thet entifies account for interests
in joint ventures ond assaciates using te equity method. The standard must be applied retrospectively
and accordingly comporative financiel information has been eestoted. Previously the Group accounted for
such intesests using praportional consolidation, iFRS 12 requires extensive new disclosures relaring o the
Group's interests in joint ventures, associates and joint armangesmests.

Separately, in celation to one of the Group's PF related associates, the Group has recorded an exceptional
credit of £4.4m in ossorinte income, representing the oddifional profits that cught to hove been
recognised in prior years bosed on g reassessment of the appropriateness of the mode] used to colulote
the payment profile on the financiol asset under IFRIC 12,

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON CONTRACTS WHERE PERFORMARCE DCCURS OVER TIME

The nature of the Group's performanice obligations under revenue contiacts varies from business o
business ond fom astomer fo customer. In the Nethedands Solid Waste business o number of mntracts
give rise to an obligation fo process waste received, although mary da nat. In the Hozordous Woste
division substontially oft o the cantacts give rise to on ohfigation fo process waste raceived. Where such
obligations exist, when invaices 1o customers are roised in odvance of pro<essing the waste, the revenue
is deferred.

At 33 March 2015, the Group has €19.1m of defered revenue on its balance sheet.

Due fo the varying nature of the Group's controctual abligations we: hove foassed effort an fhis area to
oddress th risk of undetectad materil errors in the racording of revenua and deferred revenus.

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Qur work in this area included:

@ C(onsideration of tha appropriotenass of the clossification of the Graup’s joint orrangements cs
joint ventures or joint operations based on the guidence in IFRS 11;

& Considerotion hat the Group has accurately applied the requirements of equity accounting for it
joint ventures ond assaciates in the current yeor;

& Auditing the securncy of the restatement of comporative information in relation to the change from
proportional consolidation accounting fo equity accounting for the Group’s joint ventures; and

& (onsidering the adequacy of the disclosures made in the 2015 finandiof statements in refation to
the requirements of IFRS 12 by considering ot only the quantum of the assets and liobilities on
the Group’s bulance sheet, but akso the gross assets and liabilities of the joint venture /associate
and the nature of its operations.

Huving performed the procedures bave we were safisfied that joinf ventures and ossodiates had been
uppropriately dessified ond occounted for under the requirements of IFRS 11, and that comparative
information wos. occurctely restuted whese oppficoble. As none of the individuol ivestments in jeént
arangements or associates are qualitatively of quantitafively motetiol 1o the Group, ne separale disclosura
of the results of these enfities was required in ferms of IFRS 12,

n relafion o the £4.4m odjustment to income from mssocintes we considered the oppsopriteness of the
revised madel used fo olufte the payment profile on the finonciol asset and consider that this represents
1 more apprapiiate model han the previous ane used by the Gaup. Our considerations of the occounting
ireatment and disdlasura of this iter are set out in our respanse 1o the “Accaunting for PFI /PP controts™
orea of focus.

We audited monagement's calculetion of deferred revenue, which s coltuloted besed on invaiced woste

tonnages and piicing, by:

@ ottending year-end inventory counts of unprocessed wasts 10 fest the existenca of waste tannages
ot yens end;

@ performed substontive tests of detail on the pricing of individuol waste components; and

@ reperformed manogement's calculation of defened revenue o year end.

Hoving performed the procedures above we were safisfied thar the quentities of unprocessed waste ot
yetr end wsed in management’s calculntions were suppartuble and that appropeiate prices hod been used
to <olculote the defaned revanue balance.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tzilored the scope of our audit to
ensure that we performed encugh work to
be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account
the geographic structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and
the industry in which the Group operates.

The Group financial statements are a
consolidation of six reporting units being
Netherlands Solid Waste, Belgium Solid
Waste, UK Municipal, Hazardous Waste,
Organics and Group Central Services.
Cf the Group's six reporting units, we
identified Hazardous Waste, Netherlands
Solid Waste, Belgium Solid Waste, UK

Municipal and Group Central Services
which, in our view, required an audit of
their complete financial information due
to their size comparad with the Group.
This, together with additional procedures
performed at the Group level, gave us the
evidence we needed for our opinion on

the Group financial statements as a whole.

As a result of our scoping we performed
audit procedures over 96% of the Group's
adjusted profit before tax.

The Group's accounting function is
structured into local or regional finance
centres for each of the territories in which
the Group operates. These functions
maintain their own accounting records

and controls and report to the head
office finance team through an integrated
consolidation system. We visited the
shared service centres in the Netherlands
and Belgium as part of our audit work,

In establishing the overall approach 1o
the Group audit, we determined the type
of waork that needed to be performed

at the reporting units by us, as he
Group engagement team {who were
also respensible for the audit of the UK
Municipal audit unit), or component
auditors from other PwC network firms
operating under our instruction. Where the
work was performed by our component
audit teams in the Netherlands and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF SHANKS GROUP PLC

CONTINUED

Belgium, we determined the leve! of Based on our professional judgement,

involverment we needed to have inthe audit  we determined materiality for the financial

work at those reporting units to be able to statements as a whole as follows:

conclude whether sufficient appropriate

audit evidence had been obtained as a OVERALL GROUP ¢+ 3y (90114; £1.5m),

. - . MATERIALITY

basis for our oginion on the Group financial e eaaes e e e e ceaeaae e e srereaeaans
isi How we 5% of odusted peofitbef

statements as a whole. This included DETERMINED IT adjusted peofit before tax.

time spent planning the audit with the eaonatirox e e

component teams, attendance by the BENCHMARK We bieteva ot profit befors fox, adjused

APPLIED for noevérading and exceptional items

Group engagement tearmn at the clearance
meetings held for the Netherdands Solid with 0 consistent yem on year besk ot
Waste, Hazardous Waste and Belgium Solid determining materaliy by eliminging the
Waste reporting units and a review of the impact of thesa ifems.

audit working papers of our component
teams by the Group engagement team.

tudusted profit before tox) provides us

- We agreed with the Audit Committee that
Materiality we wollld report to them misstaternents
The scope of our audit was influenced by identified during our audit above £0.1m
our application of materiality. We set certain {2014; £0.1m) as well as misstatements
quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,  below that amount that, in our view,
together with qualitative considerations, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
helped us to determine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures and to evaluate the
effect of misstatements, both individually
and on the financial statements as a whole.

Other required reporting

Going concern

Under the Listing Rules we are required

to review the directors’ statement, set out
on page 93, in relation to going concern.
We have nothing te repert having performed
Our review,

As noted in the directors’ statement,
the directors have concluded that it

is appropriate to prepare the financial
staterments using the going concern basis
of accounting. The going concern basis
presumes that the Group and Company
have adequate resources to remain in
operation, and that the directors intend
them to do so, for at least one year from
the date the financial statements were
signed. As part of our audit we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the
going concern basis is appropriate.

However, because not all future events

or conditions can be predicted, these
statements are not a guarantee as to the
Group's and Company's ability to continue
as a going concern.

Consistency of other information ISAs (UK & ireland) reporting

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland} we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

Companies Act 2006 opinions
In our opinion: @ information in the Annual Repart is:

o materially inconsistent with the information in he cudited finonciol stotements; or

@ the information given in the Strategic » gpporently moterially incorrect ased on, or matesially inconsi

We hava no exteptions fo report
arising from this responsibility.

stent with, our knowledge

Report and the Directors’ Report for of the Groop acquired in the course of performing our audit; or

the financial year for which the financial

. ) »  gtherwise misleading.
statements are prepared is consistent 4

with the financial staternents. @ the sotement given by the directors on page 95, in occordonce wit

h provision €.1.1 of the UK We have no exceptions to report

Corporate Govesnance Code {“the Code™), that they consider the Annuol Repart cken as o urising from this responsiblity.
whote to be fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for

members 1o gssess the Group’s and Company’s performance, business model and shofegy is

materinfly inconsistens with our knawledge of the Group and Company acquired in the course

of performing our oudit.

@ the section of the Annual Report on page 74, o3 required by provision (3.8 of the (cde, Wa hava no exceptions fo repors

describing the work of the Audit Committee dees not appropriarely
comenunicated by us ta the Audit Commistea.

address matrers arising fram shis responsiity.




Adequacy of accounting
records and information and

explanations received
tnder the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, in our opinion:

@ we have not received alt the information
and explanations we require for our
audit; or

@ adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by
us; or

@ the Company financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records
and retums.

We have no exceptions to report arising
from this responsibility.

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remunerotion report -
Companies Act 2006 opinion

I our opinion, the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited has
been property prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006.

Other Companies Act

2006 reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we

are required to report to you if, in our
opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made.
We have no exceptions to report arising
from these responsibilities.

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required

to review the part of the Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the
Compary's compliance with ten provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code.
We have nothing to report having
performed our review.

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of
the directors

As explained morm fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement, the directors
are respongsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and ISAs
{UK & Ireland). Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose. We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other persen to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent
nwiting.

What an audit of financial
statements invelves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about  \

the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staterents sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statemnents are
free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud cr error. This includes an
assessment of:

& whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Group's and
the Company's circumstances and
have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed;

® the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the
directors; and

® the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas
by assessing the directors’ judgements
against available evidence, forming our own
judgements, and evaluating the disclosures
in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using
sampiing and other auditing techniques,
to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions. We obtain audit evidence
through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or

a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the Annual
Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and
to identity any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of performing the
audit. if we become aware of any apparent
material misstaterments or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report.

o W

n Waters
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
and Statutory Auditors
London
21 May 2015
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014 Restateq*
Non Non
trading & trading &
axcepticnal axceptional
Trading items Taotal Trading items Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3.4 601.4 2.0) 599.4 633.4 - 633.4
Cost of sales 4 (506.1) (21.5) (527.6) (528.3) 5.1y (533.4)
Gross profit {loss) 95.3 {23.5) 71.8 105.1 (5.1) 100.0
Adminisirative expenses 4 {61.0) (23.2) (84.2) (59.5) (17.4) (76.9)
Operating profit (loss) 34,5 34.3 (46.7) (12.4} 45.6 (22.5) 231
Finance income 4.8 14,8 01 149 101 0.3 10.4
Finance charges 48 {28.2) - (28.2) (25.9) 0.3 (26.2)
Share of results from asscciates and joint ventures 4,16 0.8 4.4 5.2 0.3 - 0.3
Profit (loss) before taxation 3 21.7 (42.2) (20.5) 301 (22.5) 7.6
Taxation 49 1.7 4.0 2.3 (7.2 1.4 (5.8)
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations 20.0 (38.2) (18.2} 229 (21.1) 1.8
Discontinued operations
{Loss) profit for the year from discontinued operations 4,10 {0.2) 1.5 1.3 (3.6} (26.4) (30.00
Profit (loss) for the year 19.8 {36.7) (16.9) 19.3 (47.5) (28.2)
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 19.7 (36.7) (17.0) 19.2 (47.5) (28.3)
Non-controlling interest 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1
19.8 (36.7) (16.9) 19.3 (47 .5) (28.2)
Basic eamnings (loss) per share attributable to owners of the parent (pence per share)
Continuing operations 12 5.0 (9.6) (4.6) 5.7 (5.3 0.4
Discentinued operations 12 (0.1) 0.4 0.3 0.9) 6.6) (7.5)
4.9 9.2) 4.3 4.8 (11.9) (7.1)
Diluted eamings (loss) per share attributable to owners of the parent (pence per share)
Continuing operations 12 5.0 {9.6) (4.6) 57 5.3 0.4
Discontinued operations 12 (0.1) 0.4 0.3 0.9) {6.6) {(7.5)
4.9 {9.2) 4.3) 4.8 (11.9) {r.1)

"The comparatives have been restatad following the adoption of IFRS11, see notes 1 and 16.

The notes on pages 107 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
MNota £m €m
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidiaries (25.2) 4.8)
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges 17 (28.1) 14.5
Deferred tax on fair value movement on cash flow hedges 19 5.6 3.8
Share of cther comprehensive income of investments accounted for using the equity method 16 {3.1) -
(50.8) 5.9
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme 27 (5.8) (6.4}
Deferred tax on actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme 19 1.2 1.0
{4.6) 5.4
Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year, net of tax (55.4) 0.5
Loss for the year (16.9) {28.2)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (72.3) (27.7)
Atiributable to:
Owners of the parent (70.7) 27.4)
Non-controlling interest (1.6) {0.3)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (72.3) (27.7)
Total comprehensive (loss) income attributable to owners of the parent arising from:
Continuing operations (72.0} 26
Discontinued operations 1.3 {30.0)
(70.7) 27.4)

' GOVERNANCE | \ STRATEGHC REVIEW \ \ OVERVIEW
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEETS
Asat 31 March 2015
Group Company
Restated”
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 2014 2015 2014
MNote fm £m fm £m

Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 14" 173.8 211.1 0.5 0.7
Property, plant and equipment 15 2829 322.7 0.3 0.1
Investments 6 101 8.4 487.4 533.4
Financial assets relating to PFI/PPP contracts 21 246.6 187.4 - -
Trade and other receivables 22 22 25 828 381
Deferred tax assets 19 1.7 12.3 4.5 3.5

737.3 744.4 575.5 575.8
Current assets
Inventories 20 6.9 9.4 - -
Financial assets relating to PFI/PPP contracts 21 316 82 - -
Trade and other receivables 22 121.0 138.2 2193 217.7
Derivative financial instruments 17 0.1 - 01 -
Current tax receivable 0.1 1.9 0.9 1.4
Cash and cash equivalents 23 60.8 104.2 8.0 22.9

220.5 261.9 228.3 242.0
Assets classified as held for sale 10 35 3.2 - -

224.0 2651 228.3 242.0
Total assets 961.3 1,009.5 803.8 817.8
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings ~ PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 24 (160.3) {149.5) - -
Borrowings - Other 24 (140.8) (253.8) (80.5) (164.3}
Derivative financial instruments 17 {43.8) {15.0) - -
Other non-current Labilities 25 {0.8) (1.2) (152.4) (215.3}
Deferred tax liabilities 19 {30.2) (38.8) - -
Provisions 26 (40.4) (33.3) - .1
Defired benefit pensicn scheme deficit 27 (16.4) {13.1) (16.4) (13.1)

(432.5) (504.7) (249.3) (392.8}

Current liabilities
Borrowings — PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 24 (62.3) (1.7) - -
Barrowings — Other 24 {75.0) {3.3} {72.2) -
Derivative financial instruments 17 {0.3) 1.0y (0.9) {0.9)
Trade and other payables 25 (187.0) {203.1} (84.2) {7.9)
Current tax payable 6.3) (10.6} - -
Provisions 26 (8.8) (11.6} {1.1) {1.3)

{339.7) {231.3} {158.4) 9.7)
Total liabilities (772.2) (736.0} {407.7) (402.5)
Net assets 189.1 2735 396.1 4153
Equity
Share capital 28 398 38.8 39.8 30.8
Share premium 28 100.0 98.9 124.0 1239
Exchange reserve 1.4 36.6 - -
Retained eamings 39.7 97.4 2323 2518
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 190.9 273.7 396.1 415.3
Non-controfling interest (1.8) 0.2 - -
Total equity 189.1 273.5 396.1 415.3

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
The notes on pages 107 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The Financial Statements on pages 102 to 159 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 21 May 2015.

ey wgye signed on its behalf by:
Adrian Auer”™ Toby Woolrych

Chairman Group Finance Director




STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Share Share  Exchangs Retained conlr?ﬂ?r?g Total

Capitat Pramium Resenea Eamings interest Equity
Group Note £m tm tm £m m
Balance at 1 April 2014 39.8 99.9 36.6 97.4 (0.2) 2735
(Loss) profit for the year - - - (17.0) 0.1 (16.9)
Other comprehensive {loss) income:
Exchange loss ¢on transtation of foreign subsidiaries - - (25.2) - - (25.2)
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges 17 - - - (26.0) (2.1) (28.1)
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme 27 - - - (5.8 - (5.8)
Tax in respect of other comprehensive income items 19 - - - 6.4 0.4 6.8
Share of other comprehensive income of investments
accounted for using the equity method 16 - - - (3.1) - (3.1)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (25.2) (45.5) {1.6) (72.3)
Share-based compensation 7 - - - 1.3 - 1.3
Moverment on tax arising on share-based compensation 19 - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Proceeds from exercise of employee options 28 - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Dividends 11 - - - (13.7) - (13.7)
Balance as at 31 March 2015 39.8 100.0 11.4 39.7 (1.8) 189.1
Balance at 1 April 2013 39.7 99.8 41.4 132.7 0.1 313.7
{Loss) profit for the year - - - {28.3) 0.1 (28.2)
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Exchange 'oss on translation of foreign subsidiaries - - (4.8) - - {4.8)
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges - - - 150 0.5 14.5
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme 27 - - - {6.4) - 6.4
Tax in respect of other comprehensive income items 19 - - - {2.9) 0 (2.8)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (4.8) {22.6) 0.3} (27.7)
Share-based compensation 7 - - - 0.7 - 0.7
Movement on tax arising on share-based compensation 19 - - - 03 - 0.3
Proceeds from exercise of employee options 28 0.1 0.1 - - - 0.2
Dividends 11 - - - (13.7) - (13.7)
Balance as at 31 March 2014 39.8 98.9 36.6 97.4 0.2y 2735

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising since 1 April 2005 from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations as well as from the translation of liabilities that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign operations.

Share Share Retained Total
Capital Premium Eamings Equity

Company Note £m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 April 2014 39.8 1239 2516 415.3
Loss for the year 13 - - 2.9) (2.3)
Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Fair value movement on cash flow hedges 17 - - (0.3) (0.3}
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme 27 - - 5.8} (5.8)
Tax in respect of other comprehensive income items 19 - - 1.3 1.3
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - 7-1) 7.1}
Share-based compensation 7 - - 13 t.3
Movement on tax arising on share-based compensation 19 - - 0.2 0.2
Proceeds from exercise of employee cptions 28 - o1 - 01

Dividends 11 - - (13.7) {13.7)
Balance at 31 March 2015 39.8 1240 232.3 396.1

Balance at 1 April 2013 387 123.8 272.2 435.7

Loss for the year 13 - - (2.9 (2.9
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Fair value movement on cash flow hedges - - 0.5 05

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension scheme 27 - - 6.4} 6.4)
Tax in respect of other comprehensive income items 19 - - 08 09

Total comprahensive loss for the year -~ - {7.9} (7.9)
Share-based compensation 7 - - 0.7 0.7

Movement on tax arising on share-based compensation 19 - - 03 0.3

Proceeds fram exercise of employee options 28 a1 o1 - 0.2

Dividends 1 - - (13.7} {13.7)
Balance as at 31 March 2014 39.8 1239 2516 4153

The notes on pages 107 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 Morch 2015

Group Cormnpany
Restated”
2015 2014 2015 2014

Note £m £m £m tm
Cash flows from operating activities 30 55.8 72.9 50.8 36.2
Income tax (paid) received (5.7) (1.6) 0.9 0.8
Net cash generated from operating activities 50.1 71.3 51.7 354
Investing activities
Purchases of intangible assets (1.2) (1.3) 0.1) 0.1}
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (39.0) (36.5) (0.2) -
Acquisition of business assets 18 (0.4) - - -
Proceeds from exiting UK Solid Waste 0.8 10.4 - -
Insurance proceeds in relation to fire in the Netherlands - 57 - -
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 2.2 10.7 - -
Outflows in respect of PFI/PPP arrangements under the
financial asset model (73.0) (70.8) - -
Capital received in respect of PFI/PPP financial assets 34 4.2 - -
Finance income 4.0 5.0 4.6 89
Receipt of deferred consideration 19 0.4 - -
Payment of deferred consideration (0.1) - - -
Investment in subsidiaries i6 - - (56.4) (66.5)
Investrnent in joint venture 16 (1.3) - - -
Proceeds from disposal of investments and other assets 1.2 1.3 - -
Repayment of loans granted to joint ventures 16 1.0 - - -
Net cash used in investing activities {100.5} {70.7) (52.1) (57.7)
Financing activities
Finance charges and loan fees paid (16.8) (18.2) (8.9) (8.8}
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 28 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2
Dividends paid : 1 (13.7) (13.7) (13.7) (13.7)
Proceeds from issuance of retail bonds - 86.1 - 86.1
Repayment of seniar notes - {15.2) - -
{Repayment of) proceeds from bank borrowings 30 (18.9) (52.3) 8.0 (37.9)
Proceeds from PFI/PPP net debt 30 64.4 60.2 - -
Repayment of PFI/PPP net debt 30 (1.8) {13.1) - -
Repayments of obligations under finance leases 30 (3.3) (3.4) - -
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 10.0 306 (14.5) 259
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (40.4) 31.2 (14.9} 36
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 30 (3.0) (1.9) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 104.2 749 22.9 19.3
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23 60.8 104.2 8.0 229

*The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for getails.

The notes on pages 107 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies ~ Group and Company

General Information

Shanks Group plc is a public limited company listed on the London Stock Exchange and is incorporated and domiciled in Scotland
under the Companies Act 2006, registered number SC077438. The address of the registered office is given on page 162. The nature
of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out in note 3.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments, share-based
payments and assets classified as held for sale, which are stated at fair value. The policies set out below have been consistently
applied. The Group has applied all accounting standards and interpretations issued refevant te its operations and effective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 April 2014. The set of financial statements included in this annual report have been prepared
on a going concern basis as the Directors consider that the Group and the Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for a period of at least one year from the date of approval of the financial statements.

Statement of compliance

The financial staterments are prepared in accordance with Intemational Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRS) and related interpretations
(IFRICs) adopted by the European Union (EU) and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

Adoption of new and revised accounting standards and Interpretations
The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations for the first time for the Group’s

financial year beginning 1 April 2014:

Accounting Standard

Requirement

Impact on financial statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other entities

To classify joint arrangements as either joint
operations or joint ventures, depending upon
the Group’s contractuat rights to the assets and
obligations for the fiabilities of the arrangements,
rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The new standard requires joint
ventures to be accounted for under the equity
method and joint operations to be reported
recognising the Group’s share of assets,
lizbilities, revenues and expenses.

To disclose information that enables users of its
financial statements to evaluate the nature of,
and risks assoclated with, its interests in other
entities, including joint arrangerments,
associates, structured entities and other off
balance sheet vehicles, and the effects of those
interests on its financial position, financial
performance and cash flows.

The nature of the Group's joint arrangements has
been evaluated and they have been classified as
aither joint operations or joint ventures. The
adjustments on application of IFRS 11 relate to
the change in accounting from proportionate
consolidation to equity accounting for a number of
the jeint arrangements which have been included
within the definition of joint ventures.

The comparative figures have been restated to
reflect the change in accounting policy.

The Group's profit after tax and total net assets
are unchanged. The table in note 16 shows the
impact of the Group's consolidated financial
statements, for the year ended March 2014, in
relation to the joirt ventures which are no longer
proportionately consolidated. A third balance
sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period
is not disctosed as the impact of the retrospective
restaternent is not considered to be material.

The adoption of the standard has resulted in the
Group assessing its interest in individual joint
ventures and associates and concluded that none
are individually material for further disclosure.

Other new standards and amendments had ne significant impact on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continued

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Standards and interpretations issued by the IASB are only applicable if endorsed by the European Unicn.

Al the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Siandards and Interpretations which have not been applied
in these financial statements wers in issue but not yet effective:

« IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, subject to EU endorsement. This
standard introduces a new classification approach for financial assets and liabilities and requires additional disclosures in relation
to hedging activities. The Group is yet 1o assess the full effact of the standard however it is not expected to have a significant impact
on the recognition and measurement of financial instruments.

« [FRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers, effective for annual periods beginning on or after t January 2017, subject to
EU endorsement. The Group is yet to assass the impact of this standard which aims to improve the financial reporting and
comparability of revenue.

It is anticipated that the adoption of the following standards, amendments and improvements in future periods wilt have no material
impact on the Group's reported results or financial position:

Effective date: accounting periods commencing on or after

Endersed by the EU:

Amendment to 1AS 19 1 July 2014
Not yet endorsed by the EU:

IFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2018
Amendment to IFRS 11 1 January 2016
Amendment to 1AS 16 and 1AS 38 1 January 2016
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 1 January 2016
Amendments to IFRS 10 and I1AS 28 1 January 2016
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 1 January 2016
Amendments to 1AS 1 1 January 2016
Amendment to |AS 27 1 January 2016

The Group continues to monitor the potential impact of other new standards and interpretations which may be endorsed by the
European Union and require adeption by the Group in future accounting periods.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Shanks Group plc and all its subsidiary undertakings
{subsidiaries). Subsidiaries are entities which are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group. Control exists where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with these used
by the Group. The resuits of subsidiaries acquired or soid during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements up 1o,
or from, the date control passes. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiary companies set up under PF/PPP contracts are fully consolidated by the Group and where there is a nen-controlling
interest this is identified separately from the Group's equity.

An associate is an entity, other than a subsidiary or joint venture, over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power 1o participate in the financial and cperating decisions of an entity but is not in control or joint control over those policies. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost o, in the case of a disposal of the majority shareholding, at fair value. The cumulative post-acquisition profits or losses
and moverments in other comprehensive income are adjusted against the camying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of
losses exceeds the carmying amount of the joint venture or associate, the camying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further
josses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint venture or associate. Accounting policies of associates and joint ventures have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies of the Group.

Where the Group is party to a jointly-controlied operation, the Group, in the consolidated financial statements, proportionately
accounts for its share of the income and expenditure, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis.




1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continued

Investments
Equity investments in entities that are neither associates, joint ventures nor subsidiaries are held at cost, less any provision
for impairment.

Business combinations

The acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method, The cost of acquisition is measured as the fair value
of assets transferred and liabilities incurred or assumed. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed,
meeting the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3, are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date. The fair value of
businesses acquired may include waste permits, licences and customer lists with the value calculated by discounting the future
revenue stream attributable 1o these lists or relationships, these are recognised as intangible assets and amortised. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill,

The costs of acquisition are charged to the Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings
fnvestments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost in the Company’s bafance sheet, less any provision for impairment in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable, including landfill tax but excluding sales taxes, discounts and
inter-company sales, for goods and services provided in the normal course of business. Revenue is recognised when it can be reliably
measured and when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Revenue recagnition criteria for the key types of transaction are as follows:
« Waste collection services - revenue is recognised once the waste is delivered to the transfer station or processing facility.

= Waste procassing services — where the Group's revenue contracts include an obligation 1o process waste revenue is recognised
as processing occurs.

» Hazardous waste industrial cleaning — revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed
to date.

+ Sales of recyclate materials and products from waste - revenue is based on contractually agreed prices and is recognised when
the risks and rewards have passed to the buyer.

= Income from power generated from gas produced by processes at anaerobic digestion facilities and fandfill sites is recognised
based on the volumes of enargy produced and an estimation of the amount to be received.

Accrued income
Accrued income at the balance sheet date is recognised at the fair value based on contractually agreed prices. It is subsequently
invoiced and accounted for as a trade receivable.

Unprocessed waste

Unprocessed waste may give rise to deferred revenue, where invoices to customers are raised in advance of performance obligations
being completed, or an accrual for the costs of disposing of residual waste is created once the Group has an obligation for its
disposal, These amounts are shown in deferred revenue or accruals in the financial statements as appropriate.

UK PFI/PPP contracts

The Group's PFI/PFP contracts are either integrated or residual waste management contracts. The contracts require the building of
new infrastructure and all rights to the infrastructure pass to the Local Authority at the termination or expiry of the contract. The Group
applies IFRIC 12 (Service Concession Arrangernents) which specifies the accounting treatment applied by concession cperators.
Under IFRIC 12, the operator’s rights over infrastructure operated under concession arrangements should be accounied for based on
the control of the grantor (ithe local authority), over what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whomiit must
pravide them and at what price. Accordingly the Group applies the ‘financial asset” model as it has an unconditional right to receive
cash for the infrastructure. The Group splits the local authority payment between a service element as revenue and a repayment
element that is deducted from the financial asset. Interest receivable is added to the financial asset based on the rate implied in the
contract payments. Reviews are underiaken regularty to ensure that the financial asset will be recovered over the contract life.
Borrowing costs refating to contract specific external borrowings are expensed in the Income Statement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continued

Bid costs are expensed in the Income Staternent until the Group is appointed preferred bidder and there is a high probability that
a contract will be awarded. Bid costs incurred after this point are capitalised within trade and other receivables. When the contract
is awarded, the costs are included in the relevant financial asset.

Win fees and other contract specific income are transferred to deferred income upaon financial close and released to the Income
Statement over the period of the delivery of the associated performance obligations.

Under the terms of these contracts, the Group is required o maintain the infrastructure such that it is handed over to the local
authority in good working order. Where such expenditure reguired to fulfil these obligations constitutes major refurbishments and
renewals (lifecycle expenditure} a provision is recorded for the best estimate of these costs as the facility is used.

Government grants and subsidies
Capital related government grants are released to the Income Statement evenly over the expected useful lives of the related assets.
Revenue grants and subsidies are credited in the same peried as the items to which they relate.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition and is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is aflocated to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairmeant. Any impairment is charged immediately to the Income Statement and is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to the date of transition to IFRS (31 March 2004) has been retained at the previous UK GAAP net
book value following impairment tests. Goodwill written off to resarves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated.

Landfill void

Landfill void represents tandiill operation acquisitions and the landfill void was capitalised based on the fair value of the void acquired.
This asset is amortised over its estimated usefut life on a void usage basis and measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.

The estimated remaining useful life is 20 years.

Other intangibles

Cther intangible assets principalty relate to customer lists and contract rights and are capitakised on the basis of the fair value of the
assets acquired or on the basis of costs incurred to purchase and bring the assets into use, and are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation. These are amortised over the estimated useful ife on a straight-line basis, as follows:

Contract right relating to leasehald land Term of the lease
Computer software 1105 years
Acquisition related intangibles:

Waste permits and licences 5to 20 years
Others including customer lists 5to 10 years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for freehold land and assets under construction, is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairment. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Freehold land and assets under construction are not depreciated. The asset’s
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.




1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continued

Buildings, plant and machinery
Depreciation is provided on these assets to write off their cost {less the expected residual value) on a straight line basis over the
expected useful economic lives as follows:

Buildings Up to 30 years
Fixtures and fittings 10 years

Plant 510 10 years
Cars and service vehicles 5to 10 years
Heavy goods vehicles 10 years
Computer equipment 310 5years
Other items of plant and machinery 510 15 years

Landfill sites
Site development costs including engineering works and the discounted cost of final site restoration are capitalised. These costs are
written off over the operational life of each site based on the amount of void space consumed.

Impairment of assets

Assets other than goodwilt are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value. An impairment loss is recognised immediately as an operating expense, and
at each reporting date the impairment is reviewed for possible reversal.

Leased assets

Finance leases

Where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset, the lease is treated as a finance lease.
Leased assets are included in property, plant and equipment at the total of the capital elements of the payments during the lease term
and the corresponding obligation is included in borrowings. Depreciation is provided to write down the assets over the shorter of the
expected useful iife and the lease term, unless there is reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership of the asset by the
end of the lease term, in which case it is depreciated over its useful life.

Operating leases

Alt leases other than finance leases are treated as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Income
Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. The future aggregate minimum lease payments for operating
leases are shown in note 32 to the accounts.

Inventories
tnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are measured on a first in first out basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material the value of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The discount rates are reviewed at each year end with consideration
given to appropriate market rates and the risk in relation to each provision. The unwinding of the discount to present value is inctuded
within finance costs.

The Group's policies on provisions for specific areas are:

Site restoration provision

Full provision is made for the net present vatue, (NPV), of the Group's unavoidable costs in relation to restoration liabilities at its landfill
sites. In addition the Group continues to provide for the NPV of intermediate restoration costs over the life of its landiill sites and
mineral extraction sites, based on the quantity of waste deposited or minera! extracted in the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policias — Group and Company continued

Aftercare provision

Provision is made for the NPV of post closure costs at the Group's landfill sites based on the quantity of waste deposited in the
year. Similar costs incurred during the operating life of the sites are written off directty to the Income Statement and not charged
to the provision.

Restructuring provision
Provision for restructuring costs is recogmised when a detailed formal plan exists and those affected by that plan have a valid
expectation that the restructuring will be carried out.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

The Group accounts for pensions and similar benefits under IAS 19 {revised} Employee Benefits. For defined benefit plans, obligations
are measured at discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value. The operating and financing costs of the plans
are recognised separately in the Income Statermnent. interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined pension
liability. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full through the Staterment of Comprehensive Income; surpluses are recognised
only to the extent that they are recoverable. Movements in irrecoverable surpluses are recognised immediately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged to the Income Statement as they become due. The Group participates

in several multi-employer schemes in the Netherlands and Belgium. With the exception of certain schemes in Belgium, these are
accounted for as defined contribution plans as it is not possible to split the assets and liabilities of the schemes between participating
companies, and the Group has been informed by the schemes that it has no obligation to make additional contributions in the event
that the schemes have an overall deficit.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based awards to certain employees. The fair value of share-based awards is determined at the
date of grant and expensed based on the Group's estimate of the shares that will eventually vest, on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. At each balance sheet date the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on service and non-market perfermance conditions. The amount expensed is adjusted over
the vesting period for changes in the estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest, save for changes resulting from any
market-related performance cenditions.

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax is based on taxable profit or loss for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax in the Income Statement because
it excludes itemns of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years or that are never taxable or deductible. The asset
or liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in full where the carrying value of assets and liabilities in the financial statements is different to the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits. Ceferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the taxable profits will be availatle
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is calcutated at the tax rates that have been substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement, except where it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements as the timing of the reversat of the temporary difference is controlied by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
iiabifities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.




1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continued

Foreign currencies

ftems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling,
which is the Group's presentation currency.

The resufts and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are transiated into the presentation currency of the Group and Parent Company as follows:

= assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the closing year end exchange rate;

« income and expenses in each Income Statement are translated at the average rate of exchange for the year; and

« the resulting exchange differences are recognised in the exchange reserve in other comprehensive income.

Cumutative exchange differences are recognised in the Income Statement in the year in which an overseas subsidiary undertaking

is disposed of, .

The maost significant currencies for the Group were translated at the following exchange rates:

Closing rates Average rates

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Value ol £1 2015 2014 Change 2015 2014 Change
Euro 1.38 1.21 14.3% 1.28 1.18 8.1%
Canadian Dollar 1.88 1.84 2.2% 1.84 1.65 11.0%

The Group appties the hedge accounting principles of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement relating to net
investment hedging to offset the exchange differences arising on foreign currency denominated borrowings with the translation of
foreign operations. Net investment hedges are accounted for by recegnising exchange rate movements in the exchange reserve,
with any hedge ineffectivenass being charged 1o the Income Statement in the period the ineffectiveness arises.

Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration is provided for at the NPV of the Group's expected cost or receipt at the date of acquisition or disposal. The
likelihood of payment or receipt for deferred consideration where conditional on meeting certain performance targets is considered
on acquisition or disposal. For acquisttions after 1 April 2010, any differences between consideration accrued and consideration paid
or received are charged or released to the Income Statement and before this date any differences are adjusted through goodwill.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are recognised initially at their fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is cbiective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the criginal terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset's carrying value and the value of estimated future cash flows. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previousty written off are credited in the Income Staternent.

Financial assets relating to UK PFI/PPP contracts
Financial assets relating to UK PFI/PPP contracts are classified as loans and receivables and are initially recognised at fair value
of consideration receivable and subsequently at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Where the Group has
a legally enfaorceabla right to offset with a financial institution, then bank overdrafts are offset against the cash batances.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continuad

Extermal borrowings

Interest bearing loans, private placement notes and bonds are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance
charges, including premiums payable on setttement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in
the Income Staterment using the effective interest rate method and are added to the camying amount of the borrowings to the extent
that they are not settled in the pericd in which they arise.

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated initially at fair value and subsequenily held at amortised cost.

Derivative financial Instruments and hedging activities
In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group only holds or issues derivative financial instruments to rmanage the Group's exposure
to financial risk. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Such financial risk includes:
e Interest risk on the Group's variable-rate borrowings;

« Commodity risk in relation to diesel consumption and recyclate prices; and
« Forelgn exchange risk on transactions.

The Group manages these risks through a range of derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, forward foreign
exchange contracts and fuel derivatives.

The Group is exposed to the fair value of fixed rate borrowings in the event of early repayment. The Group has nc plans to repay any
fixed rate borrowings before the applicable maturity date and therefore does not make provision for the fair value of these borrowings
in the accounts, which are prepared on a going concern basis.

interest rate swaps are considered to be used for hedging purposes when they alter the risk profile of an undertying exposure of the
Group in line with the Group's risk management policies and is in accordance with established guidelines. At the inception of the
hedge relationship the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along with its risk
managernent objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermare, at the inception of the hedge and
on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective
in offsetiing changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item. For interest rate swaps which are not designated as a hedge the
gains or losses between period ends are taken to finance income or ¢harges in the Income Statement.

The change in the fair value of the portion ¢f the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in equity
and subsequently recycled to the Income Staterment when the hedged cash flow impacts the Income Statement. The ineffective
portion of the fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until
the forecast transaction occurs at which peint it is recognised in the Income Statement. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected
to oceur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the Income Statement immediately.

Details of the fair values of the derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 17.

Other receivables and other payables
Other receivables and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Assets classified as held for sale

Asset classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sefl. Assets are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the assets are available for sale in their present condition.




1. Accounting policies — Group and Company continued

Called up share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or share options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the net proceeds over the nominal value of any shares
issued is credited to the share premium account.

Dividends
Dividend distributions to the equity holders are recognised in the peried in which they are approved by the shareholders in general
meeting. intenm dividends are recognised when paid.

Segmental reporting

The Group's segmental reporting reflects the management structure which is aligned with the core activities of the Group being Solid
Waste Benelux, Hazardous Waste, Crganics, UK Municipal and Group central services.

2. Key accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires managemeni to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity are set out betow and in mere detail in the related notes.

Underlying business performance

The Group believes that trading profit, underltying profit before tax, underlying profit after tax, underlying free cash flow, undertying
earnings per share and EBITDA {earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) provide useful information on underlying
trends to shareholders. These measures are used by the Group for intermal performance analysis and incentive compensation
arrangements for employees.

The terms ‘trading profit’, ‘exceptional items' and ‘underlying' are not defined terms under IFRS and may therefore not be comparable
with similarly titled profit measures reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, GAAP
measurements of profi.

The term 'undertying' refers tq the relevant measure being reported for continuing operations excluding non-trading and exceptional
itemns, financing fair value remeasurements and amortisation of acquisition intangibles, excluding landfill void and computer software.
"Trading profit' is defined as continuing operating profit before amortisation of acquisition intangibles and exceptional items. EBITDA
comprises trading profit before depreciation, amortisation ang profit or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment.
Reconciliations are set out in note 4.

Non-trading and exceptlonal items

Items classified as non-trading and exceptional are disclosed separately due to their size or incidence to enable a better understanding

of performance. These include, but are not limited to, significant impairments, restructuring of the activities of an entity including employee
severance costs, aborted acquisiion and disposal fransaction costs, onerous contracts, significant provision releases and the profit or
loss on disposal of properties. A full listing of those items presented as non-trading and exceptional is shown in note 4,

Service concession arrangements under UK PFI/PPP contracts

Financial assets are recognised in accordance with FRIC 12, They represent the present value of the future cash flows of the contract.

These cash flows are dependent on, amongst other things, tonnages, indexation, recycling rates and fabour costs,

The Group's UK PFI/PPP arrangements involve the construction of waste management facilities to be provided to local authorities,
The building of the facilities is governed by the engineer, procure and construct contract entered into by the Group. The construction
work is undertaken by third party contractors with drawdowns of financing from the UK PFI/PPP funders used to pay the
subcontracter for the construction waorks.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Key accounting judgements and estimates continued

We have considered all relevant factors in the contractual arrangements between the parties to determine whether the Group acts as
agent or principal during the construction phase of the contracts. The considerations that we have taken into acceunt in reaching this
conclusion are:

« The Group obtains quotes far the fixed price construction contract from a number of contractors as part of the preparation to submit
a bid to the municipality. Once the Group has been selected as preferred bidder it bas no further opportunity to vary the prices it has
bid other than indexation for inflation following delay to financial close. The detailed specification and prices of the works are agreed
in advance and milestone payments are only made against works to the agreed specification. In the event that a revision to the
specification of works is required these and the pricing adjustment are jointly agreed with the municipality and the funders.

At the date of Financial Close direct agreements are sigred between the municipality, the funders and the construction contractors
which govemn the procedures for the completion of the waste management facilities.

The Group has an obligation to pay the construction contractor from the non-recourse bark debt regardless of any non-payment
by the municipality. in the event that the municipality fails to pay tonnage fees after the construction pericd there is a termination
procedure which calculates the amount of damages due o all parties including fully repaying the debt. We consider that the
likelinood of the risk of the municipality becoming insolvent is remote. Therefore in our view the weight of this factor in coming to our
overall judgement is reduced.

In the event that the construction contractor fails to perform under the terms of the contract the Group holds performance and
retention bonds which guarantee the obligations of the contractor. Any additicnal costs arising from having to replace the
contractor, should they arise, would be satisfied by payments from the bonds.

« The Group earns certain fixed fees in connection with UK PFI/PPP arrangements. These fees represent consideration for services
delivered before financial close or for ongoing project management.

In summary we consider that, on the basis that the construction contractor is known: 10 the municipality at the date of financial close
and in view of the negligible credit risk taken by the Group, an balance, despite some overall risk residing with the Group for delivery of
services, we consider that we act as agent versus principal in the provision of construction services. Accordingly, we do not recognise
revenue and costs for the construction gross in the Income Staterment.

In light of our conclusions in relation to the presentation of the revenue and costs associated with the construction services net in
the Income Staterment we consider that the most appropriate classification of the PFI/PPP non-recourse debt cash flows associated
with the construction of the waste management facilities in the Statement of Cash Flows is as financing and investing cash flows
respectively and not as operating cash flows. This classification has been consistently applied to the periods presented in these
financial statements.

The Group is the operator for one ¢lass of service concession arangements, that of the provision of waste treatment and waste
treatment facilities and these are classified as service concession arrangements in accordance with IFRIC. if the Group underperforms,
including failure to divert waste from landfill, the cantract can be terminated before the end of the 25 year period.




2. Key accounting judgements and estimates continued

The table below sets out the Group's interest in service concession arrangements as at 31 March 2015.

Cantract Financial close Full Sarvice Commencement Contract Expiry Owners of Special Purpose vehicle
Argyll & Bute September 201 April 2003 September 2026 Shanks: 100%
Cumbria June 20089 April 2013 June 2034 Shanks: 100%
VWakefield January 2013 September 2015 February 2038 Shanks: 100%
Barnsley, Doncaster and March 2012 July 2015 June 2040 Shanks: 75%
Rotherham SSE Generation Limited: 25%
Derby City and Derbyshire  August 2014 April 2017 March 2042 Shanks: 50%
Interserve Developments No 4
Limited: 50%
Dumfries and Galloway November 2004 February 2007 September 2029 Shanks: 20%

John Laing Environmental Assets
Group (UK} Limited: B0%

East London Waste AuthorityDecember 2002 August 2007 December 2027 Shanks: 20%
John Laing Environmental Assets
Group (UK) Limited: 80%

There were no changes in the arrangements for the provision of waste treatment and waste treatment faciiities in the year ended
31 March 2015.

Further disclosures in respect of service concession arrangements as required by paragraph 6 SIC 29 are provided on page 52 of the
operating review of UK Municipal.

Impairment of intangible assots
In conducting the impairment review on goodwill and intangibles, management is required to make estimates of pre-tax discount
rates, future profitability and growth rates. Detailed descriptions of assumptions and values are given in note 14,

Provisions

Restoration and aftercare provisions are recognised in the financial statements at the net present value of the estimated future
expenditure required 1o settle the Group's restoration and aftercare provisions. A discount is applied 1o recognise the time value
of money and is unwound over the life of the provision. Provisions alsc include the present value of the estimated operating losses
on loss making onerous contracts. Further information is set out in note 26,

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit scherme for which an actuarial valuation is carried out as determined by the trustees at intervals
of not more than three years. The pension cost under 1AS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits Is assessed in accordance with
management’s best estimates using the advice of an independent qualified actuary and assumptions in the latest actuarial valuation.
The principal assumptions in connection with the Group's retirement benefit scheme are set out in note 27.

Taxation

The Group operates in the Netherands, Belgium, the UK and Canada, all of which have their own tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised at the current tax rate which may not be the tax rate at which they unwind. The Group has available tax
losses, some of which have been recognised as a tax asset and some have not based cn management's best estimate of the ability
of the Group to utilise those Iosses. Further information is set out in note 19,
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3. Segmental reporting

The Group's chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors. The Group's reportable segments are
determined with reference to the information provided to the Board of Directors in order for it to allocate the Group’s resources and
to monitor the performance of the Group.

The reportable segments are aligned with the core activities of the Group and are as follows:
Solid Waste Benalux The collection, recycling and treatment of non-hazardous waste in the Netherlands and Belgium. The
other activities in Belgium include landfill disposal and power generation from landfil gas, industrial

cleaning activities, biomass processing and the operation of a sand quarry.

Hazardous Waste The reprocessing and recycling of contaminated soil, water and other contaminated materials.
industrial cleaning of heavily contaminated industriat plant.

Organics The collection and treatment of food waste, garden waste and other organic materials.

UK Municipal tong-term PFI/PPP contracts providing recycling and waste management services to local authorities
in the UK,

Group central services The head office corporate function.

The profit measure the Board of Directors uses to evaluate performance is trading profit. Trading profit is continuing operating profit
before the amortisation of acquisition intangibles (excluding landfil void and computer software}, non-trading and exceptional items.
The Group accounts for inter-segment trading on an arm'’s length basis,

The segment results, which do not include any amounts for discontinued operations, are as follows:

Revenue

Restated”

2015 2014

£m £m

Netherlands Solid Waste 176.0 188.2
Belgium Solid Waste 82.8 a1.7
Belgium Other 50.9 58.7
Intra-segment revenue (12.5) {15.4}
Solid Waste Benelux 297.2 323.2
Hazardous Waste 138.0 148.2
Netherlands ' 14.7 159
Canada 12.0 135
Cther Organics 3.3 4.8
Organics 300 342
UK Municipal 1446 137.5
Inter-segment revenue (8.4) 9.7)
Total revenue from continuing operations” 601.4 633.4

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, sea notes 1 and 16 (or detalls.
Total revenue from continuing operations excludes the impact of exceptional items of £2m.
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3. Segmental reporting continued —
Results z
Rastated" >
2015 2014 =
£m £m 2
Netherdands Solid Waste 9.3 12.0 =
Belgium Solid Waste 39 5.6 g
Belgium Other 78 97
Divisional central services {9.1) (7.6} L
Solid Waste Benelux 119 19.7 —
Hazardous Waste 17.7 21.8 -
Divisional central services (1.3) (1.9) E:
Hazardous Waste 16.4 19.9 ]
=4
{13
Netherlands 13 25
Canada 2.8 2.7
Other Organics 06 0.1} —
Divisional central services (1.3) (1.0)
Organics 34 41 £
&
UK Municipal 15.0 13.1 g
Divisional central services {5.0) 3.9 =
UK Municipal 10.0 9.2 S
Group central services (7.4) 7.3
Total trading profit 343 45.6 -3
Non-trading and exceptional items {46.7} (22.5) 'g
Total operating (loss) profit from continuing operations {12.4) 231 s
Finance income 14.9 10.4 =
Fimance charges (28.2} {26.2) g
Share of results from associates and joint ventures 5.2 0.3 '§
(Loss) profit before taxation and discontinued operations {20.5) 7.6 -
*The comparatives have been reslated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for datails.
Net Assets
Operating Assats
Group Tax, net Total
Solid Waste  Hazardous UK central debtand  continuing Discontinued
Benelux Waste Qrganics Munigipal services  derivatives  operations  opergtions Total
£m £m om £m £m £m Em £m £m
31 March 2015
Gross non-current assets 215.1 155.6 854 256.6 1.9 7.7 736.3 1.0 737.3
Gross current assets 61.5 32.0 5.8 60.2 0.5 €1.0 2211.0 3.0 224.0
Gross liabilities {108.7) {(38.5) 6.1) (74.2) (25.7) (519.0) (772.2) - (7722
Net assets 167.9 149.1 85.1 2426 (23.3) {436.3) 185.1 4.0 189.1
31 March 2014*
Gross non-cumrent assets 271.6 162.4 99.9 195.6 1.2 12.3 743.0 1.4 744.4
Gross current assets 73.2 34.5 7.8 36.2 1.3 106.1 259.1 8.0 265.1
Gross liabilities {119.1) {43.3) {7.1) (66.0) (23.5) (4737 (732.7) {3.3) (736.0)
Net assets 225.7 153.6 1008 165.8 (21.0) (355.3) 2694 4.1 273.5

‘Tha comparatives have been restatec iolowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
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3. Segmental reporting continusd

Other disclosures

Solid Waste  Hazardous UK cGerr‘wjturg oonttrl:?:g Discontinued
Benalux Waste Organics Municipal senicas  operations  opperations Totat
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

31 March 2015
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 19.6 23.7 23 0.6 0.2 46.4 - 46.4
Intangible assets 0.3 0.4 0.1 0.4 - 1.2 - 1.2
Depreciation charge 231 76 4.8 03 - 35.8 - 358
Amortisation of intangibles 31 0.3 0.8 - 0.2 4.4 - 44
Impairment charge: -
Property, plant and equipment 4.3 0.2 6.0 - - 10.5 - 105
Intangible assets 1.4 - - - - 1.4 - 114
31 March 2014°
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 201 1.6 8.0 0.6 - 40.3 1.1 414
Intangible assets 0.5 0.4 0.3 - 041 1.3 - 1.3
Depreciation charge 26.2 7.7 52 0.5 - 39.6 0.5 401
Amortisation of intangibles 3.9 0.2 0.8 - 0.2 5.1 0.5 56
Impairment charge:
Property, plant and equipment 51 - 0.8 - - 5.9 - 59
Intangible assets 14.7 - - 0.6 - 15.3 - 15.3

“The comparatives have bean restated lolflowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

Geographical information - continuing operations
The Group's revenue from extermal customers and information about its segment assets (non-current assets excluding cash, financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) by geographical location are detailed below:

Fevenue from extemal cusiomers Non-current assets

Rastated" Rastated”

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

Netherlands 321.2 3439 3741 436.7
Belgium 123.6 137.0 36.9 ar.4
UK 142.6 139.0 276.4 219.0
Canada 12.0 13.5 27.2 276
599.4 633.4 7146 730.7

*The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.




4, Non-trading and exceptional items

To improve the understanding of the Group’s financial performance, items which do not reflect the underlying performance are

presented in non-trading and exceptional items.

2015

2014

Note £m £m
Continuing operations
UK Municipal lifecycle 2.0 -
Total non-trading and exceptional revenue 2.0 -
Impairment of assets 12.4 3.1
Impairment of goodwill and acquisition intangibles 14 1.1 15.3
Reassessment of discount rate for long-term provisions 71 -
Restructuring charges 6.5 8.7
Canadian contract issues 3.0 -
OCnerous contract provisions 21 (5.5)
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 14 1.9 2.3
Costs relating to fires 1.0 -
Portiolio activities 1.0 -
Acquisition costs 0.6 -
UK Municipal lifecycle 0.3 -
Beigium waste disposal costs (0.1) 1.7
Reassessment of contingent consideration (C.8) (1.0}
Exit from loss making Hygea contract (1.4) (2.2
Aborted bid costs - 29
Belgium litigation provision - 0.9
Hazardous Waste net litigation recovery - {1.4)
Insurance sett'ernent net of impairment of assets in relation to a fire in the Netherlands - 2.3)
Total non-trading and exceptional items in operating (loss) profit 46.7 22,5
UK Associates income (4.4) -
Change in fair value of derivatives 0.1) 0.3)
Exceptional interest charge in relation to the Belgium litigation - 0.3
Continuing non-trading and exceptionaf items in loss before tax 422 22.5
Tax on non-trading and exceptional items (4.0 (1.4)
Continuing non-trading and exceptional items in loss after tax 38.2 231
Discontinued operations
Discontinued operations (further details in note 10) (1.5) 24.4
Credit issues with regard to deferred consideration - 2.0
Total non-trading and exceptional items in loss after tax 36.7 475

Thea above non-trading and exceptional items include the following:

A total charge of £2.3m (2014: £ni¥) for a one-off adjustment relating to lifecycle expenditure in UK Municipal contracts. Where these

obligations arise in contracts to which the Group does not apply IFRIC 12, an adjustment of £2.0m has arisen relating to revenue

recognised in the past.

Impairment of assets of £12.4m (2014: £3.1m) including plant and equipment impairment of £10.5m principally £4.4m at the Gent

site in Belgium and £6.0m for the Westcott Park organics facility in the UK. In addition, based on management's expectations of

future performance of certain CGUs, further impairrments of £0.3m of intangibles, £0.9m of inventory and £0.7m of other assets have

been taken.

Goodwill impairment charge of £11.1m (2014 £15.3m) relating to Solid Waste Netherlands as a result of lower than expecied
performance in the division and an associated revision of the future trading performance.

Increased charge of £7.1m (2014: £nil) relating to long-term provisions as a result of the decrease in the discount rate due to the

significant decline in long-term government bond yields during the year.
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4. Non-trading and exceptional items continued

Restructuring charges and associated costs of £6.5m (2014: £8.7m) relating to the structural cost reduction programme including the
introduction of shared service centres in Netherlands and Belgiurm.

Contractual issues in Organics Canada, including the write off of trade receivables and associated operating and legal costs relating
to the arbitration ruling in Ottawa of £3.0m (2014: £nil),

Onerous confract provisions charge of £2.1m (2014: credit of £5.5m} following the reassessment of our best estimates of the
required provisions.

Ameortisation of intangible assets acquired in business combinations of £1.9m (2014: £2.3m}.

£1.0m {2014: Tnif) refating to the costs associated with fires principally at the Gent site in Belgiurn. This amount also includes a small
element for costs relating to a fire at a UK Municipal site which were not recoverable from insurers.

Costs of £1.0m (2014: £nil} as a resutt of various portiolio activities including the exit from Jazartsveld soil washing activities in the
Netherlands and the disposal of environmental services consultancy in Belgium.

Acquisition costs of £0.6m {2014: Enil).

The refease of unutilised provision of £0. 1m following the completion of the disposal of excess unprocessed waste at the Gent site
in Belgium {2014: charge of £1.7m}.

A release of £0.8m (2014: £1.0m) following the final reassessment of the contingent consideration payable on a previous acquisition
in Netherlands Solid Waste.

£1.4m credit following the final negotiated exit from the loss-making Hygea contract in Belgium (2014: credit of £2.2m),
The Group has revised its modelling of the financial asset repayment profiles of two UK associates as a result of a more appropriate

model being prepared on conversion to IFRS in the individual entity financial statements. This has resulted in a one-off profit of
£4.4m (2014 £nil) to recognise profits that ought to have been recognised in the past.

Restated*
Reconciliation of trading profit to EBITDA from continuing operations 20&: 20::1
Trading profit 34.3 456
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 35.8 38.6
Amoartisation of intangible assets (excluding acquisition intangibles) 25 2.8
Non-exceptional gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0.2) (1.9
Non cash landfill related expense and provisioning 0.6 0.9
EBITDA from continuing operations 73.0 87.0

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.




5. Operating profit

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging (crediting}:

Restateg”
- " 2015 2014
Continuing operations Note £m Tm
Staff costs 6 156.2 161.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 358 39.6
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 4.4 5.1
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and egquipment 33.2 36.1
Net profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.2) (1.9)
Non-trading and exceptional items 4 46.7 22.5
Trade receivables impairment 22 29 1.1
Government grants (0.1} 0.2)
Operating lease costs:
~ Minimum lease payments 1.3 13.6
- Less sub-lease rental income {0.2) 0.2)
1141 13.4
“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, sea notes 1 and 16 for details.
2015 2014
£m £m
Remureration of the Group's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its associates:
- Audit of parent company and consolidated accounts 0.2 .2
— Audit of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.4 0.4
Fees payable to the auditors pursuant to legistation 0.6 0.6
Tota! non-audit fees — Other services 0.1 0.1
Tota! fees 0.7 0.7
6. Employees
Staff costs and the average monthly number of employees analysed by reportable segment are shown below:
Restatad”
2015 2014
Nete £€m £m
The total remuneration of all continuing operations employees comprised:
Wages and salaries 120.6 124.5
Social security costs 23.9 25.4
Share-based benefits 7 1.3 0.7
Other pension costs 27 10.4 11.2
156.2 161.8
‘The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
Restated"
2015 2014
Number Number
The average monthly number of pecple by repartable segment employed by the Group during the year was:
Solid Waste Benelux 2,062 2,076
Hazardous Waste 789 766
Crganics 92 88
UK Municipal 543 545
Group central services 20 16
Total continuing operations 3,506 3.491
Discontinued operations — UK Solid Waste - 240
Total 3,506 3,731

‘The comparatives have been restated loflowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
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7. Share-based payments

Group and Company

As described in the Remuneration Report, the Group issues equity-settled share-based payments under a Savings Related Share
Option Scheme (SRSOS) and a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). The Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) was discontinued

in August 2005.

Outstanding options

SRSOS ESQS LTP
Weighted Weighted
average average
axercse exerdise
Qptions price Options price Qptions
Number pence Numirer pence Number
Qutstanding at 1 April 2013 1,260,071 76p 78,025 109p 7,508,000
Granted during the year 653,562 76p - - 4,913,500
Forfeited during the year (144,671) 77p (18,877) 114p {1,132,500}
Expired during the year {(237,487) 75p ~ - {930,000)
Exercised during the year (237,761} 77p - - -
Cutstanding at 31 March 2014 1,203,714 76p 59,148 107p 10,359,000
Granted during the year 576,407 84p - - 3,358,000
Forfeited during the year {189,190) 77p (6,292} 114p (300,000}
Expired during the year (243,196) 7p - - (1,792,000}
Exercised during the year {130,366) 81p {18,877) gp -
Cutstanding at 31 March 2015 1,307,362 79p 33,979 114p 11,625,000
Exercisable at 31 March 2015 31,297 92p 33,979 114p
Exercisable at 31 March 2014 20,503 79p 59,148 107p
Weighted average share price at date of exercise 103p 107p
At 31 March 2015:
Range of price per share at exercise 73p to 92p 114p
Weighted average remaining contractual life 1-2 years 2 months
Fair value of options granted during the year
SASOS LTiP
2015 2014 2015 2014
Black- Black- 2015 2014 Monte Morite
Valuation mode| Schules Scholes Discounted Discounted Carlo Carlo
Weighted average fair value 24p 21p 104p 73p 22p 14p
Weighted average share price 103p 95p 104p 83p 104p 83p
Weighted average exercise price 84p 78p - - - -
Expected volatility 28% 28% - - 28% 28%
Expected life Jyears 3 years 3 years 3 years 3years 3 years
Risk-free interest rate 1.35% 1.0% - - 1.4% 0.6%
Dividend yield 3.2% 4.1% - 4.1% 3.5% 4.1%

For the LTIP awards granted, the fair value of the element subject to non-market conditions has been calcutated using a discounted
model based on the share price at the award date and the expense recognised is based on expectations of these conditions being
met which are reassessed at each balance sheet date. The awards granted during 2014/15 vest after three years, four years and five
years, howaver, there is no service condition after three years just a holding period of one and two years.

The Monte Carlo valuation model is used to determine the weighted average fair value of the market conditions element of awards
granted. Expected volatility has been calculated using average volatility historical data over a three-year period from the grant date.
The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield of zero-coupon govermment bonds with a remaining term equal to the expected
life. The expected life used in the models equals the vesting period. Further details and performance metrics are detailed in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 77 to 91,

Charge for the year

The Group recognised a fotal charge of £1.3m (2014: £0.7m) relating to equity-settled share-based payments.




8. Net finance charges

Restated”
- . 2015 2014
Continuing operations £m om
Finance charges
Interest payable on borrowings wholly repayable within five years 11.9 10.8
Interest payable on borrowings repayable after five years - 2.4
Interest payable on PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 12.8 8.2
Unwinding of discount on provisions {note 26} 21 2.7
Unwinding of discount on deferred consideration payable - 0.1
Interest charge on the retirement pension scheme (note 27) 05 0.3
Amortisation of loan fees 09 1.4
Total finance charges 28.2 25.9
Finance income
Interest receivable on financial assets relating to PFI/PPP contracts {(14.1) 9.4)
Unwinding of discount on deferred consideration receivable (0.2) 0.1)
Interest income on bank deposits (0.1) c.1)
Interest receivable on other loans and receivables (0.4) {0.5)
Total finance income {14.8) (10.1)
Exceptional interest charge (note 4) - 03
Change in fair value of derivatives at fair value through profit or loss (0.%) {0.3)
Net finance charges 13.3 15.8
“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details,
9. Taxation
The tax {credit) charge based on the {loss) profit for the year from continuing operations is made up as follows:
Restated”
2015 2014
£m £m
Current tax: UK corporation tax
- Current year 0.7 -
- Prior year (0.2) (0.2)
Overseas tax
- Current year 4.2 57
— Prior year (0.4) 0.1
Total current tax 4.3 5.6
Deferred tax (note 19)
= Origination and reversal of temporary differences in the current year (6.7) 1.5
— Adjustment in respect of prior year 04 (1.3}
Total deferred tax (6.6) 0.2
Total tax (credit) charge for the year (2.3) 5.8

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
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9. Taxation continued

The tax on the Group's {loss) profit for the year from continuing operations differs from the UK standard rate of tax of 21% (2014: 23%)},
as explained below:

Restated”
2015 2014
£m £m
Total (loss) profit before taxation (20.5) 7.6
Tax {credit) charge based on UK tax rate of 21% (2014: 23%} {4.3) 1.7
Effects of:
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years (0.5) {1.4)
Profits taxed at overseas tax rates (1.5} {0.5)
Non-deductible impairments of goodwill 2.8 35
Non-deductible (non-taxable) other items 0.3 {0.7)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets 1.6 2.2
Change in tax rate 0.2 1.0
Revised income from equity accounted associates (0.9) -
Total tax {credit) charge for the year (2.3} 58

“The comparatives have been rastated lallowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

The Finance Act 2013, which was substantially enacted on 17 July 2013, included legislaticn to reduce the main rate of UK
corporation tax from 23% to 21% from 1 April 2014 and then to 20% by 1 April 2015. As a resuit the UK deferred tax at 31 March
2015 has been calculated based on the rate of 20% (2014: 20%).

10. Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations

Assets classified as held for sale

2015 2014
Group £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 3.5 a2

The assets classified as held for sale at 31 March 2015 include the material recycling faciiity at Kettering relating to the exit from UK
Solid Waste and land and buildings in relation to Jaartsveld following the decision to exit from soil washing activities at this location.
These assets are measured at their non-recurring fair value less costs to sell using observable inputs, being the prices for recent sales
of similar assets, and are therefore classified within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Discontinued operations

0On 31 December 2013 the Group completed the sale of the majority of its UK Selid Waste business to Biffa Waste Services Limited.
In accordance with IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, the net results of these operations were
presented within discontinued operations in the Income Statement and the assets to be sold were presented separately in the
Balance Sheet,




10. Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations continued

The tables below show the results of the discontinued operations which are included in the Group Income Statement and Group Cash
Flow Statement respectively.

Income Statement

2015 2014

£m om

Revenue 0.5 40.0
Cost of sales {0.5) (39.0)
Administrative expenses {0.2) (5.4}
Trading loss before exceptional and non-trading items (0.2) (4.4}
Exceptional and non-trading items 1.5 (24.5)
Operating profit (loss) before finance costs and tax on discontinued operations 1.3 (28.9}
Finance charges - 0.1}
Profit {loss) before tax on discontinued operations 13 (29.0}
Taxation - 1.0
Profit (loss} after tax on discontinued operations 13 (28.0}

An exceptional credit of £1.5m was recegnised in 2015 for the release of certain provisions refating to the disposal of the UK Solid
Waste business. The prior year exceptional and non-irading items included a loss of £20.4m to recognise the remeasurement of the
disposal assets 1o their fair value less costs to sell. The prior period taxation credit of £1.0m included £0.1m in relation to the
remeasurement to fair value less costs to sell.

In addition to the £28.0m loss after tax on discontinued operations in the prior year, a £2.0m charge was reflected for credit issues
with regard to deferred consideration.

The profit loss) for the year is stated after {crediting) charging:

2015 2014
£m om
Wages and salaries - 6.9
Social security costs - 0.7
OCther pension costs - 0.3
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - 0.5
Armortisation of intangible assets - 05
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment - 0.3
Net profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.2
Non-trading and excepticnal items {1.5) 26.5
Trade receivables impairment - 0.2
Operating lease costs — minimum lease payments less sub-lease rental income - 34
Cash Flow Statement
2015 2014
£m £m
Net cash flows used in operating activities (1.5) 4.9)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities 0.8 9.4
Net cash flows used in financing activities ©.1)

Net cash flows (used in) generated from discontinued operations (0.7} 4.4
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11. Dividends

2015 2014
£m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final diviclend paid for the year ended 31 March 2014 of 2.35p per share (2013: 2.35p} 9.3 9.3
Interim dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2015 of 1.1p per share (2014: 1.1p} 4.4 4.4

137 13.7
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 201 5 of 2.35p per share (2014: 2.35p) 9.3 93
Total dividend per share 3.45p 3.45p
12. Earnings per share

2015 2014
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 397.8m 397.6m
Effect of share options in issue 0.3m 0.3m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted eamnings per share 398.1m 397.9m
Continuing operaticns
{Loss} profit attributable to owners of the parent used to determine basic and diluted earnings per share {£m) {18.3) 1.7
Non-trading and exceptional items {net of tax) (Em) (see note 4) 38.2 21.1
Earnings atiributable to owners of the parent for undertying basic and undertying diluted eamings per share (£m) 19.9 22.8
Basic and diluted {loss) eamings per share {4.6)p 0.4p
Underlying and underlying diluted earmings per shara (ses note below) 5.0p 57p
Discontinued operations
Profit (loss} attributable to owners of the parent used to determine basic and diluted eamings per share (£m) 1.3 {30.0}
Non-trading and exceptional items {net of tax) (Em) (see note 4) (1.5} 26.4
Loss attributable to owners of the parent for undertying basic and undertying diluted garmings per share (£my} (0.2) (3.6)
Basic and diluted eamnings (loss) per share 0.3p (7.5)p
Undertying and underlying diluted loss per share (see note below) {0.1)p 0.9
Total operations
Less attributable to owners of the parent used to determine basic and diluted earnings per share (Em) (17.0) (28.3)
Non-trading and exceptional items {net of tax) (Em) (see note 4} 36.7 47.5
Earnings attributable to owners of the parent for underlying basic and underlying diluted eamnings per share (£m) 19.7 19.2
Basic and diluted loss per share {4.3)p 7. e
Undertying and undertying diluted eamings per share (see note helow) 4.9p 4.8p

The Directors believe that adjusting basic earnings per share for the effect of the amortisation of acquisition intangibles {excluding
landfill void and computer software), the change in fair value of derivatives and exceptional iterms enables comparison with historical
data calculated on the same basis. Exceptional iterns are those items that need to be disclosed separately on the face of the Income

Statement, because of their size or incidence, 1o enable a better understanding of performance.

13. Profit of parent company

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not io present its own Income Statement or
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Shanks Group plc reporied a loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 of £2.3m (2014: £2.9m

loss}. The Company operates solely in the UK providing central services.




14, Intangible assets

Group Company
Computer Acquisition
software ang rotatect Computer
Goodwill Landfill voic others intangibles Total Software
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Caost
At 1 April 2013" 248.0 21.7 85 43.0 321.2 0.9
Additions - - 1.3 - 1.3 0.2
Disposals (13.6) - 0.1 (13.4} (27.1) -
Reclassification - - 0.8 (0.6} - -
Exchange (5.1) {0.5) {0.3) {0.8) 6.7) -
At 31 March 2014 229.3 21.2 10.0 28.2 288.7 1.1
Acquisition through business combination 01 - - - 041 -
Additions - - 1.2 - 1.2 0.1
Disposals 0.7 - (t.1) (1.0) (2.8) -
Reclassification - - 26 - 2.6 -
Exchange (28.1 (2.6) (1.1 3.4) (35.2) -
At 31 March 2015 200.6 18.6 116 238 254.6 1.2
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2013" 329 7.8 6.0 24.3 71.0 0.2
Amortisation charge - 1.8 1.0 28 5.6 0.2
Impairment charge 149 - - 0.4 156.3 -
Disposals (8.1) - 0.1) 6.7} (12.9) -
Reclassification - - 0.4 0.4} - -
Exchange (0.6) {0.2) {0.2) (0.4} (1.4) -
At 31 March 2014 411 9.4 7.1 20.0 77.6 0.4
Armortisation charge - 15 1.0 1.9 4.4 0.3
impairment charge 11.1 - 03 - 1.4 -
Disposals - - (1.2) (1.0} (2.2) -
Exchange (6.0} (1.2) (0.7) {2.5) (10.4) -
At 31 March 2015 46.2 9.7 6.5 18.4 80.8 0.7
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 154.4 8.9 51 54 173.8 0.5
At 31 March 2014 188.2 11.8 29 82 2111 0.7
At 31 March 2013 2151 13.9 25 187 250.2 0.7

“Tha Group opening position has been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 ang 16 for delails.

Cf the total £4.4m {2014 £5.6m) amortisation charge for the year, £1.9m (2014: £2.8m) related to intangible assets arising on
acquisition including Enit {2014: £0.5m) relating to discontinued operations. Of the remaining amortisation expense of £2.5m
(2014: £2.8m), £1.7m (2014: £2,1m) has been charged in cost of sales and £0.8m (2014 £0.7m} has been charged in

administrative expenses.

The acquisition related intangibles net book value of £5.4m (2014: £8.2m) included customer lists of £2.6m (2014: £4.6m) and permits

of £1.9m (2014: £2.4m).

The reclassification of £2.6m in the year relates to a contract right over leasehold land that has been reclassified from land

and buildings.
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14. Intangible assets continued

Goodwill impairment
Impairment testing is camied out at cash generating unit (CGU) level on an annual basis. The following is 2 summary of the goodwilt
allocation for each reporting segment:

Restated”

2015 2014

£m £m

Solid Waste Benelux 53.0 72.9
Hazardous Waste 84.3 96.3
Organics 134 15.3
UK Municipal 3.7 3.7
Total goodwill 154.4 188.2

“The comparatives have been restated iollowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details,

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of a CGU using a value in use model by projecting cash flows for the next five years
together with a terminal value using a growth rate. The key assumptions underpinning the recoverable amounts of the CGUSs tested
for impairment is forecast revenue and trading profit. The forecast revenues in these models are based on management’s predictions
of overall market growth rates, including both volume and price. Trading margin is the average trading profit margin as a percentage
of revenue over the five-year forecast period. The five-year plans used in the impairment models are based on management's past
experience and future expectations of performance and reflect the planned changes in the CGUSs as a result of restructuring
programmes and actions instigated in the current year together with limited recovery and improvernent in general market and
economic canditions.

For each of the CGUs with significant goodwill, in comparison with the total carrying value of goodwill of the Group, the key
assumptions, long term growth rate and discount rate used in the value in use calculations are as foliows. In addition, where there has
been an impairment loss in a CGU, the recoverable amount is also disclosed below:

Netherlands Solid Hazardous
31 March 2015 Waste Wastg
Revenue (% annual growth rate) 3.5% 4.7%
Trading margin (average % of revenue) 5.5% 13.5%
Long term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate 9.9% 10.1%
Recoverable amount of the CGU £174m N/A

Netherlands Solid Hazardous
31 March 2014 Waste Wasta
Revenue (% annual growth rate) 1.5% 3.3%
Trading margin {average % of revenue} 7.1% 14.5%
Long term growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate 9.9% 10.4%
Recoverable amount of the CGU £209m N/A

Impailrment losses
The net impairment losses recognised in the consolidated Income Statement within exceptional administrative expenses, in respect
of geodwill and acquisition related intangibles were as follows:

2015 2014

£m £m

Sclid Waste Benelux 11.1 14.7
UK Municipal - 06
11 153




14. Intangible assets continued

A goodwill impairment charge of £11.1m (2014: £8.9m) has been recognised in administrative expenses in relation t¢ the Netherlands
Solid Waste CGU as a result of lower than expected performance in the division in the year and an associated revision of the future
trading performance. Following this impairment the carrying value of the goodwill of the Netherlands Solid Waste CGU was £51.8m
{2014: £70.7m). Any decrease in the growth rate in revenue over the review period (without any further cost actions) or in the long-
term growth rate or any increase in the pre-tax discount rate would mean that the carrying value of the Netherlands Solid Waste
CGU would exceed its recoverable amount and further impairment would arise.

For our Hazardous Waste, Organics and UK Municipal segments, the recoverable amounts were determined to be in excess of
the carrying values and it is considered unlikely that any reasonably possible change to key assumptions would rasult in an
impairment charge.

The other prior year Solid Waste Benelux impairment charge was goodwill of £5.4m and acquisition intangibles of £0.4m in relation
to the Gent site in Belgium.

15. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Landfill Piant and

huildings sites machinery Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2013* 280.5 425 533.5 856.5
Adiditions 5.2 - 36.2 414
Disposals 21.4) - (38.8) {60.2)
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 10) .1 - 8.7 {15.8)
Exchange (10.7) (0.8) {11.5) (23.0)
At 31 March 2014 246.5 4.7 510.7 798.9
Acquisition through business combination - - 0.3 0.3
Additions 12.0 - 34.4 46.4
Disposals 0.7} - (1.7 (12.4)
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 10) (2.8) - - (2.8)
Reclassification 2.1 - 0.5) (2.6)
Exchange (26.2} (5.2 63.1) (94.5)
At 31 March 2015 226.7 36.5 470.1 733.3
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At ¥ April 2013" 96.2 385 3513 486.0
Depreciation charge 8.3 0.8 31.0 401
Impairment charge 1.1 - 4.8 59
Remeasurement to fair value of assets held for sale 2.8 - 83 111
Disposals (10,7} - (32.0) (42.7)
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 10} (3.9} - 8.7} (12.6)
Exchange (2.9 0.9) {7.8) {11.6}
At 31 March 2014 90.9 384 346.9 476.2
Depreciation charge 8.0 0.3 275 35.8
Impairment charge 0.6 - 9.9 10.5
Digposals (0.4) - (9.9) (10.3}
Transfer to asset held for sale {note 10} (1.7} - - (1.7}
Reclassification 1.6 - (1.8) -
Exchange (10.7) {(4.8) (44.8) (6C.1)
At 31 March 2015 88.3 338 328.2 450.4
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 1384 28 141.9 2829
At 31 March 2014 155.6 33 163.8 3227
At 31 March 2013 184.3 4.0 182.2 370.5

“The: opening position has been restated foliowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
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15. Property, plant and equipmeant continued

Inciuded in plant and machinery are assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £11.7m (2014: £12.2m) and in land
and buildings are assets under finance leases with a net bock value of £2.6m (2014: £nil).

Included above are plant and machinery assets under construction of £6.5m (2014: £23.4m) and land and buildings assets under
construction of £7.4m (2014: £9.4m).

Depreciation expense of £34.8m (2014: £38.3m restated} has been charged in cost of sales, £1.0m (20t4: £1.3m} in administrative
expenses and £nil {2014: £0.5m) in discontinued operations.

The net reclassification of £2.6m in the year relates to a contract right over leaseheld land that has been reclassified to
intangible assets.

The current year impairment charge of £10.5m included £6.0m (2014: £nil) relating to the UK Organics Westcott Park site, £4.4m
(201 4: £0.9m) relating to the Belgium Solid Waste Gent site and £0.1m {2014: £nil} as a result of portiolio activities. The UK Organics
Westcott Park CGL consists of plant and machinery which was impaired following a reassessment of the risks in delivering long term
profitability at the site. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the value in use calculation was 9.5%. The Belgium Solid Waste Gent CGU
consists of land and buildings and plant and machinery which were impaired as a result of a reassessment of the long term forecasts
of this CGU, driven by challenging external markst conditions which have contributed to iower than budgeted performance during the
year. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the value in use calculation was 9.3%. The impairments were all charged to cost of sales,

The prior year impairment also included £3.4m as a result of a fire in the Netherlands, £0.8m against assets at the Benefux Van Tuijt
site and £0.8m relating to the Belgium green energy site.

Land ang Plant and

buildings machinery Total
Company tm m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2013 Q.1 0.4 0.5
Disposals - (0.3) {0.3)
At 31 March 2014 0.t 01 0.2
Additions - 0.2 0.2
Disposals - Q.1 {0.1)
At 31 March 2015 01 0.2 0.3
Accumulated depreciation
Al 1 April 2013 - 0.4 04
Depreciation charge - (0.3) 0.3)
At 31 March 2014 - 01 0.1
Disposals - 0.1) {0.1)
At 31 March 2015 - - -
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 0.1 0.2 0.3
At 31 March 2014 01 - 0.1

At 31 March 2013 0.1 - 0.1
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16. Investments —
Group Company z
Investmants >
Loans ta joint Other unlisted in subsidiary =
voniuwres  Joint veniures Associales investments Tota undertakings ™~
£m om £m £m £m £m 2
At 1 April 2013 2.3 1.3 1.4 3.1 8.1 466.9 =
Additions - - - - - 66.5 -
Share of retained profits - - 0.3 - 03 -
At 31 March 2014 2.3 1.3 1.7 31 8.4 533.4 —
Additions - 1.3 - - 1.3 56.4
Disposals - - - (0.3} (0.3) -
Repayment (1.0) - - - (1.0) (102.4) g
Share of retained profits - 0.5 4.7 - 5.2 - E
Fair value adjustment on cash flow hedges - {0.1) (3.0) - (3.1) - E
Exchange - - - {0.4) ©.4) - =
At 31 March 2015 1.3 3.0 34 24 101 4B7.4

*The opening position for the Group has been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see noles 1 and below for details.

One joint venture is held at nil value as the Group's share of losses exceeds the carrying amount as a result of the charge in relation
to the fair value movement on effective cash flow interest rate hedges. The Group's share of losses in the year and cumulatively which

are unrecegnised was £7.9m (2014: £nil).

On 31 December 2014 the Group sold its investrment in Hygea SCRL for £0.6m, the investment had been fully impaired.

Where the associate or joint venture holds non-recourse PFI/PPP debt there is a restriction on payment of dividends, this is due to the
terms of the financing facility agreements and require lender approval.

Details of principal subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and investments in associates are shown in note 35. The nature of the

Group's principal joint ventures and associates are typically in companies helding UK PFI arrangements with nen-recourse

borrowings. We have assessed each entity and have not identified any as individually material for further disclosure.

The repayment in the Company relates to an in specie dividend of £104.4m of which £102.4m was deemed to be a retum of
investment resulting in a £2.0m credit to the Income Statement.
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18. Investments continued

The table below shows the Joint Venture assets and liabilities which were included within the Group’s Consclidated Balance Sheet
at 1 April 2013 prior to adopting IFRS 11:

At 1 April znsa

m
Property, plant and equipment 4.8
Trade and other receivables 1.9
Deferred tax asset 04
Cash 0.5
Total assets 76
Borrowings (3.8
LLoans from related party (1.2)
Trade and other payables (2.3)
Deferred tax liability 0.1}
Provisions 0.7)
Total liabilities 7.9
Net Assets 0.3)
Goodwill 1.6
Investments in Joint Ventures 1.3

The impact of adopting IFRS 11 on the Group's Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 March 2014 is shown betow.

Impact of
As previousty adoption of
reported FRS 11 As presented
tm £m £m
Ravenue 636.4 (3.0} 633.4
Cost of sales {535.7) 2.3 {533.4)
Gross profit 100.7 0.7) 100.0
Administrative expenses (7.3} 0.4 (76.9)
Operating profit 234 0.3) 231
Finange income 10.4 - 10.4
Finance charges (26.4} 0.2 {26.2)
Share of results from associates and joint ventures 0.3 - 0.3
Profit before taxation 7.7 {0.1) 7.6
Taxation (5.9 0.1 (5.8)
Profit after taxation for the year from continuing operations 18 - 1.8
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (30.0) - (30.0}
Loss for the year (28.2) - (28.2)
Cther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 05 - 0.5
Total comprehensive loss for the year (27.7) - (27.7)




16. Investments continued

The impact of adopting IFRS 11 in relation to the relevant line items on the Group Consolidated Balance Shest is shown below.

Any line items not affected have been grouped together.

Impact of
As previcusly adeption of
reporied IFRS 11 As presantac
£m £m £m

Consoclidated Balance sheet
Non-current assets
intangible assets 212.7 {1.6) 2111
Property, plant and equipment 327.1 (4.4) 322.7
Investments 59 25 8.4
Deferred tax assets 2.7 0.4 12.3
QOther non-current assets 189.9 - 189.9

748.3 (3.9) 744.4
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 139.4 (1.2 138.2
Cash and cash equivalents 104.6 {0.4) 104.2
QOther current assets 227 - 22.7

266.7 {1.6) 265.1
Total assets 1,015.0 (5.5) 1,008.5
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — Other (256.9) 3.1 (253.8)
Provisions (34.0) 0.7 (33.3)
Other non-current liabilities (217.6) - (217.6)

(508.5) 38 (504.7)
Current liabilities
Borrowings - Other (3.7 0.4 (3.3}
Trade and other payables (204.3) 1.2 {203.1}
Current tax payable (10.7) 0.1 (10.6)
Other current liabilities (14.3) - (14.3)

(233.0) 1.7 (231.3)
Total liabilities (741.5) 55 {736.0)
Net assets 273.5 - 2735

The impact on the consolidated staterment of cash flows has not been disclosed as the movements are not material.
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17. Derivative financial instruments

2015 2014
Group Ass;: Liabi!it;;: Assg:; Liabih‘t{i:ems
Interest rate swaps — effective hedges - 426 - 15.2
Interest rate swaps - at fair value through profit or loss - 0.3 - c.4
Forward foreign exchange contracts — effective hedges - 0.3 - 0.2
Fuel derivatives - effective hedges 0.1 0.9 - 0.2
Total 0.1 441 - 16.0
Current 0.1 0.3 - 1.0
Non-current - 43.8 - 15.0
Total 0.1 441 - 16.0

The fair vatue of a cash flow hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the
hedged item is more than one year and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity is less than one year.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 March 2015 was £237.0m (2014: £231.6m
restated). The expiry dates of the contracts range from 30 June 2015 (earliest) to 30 June 2037 (latest).

The notional principal amount of the forward foreign exchange contracts was £4.0m {2014: £11.8m). The hedged highly probable
forecast transactions denominated in a foreign currency are expected to occur at various dates up to 1 April 20186.

The value of wholesale fuel covered by fuel derivatives at 31 March 2015 amounted to £7.3m (2014: £5.0m), the hedged highty
probable forecast purchases of wholesale fuel are expected to occur throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

Cumulative losses recognised in equity on the derivative financial instruments as of 31 March 2015 were £43.7m {2014: £15.6m)
with a loss of £28.1m recognised in the current period {2014: £14.5m gain).

The Company held an effective fuel derivative current liability of £0.9m (2014: £0.2m} and a current asset of £0.1m (20Q14; Cnil). In the
prior year the Company held an effective interest rate swap liability of £0.2m and effective forward foreign exchange contracts of
£0.1m. The noticnal value of the wholesale fuel covered by fuel derivatives as at 31 March 2015 amounted to £7.3m (2014: £5.0m).
In the pricr year the principal amount of the forward foreign exchange contracts was £4.4m and the notienal principal amount of the
outstanding interest rate swaps was £26.2m.

18. Business combinations

On 25 August 2014 Shanks acquired the business assets, £0.3m of plant and machinery, from Marcelis, a small tuck-in acquisition in
Solid Waste Netherlands for consideration of £0.4m. The residual excess of £0.1m over the net assets acquired has been recognised
in goodwill representing the synergy of acquiring the collection activilies of this recycling company.

On 1 January 2015 Shanks acquired a site comprising six hectares of land and operational assets including water and waste storage
tanks, a distillation tower, taboratories, warehousing and offices. The fair value of the land and building acquired was £2.9m with
£0.6m of the consideration deferred and this transaction has been treated as an asset acquisition and not a business combination.




19. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences under the liability method using applicable local tax rates. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are only ofiset where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention to settle the balances net.

Ratirement Dertvative
penefit Tax financial Capital Cther timing

scheme lossas instruments alowances differences Total
Group m £m m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2013" 20 2.7 7.2 (37.1) {0.9) (26.1)
{Charge) credit to Income Statement {note 9) {0.9) 0.4 0.1) 24 (2.5) 0.2)
Credit relating to discontinued operations - 08 - - 0.1 1.0
Credit (charge) to equity 1.0 - (3.8} - 0.3 (2.5)
Exchange - - - 1.1 0.2 1.3
At 31 March 2014 286 4.0 33 (33.6) (2.8) (26.5)
(Charge) credit to Incorme Statement (note 9) (0.5) 5.2 - 2.7 ©.8 6.6
Credit 1o equity 1.2 - 56 - 02 7.0
Exchange - ~ - 36 08 4.4
At 31 March 2015 3.3 9.2 8.9 (27.3) 2.8) (8.9)
Deferred tax assets 33 1.0 8.9 4.6 39 1.7
Deferrad tax liabilities - 8.2 - (31.9) {6.5) (30.2)
At 31 March 2015 3.3 9.2 8.9 {27.3) {2.6) (8.5)
Deferred tax assets 2.8 0.2 3.3 3.9 2.3 12.3
Deterred tax liabilities - 3.8 - {37.5) (5.1) (38.8}
At 31 March 2014 2.6 4.0 3.3 (33.6) (2.8) (26.5)

“The opening balance has been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

At 31 March 2015, £21.2m {2014: £12.3m restated) of the deferred tax asset and £30.2m (2014: £38.8m) of the deferred tax liability
is expected to be recovered after more than one year.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had unused trading losses (tax effect) of £29.7m (2014; £24.8m restated) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £9.2m (2014: £4.0m restated) of such losses and recognition is
based on management's projections of future profits in the relevant companies. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining £20.5m (2014: £20.8m restated) due to the uncertainty of future profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely in the relevant companies.

No liability has been recognised on the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries. This is because the Group is in a position to control the timing and method of the reversal of the differences and it is
probable that such differences will not give rise to a tax liability in the foreseeable future. The total temporary difference at 31 March
2015 amounted to £140.7m (2014; £138.7m) and the unrecognised deferred tax on the unremitted eamnings is estimated to be £0.4m
(2014 £0.5m) which relates to taxes payable on repatriation and dividend withholding taxes levied by overseas jurisdictions. UK tax
legistation relating to company distributions provides for exemption from tax for most repatriated profits, subject to certain exernptions.

Retirgment Dervative Other

bensfit financial timing
schemes instruments differences Total
Company £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2013 20 0.2 0.4 26
(Charge) credit to Income Statement {0.4) - 0.1 0.3)
Credit (charge} to equity 1.0 (0.1) 0.3 1.2
At 31 March 2014 26 0.1 0.8 3.5
Charge to Income Statement {0.5) - - 0.5)
Credit to equity 1.2 0.1 02 1.5
At 31 March 2015 3.3 0.2 1.0 4.5

At 31 March 2015, £4.5m {2014: £3.5m) of the deferred tax asset is expected to be recovered after more than one year.

As at 31 March 2015, the Company has unused tax losses (tax effect) of £5.0m (2014: £4.2m) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams,
Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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20. Inventories

Group
2015 2014
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 6.2 77
Work in progress - 0.2
Finished goods 0.7 1.5
6.9 9.4
21. Financial assets relating to PFI/PPP contracts
Financial assets result from the application of IFRIC 12 on accounting for concession arrangements refating to the UK PFI/PPP
Municipal contracts and they are measured initially at fair va'ue of consideration receivable and subsequently at amortised cost.
The moverment in the carrying value of non-current and current financial assets is as follows:
Group £m
At 1 April 2013 125.5
Income recognised in the income statement: Interest Income {note 8) 9.4
Advances 69.1
Repayments (8.4)
At 31 March 2014 195.6
Income recognised in the income statement: Interest Income (note 8) 14.1
Advances 73.7
Repayments (7.3}
Reclassified to provisions 2.1
At 31 March 2015 278.2
Current 316
Non-current 246.6
At 31 March 2015 278.2
Current 8.2
Non-current 187.4
At 31 March 2014 195.6
22. Trade and other receivahbles
Group Company
Rastated”
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Non-currant assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - §2.8 36.9
Deferred consideration 1.0 1.5 - -
Other receivables 1.2 1.0 - 1.2
2.2 25 82.8 38.1
Current assets
Trade receivables 81.2 93.9 - -
Provision for impairment of receivables (6.6) {5.6) - -
Trade receivables — net 74.6 88.3 - -
Accrued income 26.0 186 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 218.9 2161
Ceferred consideration 0.7 1.7 - -
Other receivables 8.0 14.0 0.3 15
Prepayments 11.7 156 0.1 0.1
121.0 138.2 219.3 217.7

*The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, seenates 1 and 16 for details,
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22. Trade and other receivables continued

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables: z
-
Group 3
2015 2014 g
£m £m =
At 1 April 5.6 57 s
Charged to Income Statement 29 13
tHilised (1.2 (1.3) —
Exchange (0.7) {0.1)
At 31 March 6.6 5.6
E
The allowance for bad and doubtful debts is eguivalent 10 8.1% (2014: 8.0% restated) of gross trade receivables. §
=
Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired: 3
Group
Restated"
2015 2014 I
£m £m
Neither impaired nor past due 53.6 54.6
Not impaired but averdue by less than three months 20.1 29.9 E
Not impaired but overdue by between three and six months 0.4 2.0 3
Not impaired but overdue by more than six months 0.5 1.8 g
Impaired 6.6 56 S
Impairment provision {6.6) (5.6) E
746 88.3 =

"The comparatives have been restaled following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

Past due and current amounts are not impaired where collection is considered likely. The Group considers that the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

There is no other concentration of credit risk with respect to trade and other receivables as the Group has a large number
of customers intemationally dispersed with no individual customer owing a significant amount.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
Restated”

2015 2014 2015 2014
£€m £m m £m
Sterling 32.0 34.6 107.8 119.7
Euro 88.7 102.6 191.7 136.1
Canadian Doltar 25 35 2.6 -
123.2 140.7 3021 255.8

"The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
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23. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
Rastated”
20165 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 60.6 50.6 8.0 6.4
Short-term deposits 0.2 53.6 - 16.5
60.8 104.2 8.0 22.9
“The comparalives have been restated lollowing the acoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
The carrying amounts of cash and of cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
Restated”
2015 2014 2015 2014
£rm £m £m £m
Sterling 18.2 22.4 15 1.7
Euro 40.8 778 6.3 18.9
Canadian Dollar 1.8 42 0.2 2.3
60.8 104.2 8.0 22.9

“The comparatives have been reslated lollowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notaes 1 and 16 for details.
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24, Borrowings —
Group Company z
Restated* =
2015 2014 2015 2014 ]
m £m £m £m w
Current borrowings g
Retail bonds 72.2 - 72.2 - £
Finance lease cbligations 28 33 - -
Core borrowings 75.0 33 722 - L
PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 62.3 1.7 - - "
137.3 5.0 722 -
Non-current borrowings w
Senior notes 28.8 329 - - 3
Retail bonds 71.8 164.3 71.8 164.3 g
Bank loans 3.3 50.1 87 - 8
Finance lease obligations 8.9 6.5 - -
Core borrowings 140.8 2538 80.5 164.3
PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 160.3 148.5 - -
3011 403.3 80.5 164.3
“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 lor details. g
E
The table below details the maturity profile of non-current borrowings: ;
g
Group Company g
Restated" A
2015 2014 2015 2014
£€m £m £m £m
Between cne and two years 71 143.8 - g2.2
Between two years and five years 152.1 103.2 80.5 -
Owver five years 141.9 156.3 - 82.1
301.1 403.3 80.5 164.3

“Tha comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

At 31 March 2015, the Group's core bank financing was a £130.2m (€180m) (2014: £148.8m (€180m)) multi-currency revolving credit
facility with seven major banks entered into on 31 January 2014 and expiring in January 2019. At 31 March 2015 £37.0m (€51.1m)
{2014; £51.7m (€62.5m) of the revolving credit facility was drawn and the remaining £93.2m (€128.9m) (2014: £97.1m (€117 .5m)) funds
were avallable for drawing by way of a revalving credit facility on a maximurm of three days notice or for ancillary derivative facilities.

At 31 March 2015, the Group had outstanding £28.9m (E40m} (2014: £33.1m (€40m)) of seven-year Pricoa private placement senior
notes issued in April 2011 at a fixed interest rate of 5.025%.

The Group has issued two tranches of retall bonds to investors in Belgiurm and Luxembourg which are listed on the London Stock
Exchange. The five-year retail bonds of £72.4m (€100m) {2014: £82.7m (€100m)) issued in October 2010 have an annual coupon of 5.0%
and the six-year retail bonds of £72.4m (€100m} (2014: £82.7m (€100m}} issued on 30 July 2013 have an annual coupon of 4.23%.

The Group's finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

2015 2014

MiInimunt Minimum

lease lease
payments {nterest Principal payments Interest Principal
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Within one year 3.2 (0.4) 28 38 {0.9) 3.3
Between one and five years 6.9 (0.8) 6.1 59 (0.6} 5.3
More than five years 4.6 {1.8) 2.8 1.3 (0.1} 1.2
14.7 (3.0) 1.7 11.0 (1.2} 9.8

The Group has an option to purchase leased assets at the end of the fease term. There are no restrictions imposed by lessors to take
out further debt or leases.
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24. Borrowings continued

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
Rastateq”
2015 2014 2015 2014
€m £m £m £m
Sterling 228.4 149.6 58 -
Euro 187.3 2316 146.9 164.3
Canadian Dollar 227 2741 - -
4384 408.3 152.7 164.3
“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
25. Trade and other payables and other non-current liabilities
Group Company
Rastated”
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m tm
Current liabilities
Trade payables 70.6 81,5 0.1 0.4
Cther tax and social security payable 10.8 154 0.4 0.4
QOther payables 15.4 148 0.6 0.3
Accruals 71.0 725 6.5 6.8
Deferred revenue 19.1 189 - -
Deferred consideration 0.1 - - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 76.6 -
187.0 2031 84.2 7.9
Non-cutrent liabilities
Deferred consideration 0.4 0.8 - -
Government granis 0.2 0.3 - -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - - 152.4 215.3
0.6 1.2 152.4 215.3
*The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 3 and 16 for details,
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables and other non-current liabilities are denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
Restated"
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Sterling 64.3 64.1 222.3 218.9
Buro 121.6 138.7 14.3 4.3
Canadian Dollar 1.7 1.5 - -
187.6 204.3 236.6 223.2

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see note 1 for details.
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Site
rastoration
and
aftercare Restructuring Othar Total
Group £m m £m Cm
At 1 April 2014* 30.3 3.3 1.3 44.9
Provided in the year - including the impact of the change in discount rate 55 26 57 13.8
Reclassification from financial assets - - 2.1 2.1
Released in the year - (0.1} (1.5} (1.6}
Finance ¢harges — unwinding of discount (note 8) 1.3 - 08 2.1
Utilised in the year {0.4) (3.8) (3.4} 7.8)
Exchange 3.8) {0.3) {0.4) {4.5)
At 31 March 2015 32.9 1.7 146 49.2
Current 2.0 1.7 5.1 8.8
Non-current 30.9 - 9.5 40.4
At 31 March 2015 32,9 17 146 49.2
Current 1.7 2.8 7.1 11.6
Non-current 28.6 0.5 42 33.3
At 31 March 2014 30.3 3.3 11.3 44,9

*The opening balances have been restated lollowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

Site restoration

The site restoration provision as at 31 March 2015 related to the cost of final capping and covering of the landfill sites, The Group's
minimum unavoidable costs have been reassessed at the year end and the net present value fully provided for. These costs are
expected to be paid over a period of up to 24 years from the balance sheet date and may be impacted by a nurmnber of factors
including changes in legislation and technology.

Aftercare

Post-closure costs of landfil sites, including such items as menitoring, gas and leachate management and licensing, have been
estimated by management based on current best practice and technology available. These costs may be impacted by a number
of factors including changes in legisfation and technology. The dates of payments of thase aftercare costs are uncertain but are
anticipated to be over a period of approximatety 30 years from closure of the relevant landfill site.

Restructuring

The restructuring provision relates to redundancy and related costs incurred in the structural cost reduction pregramme. Costs,
net of releases, of £2.5m (2014: £2.6m} have been reflected and £3.8m (201 4; £3.8m) has been wutilised during the year. As at
31 March 2015 the majority of the affected empioyees had left the Group’s employment with the remainder due to depart during
the following year.

Other

Other provisions principafly cover onerous contracts, onerous leases, lifecycle expenditure cbligations, warranties and indemnities.
Onercus contracts are provided at the net present value of the operating losses of the cnerous contracts and releases in the year are
set out in note 4. The provisions are to be utilised over the period of the contracts to which they relate with the latest date being 2034.
Under the terms of the agreements for the disposal of UK Operations, the Group has given a number of warranties and indemnities

1o the purchasers which may give rise to payments.

Restructuring Other Total
Company £m £m Cm
At 1 Aprit 2014 Q03 1 1.4
Utilised in the year 0.2) 0.1) 0.3)
At 31 March 2015 .1 1.0 11
Current 01 1.0 11
Non-current - - -
At 31 March 2015 0.1 1.0 141
Current 0.2 1.1 1.3
Non-current 01 - 0.1

At 31 March 2014 0.3 1.1 1.4
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27. Retirement benefit scheme

Group
Retirerent benefit costs m‘;’i 20(_::
UK defined contribution scheme 0.7 10
UK defined benefit scheme 0.3 12
QOverseas pension schemes 9.4 10.0
10.4 12.2

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group and Company's principal pension scheme is the Shanks Group Pension Scheme which covers eligible UK employees and
has both funded defined benefit and defined contribution sections. The defined benefit plan provides benefits to members in the form
of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life, the level of benefits provided depends on the members” length of service and salary.
Plan assets are managed by the trustees. There are five trustees, three were appointed by the Company and two were nominated by
members, who are responsible for ensuring the scheme is run in accordance with the members' best interests and the pension laws

of the UK (which are overseen by The Pensions Regulator).

The most recently completed triennial actuarial valuation of the Scheme, which was performed by independent qualified actuaries for the
trustees of the Scheme, was carried out as at 5 April 2012, The Group has agreed that it will aim to eliminate the pension plan deficit over
seven years, with an agreed annual deficit contribution of £3.1m. This level of funding will be reassessed as part of the 5 April 2015
actuarial valuation. The total estimated contributions expected to be paid 10 the scheme in the year ending 31 March 2016 are £3.3m,

Assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions adopted at the balance sheet date were as follows:

2015 2014

% p.a. % p.a.

Discount rate 3.4 4.3
Rate of price inflation 31 35
Censumer price inflation 20 2.5

The discount rate assumption for 2015 is derived from the single agency curve based on high quality AA rated bonds. In 2014 the rate
was derived based on iBoxx AA rated bonds.

The mortality assumptions are based on standard mortality tables which allow for future mortality improvements. The assumptions are
that 2 member currently aged 65 will live on average for a further 23 years if they are male and for a further 25 years if they are female.
For a member who retires in 2034 at age 65 the assumptions are that they will live on average for around a further 24 years after
retirement if they are male or for a further 27 years after retirement if they are female.

Income statement

2015 2014

£m £m

Current service cost 0.3 0.5
Interest expense on scheme net liabilities 0.5 03
Curtailment cost - o7
Net retirement benefit charge before tax 0.8 15

The prior year curtailment cost was incurred following the exit from UK Solid Waste which resulted in a 40% reduction in the active
membership of the scheme. This led ta an increase in liabilities and the additional cost was reflected in non-trading and excepticnal
itemns within discontinued operations.




27. Retirement banefit scheme continued

Balance sheet
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2015 20t4
Em £m
Present value of funded obligations {169.2) {148.0)
Fair value of plan assets 152.8 134.9
Pension scherme deficit {16.4) {13.1}
Related deferred tax asset (note 19) 33 26
Net pension liability {(13.1) {10.5)
The movement in the net defined benefit obtigation over the year was as follows:
Present valye  Fair value of
of obligations plan assets Total
£m £m £m
At 1 Aprit 2013 (142.4) 1336 (8.8)
Current service cost {0.5) - (0.5)
Curtailment cost 0.7} - 0.7}
Interest (expense) iIncome 6.2) 5.9 0.3
Remeasurements:
Actuarial loss on scheme liabilities arising from changes in financial assurmptions {1.8) - (1.8)
Actuariat loss on scheme liabilities arising from changes in experience (0.1} - {0.1)
Return on plan assets excluding interest expense - 4.5) 4.5)
Cantributions from employer - 36 36
Cantributions from plan participants {0.1) 0.1 -
Benefit payments 3.8 (3.8} -
At 31 March 2014 (148.0) 134.9 {13.1)
Current service cost 0.3 - {0.3)
Interest {expense} income 6.3) 58 {0.5)
Remeasurements:
Actuarial loss on scheme liabilities arising from changes in financial assumptions (19.86) - {19.8)
Actuarial foss on scheme liabilities arising from changes in experience 0.9 - 09
Return on plan assets excluding interest expense - 12.9 129
Caontributions from employer - 33 33
Contributions from plan participants 0.1} 0.1 -
Benefit payments 4.2 (4.2) -
At 31 March 2015 (169.2) 1528 {16.4)
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 19 years.
The assets held by the scheme in managed funds and cash were as follows:
2015 2014
£m % m %
Equities 40.9 26.8 36.3 26.9
Index linked gilts 48.9 32.0 40.4 299
Corporate bonds 30.6 20.0 279 20.7
Newton Diversified Growth Fund N7 20.7 298 22.1
Cash 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.4
Totat 152.8 100.0 134.9 100.0
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27. Retirement benefit schame continued

Statement of comprehensive income

2015 2014

£m £m

Actuarial losses on scheme liabitities (18.7) (1.9
Actuarial gain (losses} on scheme assets 12.9 (4.5}
Actuarial loss {5.8) 6.4}

Cumulative actuarial gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income since 1 April 2004 are losses of £28.9m
{2014: £23.1m).

Sensltivity to assumptions
The sensitivity of the defined benefit cbligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact an net defined benefit abligation

Change in Increass in Decrease in
asst ion ion assumption

% £m
Discount rate 0.25 7.6 {7.9)
Rate of price inflation 0.25 4.7) 4.5
Consumer price inflation 0.25 4.7) 4.5
Increasa Decrease

by t yearin by 1 year in
assumption assumption
£ £m

Life expectancy 5.6) 5.7

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption white holding all other assurmptions constant. In practice, this
is unlixely to occur, as changes in assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liabiity recognised within the
balance sheet.

Risks
Through its defined benefit pension scheme the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the maost significant of which are:

Asset volatility

The scherme liabilities are calculated using a discount raie set with reference to corporate bond yields and if plan assets underperform
this yield, this will result in a deficit. The Group’s pension scheme holds a significant proportion of eguities, which are expected to
outperform corporate bonds in the long-term although exposing the Group to volatility and risk in the short-term. The trustees have
agreed an underlying strategy with the Company sc that any ongeing improvements in the scheme’s funding position would trigger
movements from growth assets (equities and diversified growth) to non-growth assets (gilts and bonds) in order 1o protect and
consolidate such improvements. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a
material impact on the overall level of assets. The Group does not use derivatives to manage the risks of the scheme.

Changes in bond ylelds
A decrease in carporate bond vields will increase plan liabilities, altthough this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
scheme's bond holdings.

Inflation risk
The majority of the scheme's benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities although, in most
cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extrerne inflation.

The majority of the scheme's obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in the life of the member will
result in an increase in the liabilities.




27. Retirement benefit scheme continued

Overseas

In the Netherlands, employees are members of either a multi-employer pension scheme or other similar externally funded schemes.
These schemes are treated as defined contribution plans as it is not possible to separately identify the Group's share of the assets
and liabflities of those schemes. The Group has been informed by the schemes that it has no obligation to make additional

contributions in the event that the schemes have an overall deficit.

In Belgium, as a result of recent legislation changes all of the pension schemes we operate have to be considered as defined benefit
schemes under IAS 1. At March 2015 the potential liability to the Group was estimated and determined as not significant.

The total cast in the year for overseas pensions was £9.4m (2014: £10.0m).

28. Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares

of 10p each  Shara premium
Group Nurmber £m £m
Share capital allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 April 2013 397,463,413 39.7 99.8
Issued under share option schemes 237,761 01 0.1
At 31 March 2014 397,701,174 398 99.9
Issued under share option schemes 149,243 - 0.1
At 31 March 2015 397,850,417 39.8 100.0

During the year 149,243 {2014: 237,761} ordinary shares were allotted folowing the exercise of share options under the Savings
Related Share Option Schemes for an aggregate consideration of £123,435 (2014: £182,570). Further disclosures relating to share-

based options are set out in note 7.

Qrdinary shares

of 10p each Shara premium
Company Number m £m
Share capital allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 April 2013 397,463,413 39.7 123.8
Issued under share option schemes 237,761 0.1 041
At 31 March 2014 397,701,174 39.8 123.9
Issued under share option schemes 149,243 - 0.1
At 31 March 2015 397,850,417 39.8 124.0
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29, Financial instruments

Carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Group carrying value Company carrying value
Restated®

X 2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial assets Note £m m £m tm
Loans and receivables
Financial assets relating to PFI/PPP contracts 21 278.2 195.6 - -
Loans to joint veniures 16 1.3 2.3 - -
Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 22 1115 125.1 302.0 265.7
Cash and cash eguivalenis 23 60.8 104.2 8.0 229
Derivative financial instruments
Fuel derivatives 17 01 - 0.1 -
Available for sale financial assets
Unlisted investments 16 24 31 - -

454.3 430.3 3101 278.6

"The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFAS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

The Group considers that the fair value of financial assets is not materially different to their carrying value. For unlisted investments the
carrying vatue is measured at cost as the range of possible fair values is significant. The Group has no current plans to dispose of
these investments.

Group carnrying value Company carrying value
Restated"
2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial liabilities Note £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Bank loans — core borrowings 24 3.3 50.1 8.7 -
Retall bonds 24 144.0 164.3 144.0 164.3
Senicr notes 24 28.8 329 - -
Finance lease obligations 24 1.7 98 - -
Bank loans - PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 24 2226 151.2 - -
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 25 157.5 169.7 236.2 222.8
Derivative financial instruments
Fuel derivatives 17 09 0.2 0.9 0.2
Forward foreign exchange contracts 17 0.3 0.2 - 0.1
Inmerest rate swaps 17 42.9 15.6 - 0.2
640.0 584.0 389.8 387.6

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for cetails.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy of valuation technigues to determine the fair value of financial instruments:
= Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

« Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are ohservable, either directly
or indirectly;

» Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data.




29. Financial instruments continued

The table below presents the Group’s assets and liabilittes measured at fair value:

Leval 2
2015 2014
£m £m
Assets
Derivative financial instruments 01 -
01 -
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 441 16.C
Retail bonds 1496 168.6
Senior notes 3.7 36.3
2254 2209

The Group considers that the fair value of bank loans, trade and cther payables, contingent consideration and finance lease

cbligations are not materially different to their carrying value.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no transfers between tevel 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers

into and out of level 3.

Offsetting financial assets
The fallowing financial assets are subject to offsetting arrangements enforceable in the event of default on debt facilities:

2015 2014
Bank Loans Bank Loans

PFL/PPP PFI/PPP

non-recourse NON-recourse

net debt net deot

£m m

PFI/PPP non-recourse gross debt 233.9 163.0
PFI/PPP cash and cash equivalents (11.3) {11.8)
PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 2226 151.2

Risk management

The Group is exposed to market risk (interest rate risk and commodity price risk), foreign exchange risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
The Group's Treasury function is charged with managing and controlling risk relating to the financing and liquidity of the Group under

policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Group does not enter into speculative transactions.

Interest rate risk

The Group has continued to limit its exposure to interest rate risk by entering into fixed rate retail bonds and fixed rate senior notes

that fix a substantial part of the Group's core borrowings.
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29, Financial instruments continued

The PFI/PPP non-recourse borrowings are at floating rates and the Group has entered into interest rate swaps at the inception of
each PFI/PPP cantract. The interest rate swaps hedge the interest cash flows. The interest rate swaps which are considered to be
used for hedging purposes are accounted for under |1AS 39 hedge accounting with changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps
being recognised directly in reserves, as they are effective hedges. Interest rate swaps which have not been designated as hedges
by the Group are classified as held for trading in accordance with 1AS 32. The interest rate swaps relating to the PFI/PPP non-
recourse borrowings are presented in current or non-current liabilities as determined by the term of the related borrowings as the
Group believes this best reflects the commercial reality of the instruments.

Changes in interest rates could have a significant impact on core banking covenants relating to interest cover and on the interast
charge in the Income Statement. In order to measure the risk, borrawings and the expected interest cost for the year are forecast
on a quarterly basis and scenarios run using management’s expectations of a reasonably possible change in interest rates. Interest
expense volatility remained within acceptable limits throughout the year. The Group's exposure has not significantly changed.

The interest rate profile of financial assets and liabilities were as follows:

2015 2014

Restated”

Woighted Waighted

average Restated” Restated” average

Floating Fixed interest Floating Fixed interest

rate rate rate rate rate rate

Group £m £m % £m £m %

Financial assets

Financial assets relating to PFI/PPP centracts - 278.2 6.1 - 195.6 6.3

Cash and cash eguivalents 60.6 - - 50.6 - -

Short-term deposits 0.2 - 0.3 53.6 - 0.3
Financial liabilities

Senior notes - 238 5.0 - 32.9 5.4

Retail bonds - 144.0 4.6 - 164.3 4.6

Bank loans — PFIYPPP non-recourse net debt 2226 - 3.6 151.2 - 38

Bark loans - core borrowings 31.3 - 28 50.1 - 2.4

Interest rate swaps - notional principal (237.0) 237.0 33 (231.6) 231.6 3.2

*The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

The weighted average interest rate for the interest rate swaps is the weighted average of the fixed interest rates which ranges from
0.99% to 5.79% (2014: 0.99% to 5.79% restated).

Excluded from the analysis above is £11.7m (2014: £9.8m) of amaunts payable under finance leases as set out in note 24, which are
subject to fixed rates of interest. In addition, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables have been excluded as they are
not interest bearing.

The average term for short-term deposits is ne mere than three months,

Interest rate sensitivity (@ssuming all other variables remain constant):

2015 2014
income Equity Incoms Equity
sensitivity sensitivity sansitivity sensitivity
£m £m £m tm
1% increase in interest rates
Derivatives 21 45.9 1.8 421
Non-derivatives (1.8 {1.6) 1.2 (1.2)
0.5 443 0.8 40,9
1% decreass in interest rates
Derivatives (2.1) (29.2) (1.8) (26.8)
Non-deftivatives 16 1.6 1.2 1.2

{0.5) 276 0.6) (25.6)




29. Finangial instruments continued

A 1% movement has been applied to interest rates for the year ended 31 March 2015, representing management’s assessment of a

reasonably possible change in interest rates (2014: 1%). The interest rate sensitivity is taken to occur from 31 March 2014 and so the
change in the fair value of the borrowings and interest rate derivatives is shown as an equity sensitivity which results in an increase of
£44.3m (2014: £40.9m) for a 1% increase in interest rate and a decrease of £27.6m (2014: £25.6m) for a 1% decrease in rates.

The Company in the prior year had short-term deposits of £16.5m at an effective interest rate of 0.2%. The effective interest rate on
the Company's cash and cash equivalents was 0% (2014: 0%). The weighted average effective interest rate relating to the Company
was 4.6% (2014: 4.6%) for the retail bonds. Interest on inter-company loan balances is charged at rates of between 0% and 13%
{2014: 0% and 13%).

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Europe and Canada and is exposed to foreign exchange risk for movements between the Euro, Canadian
Dollar and Sterling. The Group's subsidiaries conduct the majority of their business in their respective functional currencies; therefore
there is limited transaction risk. The Group mitigates some fareign exchange risk on financial assets and exports of processed waste
arising in the UK but denominated in Euros through the use of forward exchange contracts. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from
net investments in foreign operations. This exposure is reduced by funding the investments as far as possible with borrowings in the
same currency. The Group applies hedge accounting principles to net investments in foreign operations and the related borowings.

The Group has designated the carrying value of Euro borowings of £144.0m (2014: £164.3m) (fair value of £149.6m (2014: £168.6m))
as a net investment hedge of the Group’s investments dencminated in Euros. The hedge was 100% effective for the year ended

31 March 2015 {2014: 100%) and as a result the related exchange gain of £20.7m (2014: £5.3m) on translation of the borrowings into
Sterling has been recognised in the exchange reserve.

Foreign exchange rate sensitivity (assuming all other variables remain constant):

2015 2014

Income Equity Income Equity
sensitivity sensitivity sensitvity sensitivity
£m £m £m om

10% increase in foreign exchange rates against Sterling
Eurg 1.2 18.0 (0.4} 18.1
Canadian Dollar 0.1 0.3 (0.1} 0.2
1.3 18.3 {0.5) 18.3

The table above details how the Group's income and equity would increase if there were a 10% increase in the respective currency
against Sterling. A 10% decrease would have an equal and opposite effect. A 10% movement has been applied to each currency
representing management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange currency rates (2014: 10%;).

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to fuel price risk therefore management’s risk strategy aims 1o provide protection against sudden and
significant increases in oil prices whilst ensuring that the Group is not competitively disadvantaged in the event of a substantial fafl in
the price of fuel, It is expected that part of this risk can be recovered via escalation clauses linked to the price of fuel within contracts
such as UK PFI/PPP.

To meet these objectives the fuel risk management programme allows for the use of a number of derivatives available on the over-the-
counter {OTC) markets with approved counterparties and within approved limits. There were £7.3m of fuel derivatives in place at

31 March 2015 (2014: £5.0m). The fair value of wholesale fuel covered by derivatives at 31 March 2015 amounted to a liability of
£0.9m {2014: £0.2m}) andt an asset of £0.1m (2014: Enil). These contracts were designated as cash flow hedges against highly
probable future fuel purchase forecasts to occur during the following 12 months from the balance sheet date.
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29. Financial instruments continued

The following table demanstrates the gross sensitivity of a reasonably possible change in fuel prices, with all other variables
held constant:

2015 2014

income Incomg

sansitivity sensitivity

£m £m

10% increase in wholesale fuel price (excluding duty} 0.9 1.2
10% decrease in wholesale fuel price {(excluding duty) (0.9) (1.2)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they fall due.

As well as committed term borrowings under a syndicated lcan facility, the Group maintains uncommitted lending facilities with a
range of banks for working capital purposes. The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that facility
drawdowns are arranged as necessary and an adequate level of headroom is maintained. The Group’s exposure to and the way it
manages liquidity risk has not changed from the previous vear.

For more details of the Group's bank overdrafts, bank loans and senior notes see note 24.

Undrawn committed borrowing facilities:

PFI/PPP non-recourse

Cora borrowings net debt Total Group
2015 2014 25 2014 2015 2014
Group £m ¢m £m m £m tm
Expiring within one year - - 20.2 - 20.2 -
Expiring between one and two years - 18 8.8 62.0 8.8 63.6
Expiring in more than two years 934 921 1.4 41.0 94.8 133.1
93.4 93.7 30.4 103.C0 123.8 198.7

In addition, the Group had access to £26.8m (2014: £27.3m) of undrawn uncommitted working capital facilities.

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had undrawn committed borrowing facilities at floating rates of £93.4m (2014: £92. {m} expiring
in more than two years.

The Group manages the liquidity risk of derivatives by entering into these only by way of hedging existing and projected exposures
with counterparties of approved credit ratings for the OTC trades with no margin calls or high thresholds for margin calls.

in the majority of cases subsidiary undertakings holding non-recourse PFI/PPP debt and financial assets are restricted in their ability
to transfer funds to the parent in the form of cash dividends or to repay loans and advances. This is due to the terms of the financing
facility agreements and require lender approval to make such transfers,




153
£
z
'
29. Financial instruments continued ——
The following table analyses the Group's financial liabilities and net settled derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity E
groupings. The maturities of the undiscounted cash flows, including interest and principal, at the balance shest date are based on the =
earfiest date on which the Group is obliged to pay: £
]
Within  Between one Over -":‘
one year and five years five years e
£m £m £€m
At 31 March 2015 L
Senior notes 1.5 326 - "
Retail bonds 79.0 84.6 -
Bank loans — core borrowings 0.9 35.0 - -
Bank loans - PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 70.5 47.8 191.9 =
Firance lease liabilities 3.2 6.9 4.6 E
Net settled derivative financial instrumentis 6.5 237 50.4 3
Trade and other payables 1571 0.4 -
318.7 231.0 246.9
At 31 March 2014*
Senior notes 1.7 389 -
Retail bonds 76 100.8 86.2 £
Bank loans — core borrowings i4 56.6 - E
Bank loans — PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt 7.3 93.4 100.5 =
Finance lease liabilities 38 59 1.3 =
Net settled derivative financial instruments 6.8 24.6 56.4 E
Trade and other payables 168.8 0.9 - =
197.4 3211 244.4

“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.

Security of borrowing facilities

The Group's core bank loans, retail bonds and senior notes are unsecured but are subject to cross guaraniees within the Group.
Each PFI/PPP company has non-recourse loan facilities which are secured by a legal mongage over any land and a fixed and floating

charge over the assets of the PFI/PPP company.

—_—
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29. Financial instruments continuad

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss where counterparties are not able to meet their obiligations.

Surplus cash, when not used to repay borrowings, is placed on deposit with banks and money market funds in accordance with a
policy that specifies the minimum acceptable credit rating and the maximum exposure to each counterparty. At 31 March 2015 the
amount of credit risk on cash and short term deposits totalled £80.8m (2014: £104.2m restated).

Trade and other receivables mainly comprise amounts due from customers for services performed. Management consider that the
exposure to any single customer is not significant and that where credit quality is in doubt, adequate provision has been made for
probable losses. At 31 March 2015 the amount of credit risk on trade and other receivables amounted to £123.2m (2014: £140.7m
restated). The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The financial assets relating to PFI/PPP contracts are recoverable from the future revenues refating to these contracts. Management
consider that as the counterpartias for the future revenues are UK local authorities or councils, there is minimal credit risk, At 31 March
2015 the amount of credit risk on financial assets amounted to £278.2m (2014: £195.6m).

Capital management

The Group actively manages the capital available to fund the Group, comprising equity and reserves together with core debt funding.
In order to make decisions over where capital is allocated, the Group monitors the retum on capital employed. The Group has a
funding strategy to ensure there is an appropriate debt to equity ratio as well as an appropriate debt maturity profile. The strategy is
based on the requirements of the Company's Articles of Association, which state that core debt should be limited to three times the
level of capital and reserves, which is the equity attributable to the owners of the parent. The Group's funding strategy has not
changed from the previous year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as core net debst divided by total capital. The
gearing ratios at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

Note £m £m

Total core borrowings 24 2158 257 1
Less: cash and cash equivalents 23 {60.8) {104.2)
Core net debt 155.0 152.9
Total equity 189.1 273.5
Total capital 344.1 426.4
Gearing ratio 45% 36%

The Group has to comply with a number of banking covenants which are set out in the agreements for bank loans and senicr notes.
There are financial covenants which are measured using the performance of the core Group, excluding PFl companies and joint
ventures, and relate to interest cover, the ratio of debt to EBITDA and the net warth of the Group. There are other restrictions in the
loan documentation concerning acquisitions, disposals, security and other issues. The Group has complied with its banking covenants
during the year.
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Group Ce
Reastated”
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
(Loss) profit before tax {20.5) 7.6 (2.3) 3.7
Fair value gain on financial instruments (0.1) 0.3 - -
Finance income {14.8) {10.1} (5.4) 8.8)
Finance charges 28.2 26.2 11.0 11.2
Share of results from associates and joint ventures (5.2 (0.3) - -
Operating (loss) profit from continuing operations {(12.4) 23.1 33 (1.3
Cperating profit (oss) from discontinued operations 1.3 (30.9) - -
Amnortisation and impairment of intangible assets 15.8 209 0.3 .2
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 46.3 45,9 - -
Fair value adjustments in relation to the UK Solid Waste exit - 20.4 - -
Exceptional gain of insurance proceeds in relation to fire in the Netherlands - (5.7} - -
Exceptional loss on disposal of business assets 0.5 - - -
Exceptional gain on sale of impaired investment in associate {0.6) - - -
Net in specie dividend (ncte 16} - - (2.0} -
Non-exceptional gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.2) (2.1} - -
Current asset write offs 1.7 25 - -
Reassessment of contingent consideration {0.8) (1.0} - -
Exchange loss - - (0.3} (1.4)
Increase in long-term provisions due to discount rate change 74 - - -
Net decrease in provisions {1.7) (13.4) {0.3) (1.1)
Payments to fund defined benefit pension scheme deficit {3.1) (3.1} {3.1) (3.1
Pension curtailment - Q.7 - o7
Share-based compensation 1.3 c.7 1.3 GC.7
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 55.2 58.0 (0.8) 5.3
Decrease in inventories 0.5 1.2 - -
Decrease in receivables 1.7 8.0 38.7 38.5
(Decrease} increase in payables {1.8) 57 129 3.0
Cash flows from operating activities 55.8 72.9 50.8 36.2
“The comparatives have been restated tollowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
Consolidated movement in net debt
Rastatad”
2015 2014
£m £m
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents {40.4) 31.2
Net increase in borowings and finance leases {40.4) 62.3)
Capitalisation of loan fees - 2.4
Total cash flows in net debt (80.8) (28.7)
Finance leases entered into during the year (6.5) (5.8)
Deferred interest of PFI/PPP non-recourse delot {8.8) 4.0)
Armortisation of loan fees {0.9) (1.4
Exchange gain 23.5 10.1
Movement in net debt (73.5) (29.8)
Net debt at beginning of year {304.1) {274.3)
Net debt at end of year (377.6) (304.1)

“The cormparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.
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30. Notes to the statements of cash flows continued

Movement in net debt

At 1 Apri) mng:ser: Exchange At 31 March
2014° Cash flows changes movements 2015
&m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 104.2 (40.4) - (3.0} 0.8
Bank loans (50.1} 189 (0.5} 0.4 {31.3)
Senior notes {32.9} - - 41 (28.8)
Retail bonds {164.3} - C.4) 207 (144.0)
Finance leases (9.8) 3.3 (6.5) 1.3 {11.7)
Total core net debt (152.9} (18.2) (7.4) 235 {155.0}
PFI/PPP non-recourse net debt (151.2} 62.6) (8.8) - (222.6)
Total net debt (304.1) (80.8) (16.2) 235 (377.6)
“The apening position has been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, see note 1 for details.
Reconciliation of underlying free cash flow as presented in the Finance Review
o5 s
£m £m
Net cash generated from operating activities 501 71.3
Exclude provisions and restructuring spend 123 16.5
Exclude payments to fund denied benefit pension scheme 31 31
Include finance charges and loan fees paid {16.8) (18.2)
Include finance income received 4.0 5.0
include purchases of intangible assets (1.2) (1.3
Include purchases of replacement items of property, ptant and equipment {30.3) {23.8)
include proceeds from disposals of property, plant & equipment 2.2 39
Underlying free cash flow 234 56.5
“The comparatives have been restated following the adoption of IFRS 11, sea nctes 1 and 16 for details.
31. Capital commitments
Restated”
2015 2014
Group £m £m
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure on financial assets 33.5 63.9
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment 1341 16.4
Contracts placed for future intangible assets - 0.2
Joint venture contracts placed for future capital expenditure 50.6 0.2

"The comparalives have been restated following the adeption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details.




32. Financial commitments

2015 2014
Group £m £m
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Within cne year 8.5 10.2
Later than one year and less than five years 19.5 23.0
More than five years 59.4 67.2
87.4 100.4
Future minimum lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub-leases 0.3) 0.1)
87.1 100.3

33. Contingent liabilities

Group and Company

Due to the nature of the industry in which the business operates, from time to time the Group is made aware of claims or litigation
arising in the ordinary course of the Group's business. Provision is made for the Directors’ best estimate of all known claims and all
such legal actions in progress. The Group takes legal advice as 1o the likelihood of success of claims and actions and no provision is
made where the Directors consider, based on that advice that the action is untkely to succeed or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the
potential obligation cannot be made.

Under the terms of sale agreements, the Group gave a number of indemnities and warranties relating to the disposed operations for
which appropriate provisions are held.

In respect of contractual liabilities the Company and its subsidiaries have given guarantees and entered into counter indemnities of
bends and guarantees given on their behalf by sureties and banks totalling £199.1m (2014: £197 .6m). In addition, the Company has
contingent liabilities in respect of both VAT and MM Revenue & Customs group payment arrangements of £0.8m (2014 £1.3m).

The Company has given guarantees in respect of the Group’s subsidiary and joint venture undertakings’ borrowing facilities totalling
£57.8m (2014: £91.8m).
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34. Related party tronsactions

Transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
The Group had the following transactions and cutstanding balances with associates and joint ventures, in the ordinary course

of business:
Associates Joint ventures
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Sales 529 43.8 209 0.8
Purchases 01 - 1.2 0.8
Management fees 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.2
Interest on loans to joint ventures - - 0.2 0.2
Receivables at 31 March 4.2 1.0 31 1.3
Payables at 31 March - - 01 0.3
Loans made by Group companies at 31 March - - 13 2.3
Loans made to Group companies at 31 March - - 0.4 0.5

The receivables and payables are due one month after the date of the invoice, they are unsecured in nature and bear no interest.

Remuneration of key management personne!

Key management personnel comprises the Board of Directors and the members of the Group's Executive Committee. The disclosures
raguired by the Companies Act 2006 and those specified by the Financial Conduct Authority relating to Directors’ remuneration
{including retirement benefits and incentive plans), interests in shares, share options and other interests, are set out within the
Remuneration Report on pages 77 to 81, and form part of these financial statements. The emoluments paid or payable to key
managerment personnel were:

2015 2014

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 3.2 31
Post employment benefits 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments 0.8 0.5
4.2 38

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries

A list of the Company's principal subsidiaries is set out in note 35. Transactions with subsidiaries relate to interest on intercompany
loans and management charges. Net interest income was £4.0m (2014: £5.7m) and management charges were £6.8m (2014
£6.9m}. Total outstanding balances are listed in notes 22 and 25.




35. Subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures and associates at 31 March 2015

Subsidiary undertakings

The Company held, through wholly-owned subsidiaries, 100% of the issued share capital of the following principal trading subsidiaries
(unless otherwise stated) all of which operate in the waste management sector, have a 31 March year end and have been
consolidated in the Group's financial statements. The Group has taken the exemption under Companies Act section 410 not to list
all subsidiaries, however a full list will be annexed to the next annual return.

Country of
tncorporation
Principal Group subsidiary undertakings
Shanks Nederland B.V. Netherlands
Shanks Nethertands Holdings B.V. Nethertands
Shanks B.V. Netherlands
lcova B.V. Netherlands
Bv van Vliet Groep Milieu-dienstverleners Netherlands
Viiko B.V. Netherlands
Klok Containers B.V. Netherlands
Smink Beheer B.V. Netherlands
Transportbedrijf van Viiet B.V. (Contrans) Netherlands
Afvalstoffen Terminal Moerdijk B.V. (ATM} Netherlands
Reym B.V. Netherlands
Qrgawaorld International BV, Netherlands
Orgaworld Nederland B.V. Netherlands
Shanks s.a. Belgium
Shanks Hainaut s.a. Belgium
Shanks Liége-tuxembourg s.a. Belgium
Shanks Brussels-Brabant s.a. Belgium
Shanks Viaanderen n.v. Belgium
Shanks Wood Products n.v. Belgium
Shanks Waste Management Limited UK
Shanks PFl Investments Limited UK
Orgaworld Canada Limited Canada
Orgawortd Surrey General Partner Limited Canada
Orgaworld Design-Builder General Partner Limited Canada
Subsidiary undertakings holding UK PFI/PPP contracts
Shanks Argyll & Bute Limited UK
Shanks Cumbria Limited UK
3SE (Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham) Limited (75%) UK
Wakefield Waste PRI Limited UK

Joint ventures and associates
The Company held, through wholly-owned subsidiaries, the following interests in principal joint venture companies and asscciates,
all of which operate in the waste management sector.

% Group Most recent Country cf

holding year end incorporation

Energen Biogas Limited 50% 31 March 2015 UK
Resource Recovery Solutions (Derbyshire) Holdings Limited 50% 31 March 2015 UK
ELWA Holdings Limited 20% 31 March 2015 UK
Shanks Bumfries and Galloway Holdings Lirmited 20% 31 March 2015 UK
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Restateq* Hestated” Restated* Restated*
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
£m £m m £m £m
Consclidated income statement
Revenue' 601.4 633.4 811.9 6725 6329
Trading profit from continuing operations' 34.3 45.6 449 52.5 44.4
Finance charges - interest (10.6) (1.7 (1.8} 11.0) (7.9
Finance charges — other {2.8) 4.1} (3.8) (4.8) (6.3)
Share of results from associates and joint ventures 0.8 0.3 (0.3} 0.8) (0.4}
Profit from continuing operations betfore exceptional items and tax
(undertying profit} 2.7 3G.i 30.0 359 29.8
Non-trading and exceptional items {42.2) (22.5) {40.3) 3.8) (12.9)
(Loess) profit before tax from continuing operations {20.5) 7.6 (10.3) 32.1 18.9
Taxation (1.7) {(7.2) (7.5) (9.6) 7.9
Exceptional tax and tax on exceptional items 4.0 14 67 5.2 Q7
{Loss} profit after tax from continuing operations (18.2) 1.8 (11.1) 27.7 187
Profit (loss) after tax from discontinued operations 1.3 (30.0) (24.1) (2.0 3.2
{Loss) profit for the year (16.9) (28.2) (35.2) 257 219
{Loss) profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent (17.0) (28.3) (35.3) 257 219
Non-controlling interest 01 0.1 01 - -
(16.9) (28.2) {35.2) 257 219
Consolidated balance sheet
Non-current assets 737.3 744.4 767.7 750.9 75589
Other assets less liabilities (170.6) (166.8) {179.7) (172.9) {160.2)
Net debt (377.6) (304.1) (274.3} (207.9) (198.3)
Net assets 189.1 273.5 3137 3706 397.4
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital and share premium 139.8 139.7 1395 139.1 1391
Reserves 51.1 134.0 1741 231.5 258.3
190.9 273.7 3136 3706 397.4
Non-controlling interest (1.8) {0.2) 0.1 - -
Total equity 189.1 273.5 337 370.6 3974
Financial ratios
Underlying earnings per share — continuing operations 5.0p 5.7p 5.7p 6.6p 5.5p
Basic earnings per share — continuing operations (4.6lp 0.4p (2.8)p 7.0p 4.7p
Dividend per share 3.45p 3.45p 3.45p 3.45p 3.25p

“The comparatives have been restated foliowing the adoption of IFRS 11, see notes 1 and 16 for details. o ]
"Revenue and trading profit from conltinuing operations i stated before exceptional items and amertisation of acquisition intangibles.
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Analysis of shareholders as ot 31 March 2015

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Financial calendar

2 Juty 2015
% 3 July 2015
sl A0 61 SIS 25 oy ol
{omarate shargholders 926 387,860,424 915 November 2015
Total 3,007 100.0 397,850,417 100.0
“ 31 March 2016
May 2016

over 500,000

6,539,240

02

Total

100.0

397850417 1000

Registrar services

Administrative enquiries concerning
shareholdings in the Company should be
made to the Registrar, Computershare
Investar Services PLC, The Pavilions,
Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS93 677,
Computershare can also be contacted by
tedephone on 0870 707 1290. Shareholders
can also manage their holding onling by
registering at www.investorcentre.co.uk.

Dividends

Shareholders are strongly encouraged

to recelve their cash dividends by direct
transfer as this ensures dividends

are credited promptly and efficiently.
Shareholders who do not currently have
their dividends paid directly t¢ a bank aor
building society account, and who wish to
do so, should compiete a mandate form
obtainable from Cormputershare. Overseas
shareholders wishing to receive their
dividend payment in local currency can
now do so using Computershare’s Gicbal
Payments Service.

ShareGift

If sharehclders have only a small numbser
of shares the value of which makes it
uneconcmic to self, they may wish to
consider donating them to the charity
ShareGift (registered charity no. 1052686).
Further information may be obtained from
their website at www.sharegift.org or by
calling 020 7930 3737.

Electronic shareholder
communication

Shareholders may elect to receive future
shareholder documents and information by
emall or via the Company’'s website. This is
intended to help the environment by reducing
paper and transport as well as enabling the
Company to save on administration, printing
and postage costs. Please contact the
Company Registrar for details.

Share fraud warning
Fraudsters use persuasive and high-

pressure tactics to iure investors into scams.

They may offer io sell shares that turn out
10 be worthless or non-existent, or 1o buy
shares at an inflated price in return for an
upfront payment. Whilst high profits are
promised, if you buy or sell shares in this
way you will probably lose your money.

How to aveid fraud

® Keep in mind that firms authorised by
the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)
are unlikely to contact you out of the
blue with an offer 10 buy or sell shares.

@ Do not get into a conversation, note the
name of the person and firm contacting
you and then end the call.

@ Check the Financial Services Register
from www.fca.org.uk to see if the person
and firm contacting you is authorised by
the FCA.,

Ex-dividend date for final 2015 dividend
Record date for final 2015 dividend
Annual General Meeting

Payrment of final 2015 dividend
Announcement of interim results

and dividend

2016 financial year end

Announcement of 2016 resutts and
dividend recomimendation

© For updates to the calendar during the year, please
visit the Shanks Group website: www.shanksplc.com

@ Beware of fraudsters claiming to be from
an authorised firm, copying its website or
giving you false contact details.

# Use the firm’s contact details listed on
the Register if you want to cali it back.

® Call the FCA on Q80D 111 6768 if the
firm does not have contact details on
the Register or you are told they are out
of date.

@ Search the list of unauthorised firms to
avoid at www.fca.org.uk/scams.

& Consider that if you buy or sell shares
from an unauthorised firm you will
not have access to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial
Services Compensation Scheme.

& Think about getting independent financial
and professional advice beiore you hand
Qver any money.

Remember: if it sounds too good to be
true, it probably is!

Report a scam

if you are approached by a fraudster please
tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting
form at www.fca.org.uk/scams, where you
can find out more about investment scams,
or call the FCA Consumer Helpline en 0800
111 6768, If you have already paid money
to share fraudsters you should contact
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040,
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Principal Offices
Corporate Head Office
Shanks Group plc

Dunedin House

Auckland Park, Mount Farm
Milton Keynes
Buckingharnshire MK1 1BU
Tel: 00 44 (0) 1908 650580
Fax: 00 44 {0} 1908 650651
website; www.shanksplc.com
e-mail: inffo@shanksplc.co.uk

Registered Office
Shanks Group plc

16 Charlotte Square
Edinburgh

EH2 4DF

Registered in Scotland
No. SCO77438

Group Company Secretary
Philip Griffin-Smith, FCIS

Corporate Advisers
Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Principal Bankers

Barclays Bark plc

BNP Paribas Fertis Bank s.a./ n.v.
HSBC Bank ple

ING Bank n.v.

KBC Bank n.v.

Rabobank Intermational

The Royal Bank of Scotland pic

Netherlands Commaercial Division
Shanks Nederdand B.V
Lindeboomseweg 15

3828 NG Heogland

The Netherlands

Tel: 0031 (0) 332 050 200

Fax: 0031 () 332 050 211

website: www.shanks.nl

e-mail: infe@shanks.nl

Belgium Commercial Division
Shanks Belgium

Corporate Vilage

Lecnardo Da Vincilaan, 2

1935 Zaventem

Belgium

Tel: 0032 (0) 247 71000

Fax: 0032 (0) 272124 54
website: www.shanks.be

e-mail: info@shanks.be

Financial Advisers
Greenhill & Co International LLP

Solicitors
Ashurst LLP
Dickson Minto W.S.

Hazardous Division

Shanks Hazardous Waste

Computerweg 12D

Posthus 1545

3821 AB Amersfoort

The Netherlands

Tel: 0033 (04558830

Fax: 00 33 (0} 456 25 81

website: www.shankshazardouswaste.com
e-mail: info@shankshazardouswaste.com

Municipal Division

Shanks Waste Management Limited
Dunedin House

Auckland Park, Mount Farm

Milton Keynes

Buckinghamshire MK1 1BU

Tei: 00 44 (0) 1908 650650

Fax: 00 44 (0) 1908 650699
website: www.shanksmunicipal co.uk
e-mail; info@shanks.co.uk

PR Advisers
Brunswick

Corporate Brokers
Investec




GLOSSARY

163

OVERVIEW

s
A&B Argyli & Bute KPI Key Performance Indicator &
=
AD Anaerobic Digestion LTIP Long-term Incentive Plan £
-
AGM Annuzal General Meeting MS&A Mergers and Acquisitions =
BDR Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham MBT Mechanical Biolegical Treatment
BENELUX The ecenomic union of Belgium, MDF Medium Density Fibreboard
The Netherlands and Luxembourg MRF Material Recycling Facility
Constructi d Demolition w
ca&b fon and Lemot MWH Megawatt Hours of energy generated =
Cao nd Annual Growth Rate =
CAGR mpou U PBT Profit Before Tax S
Cash G ting Unit
cGu 45h \aenérating Ln' PDR Performance Development Review ©
Combined Heat and P
CHP moin Fat and Fower PFI Private Finance Initiative
G -widh llaboration tcol
CONNECTUS roup-wice colaborafion 100 PPP Public Private Partnership
CORE NET DEBRT Borrowings less cash from core - -
faciliies excluding PFI/PPP P&L Profit and Loss E
non-recourse debt RDF fAlefuse Derived Fuel E
CR Corporate Responsibiiity ROC Renewable Cbligations Certificate i
D&G Durnfries and Galloway ROCE Return on Capital Employed §
DAB Deferred Annual Borus SPV Special Purpose Vehicle -
EBITDA Earnings Before Interest, Tax, SRF Sclid Recovered Fusi
Depreciation and Amortisation - =
- SRSOS Savings Related Share =]
ELWA East London Waste Authority Qption Scheme %
EPS Earnings Per Share §SC Shared Service Centre §
ESP Electrostatic Precipitator $SO Source Segregated Organics g
EU European Union TAG Tar and Asphalt Granulate ;E‘::
GDP Gross Domestic Product TRADING PROFIT Operating profit before the
GHG Greenhouse Gas gmorti.sation of acquisition
’ » - intangibles, exceptional items
FCA Financial Conduct Authority and discontinued operations
ERC Financial Reporting Council TSR Total Shareholder Return
HWRC Household Waste Recycling Centre UK GAAP UK Generally Accepted
18C Inclustrial and Commercial Accounting Practice
‘ A UFCF (UNDERLYING  Cash flow before dividends, growth
t
IcT '?J?Lfiﬂ%? and Commurications FREE CASH FLOW)  capex, PFl funding, acquisitions,
disposals and exceptional items
i Fi ial . ..
IFRS E‘taern:i;onglta;}r:ja;cczjls UNDERLYING Underlying free cash flow divided
porting FREE CASH FLOW by trading profit
IvC In-Vessel Composting CONVERSION
v Joint Venture WACC Weighted Average Cost of Capital
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Making more from waste

Shanks Group plc

Dunedin House
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